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1.1 Strategic Overview

Vision 

To be a world-class Public Works Department.

Mission

The Department of Public Works (DPW) aims to promote the government’s objectives of economic development, 
good governance and raising living standards and prosperity by providing and managing accommodation, housing, 
land and infrastructure needs for national departments, promoting the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) 
and encouraging the transformation of the construction and property industries.   In pursuit of these objectives, the 
Department seeks to:

•	 Manage efficiently the lifecycle of immovable assets under its custodianship.

•	 Provide expert advice to all three spheres of government and State-owned entities on immovable assets.

•	 Contribute to the national goals of job creation and poverty alleviation through programme management and 
directing of public works programmes across all spheres of government, of which the EPWP forms an integral 
part.

•	 Provide strategic leadership to the construction and property industries.

Values 

Governed by our mission, the values outlined below serve as guiding principles in the Department’s continuous effort 
toward service delivery improvement:-

•	 Urgency 

All tasks are attended to timeously and diligently.

•	 Integrity

The Department rejects any form of corruption and/or maladministration, and all employees vow to expose any 
actions undermining principles of good corporate governance.

•	 Client Focus

All aspects of our work are guided by the need to improve service delivery to both internal and external clients.

•	 Team Work

Every employee has a specific task/role to perform and the sum of all our actions defines our destiny (success or 
failure).

Nelson Mandela Museum
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Strategic Overview (continued)

Strategic outcomes oriented goals

Strategic Outcome Oriented 
Goal (Outcome 4):

Decent employment through inclusive economic growth.

Goal Statement To improve employment conditions for beneficiaries of EPWP.

To increase full-time equivalent jobs within EPWP through the implementation of fiscal 
incentives. 

To implement proposed programmes to increase work opportunities in the Social, 
Infrastructure, Non State and Environmental & Cultural sectors.

Strategic Outcome Oriented 
Goal (Outcome 12):

Service delivery quality and access to government services.

Goal Statement To ensure that user departments occupy accommodation that meet their financial, 
technical and social requirements, to enable them to effectively deliver services to all 
citizens.

DPW as a major custodian of State Immovable Assets, ensures that Immovable Assets 
owned and/or utilised for delivering various government services yields functional, 
economic and social benefits to the state for improved service delivery 

Strategic Outcome Oriented 
Goal (Outcome 8):

 Efficient utilisation of land for human settlement.

Mobilisation of well-located public land for low income earners and affordable income 
housing with increased densities on this land in general.

Goal Statement To release land and buildings vested nationally and provincially for human settlements 
development.

Strategic Outcome Oriented 
Goal (Outcome 5)

Investment in core skills development both within DPW and externally.

Goal Statement To revive workshops that facilitate the absorbtion of artisans.

To increase intake of internships, learnerships and young professionals.

To increase participation of emerging contractors in the NCDP.

To provide training to DPW engineers on labour intensive technology.

Strategic Outcome Oriented 
Goal (Outcome 6)

Improve the condition of the state’s immovable assets to ensure operational efficiency.

Goal Statement To reduce the maintenance backlog.

To reduce the leased portfolio of the state. 

To accelerate the implementation of the rehabilitation programme.
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Strategic outcome oriented goals

1.2 Legislative and Other Mandates
In terms of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa of 1996, the powers and functions relating to the Department 
of Public Works (DPW) at a National level are granted by the President to the Minister of Public Works. Public Works is a 
concurrent function exercised by both the national and provincial spheres in terms of Schedule 4 of the Constitution. 
This legislation, therefore, mandates the custodianship and management of a significant portfolio of the national 
government’s immovable assets to the DPW. These include the provision of accommodation, rendering of expert built 
environment services to the user departments at national government level and the planning, acquisition, management 
and disposal of immovable assets under the custodianship of the DPW. In addition, the Department is mandated to 
coordinate and provide strategic leadership in job creation through the implementation of the EPWP.

The Department’s operations, inter alia, are regulated by the Government Immovable Asset Management Act, 2007 
(GIAMA). The Act aims to ensure efficient and effective management of immovable assets throughout national and 
provincial government to improve service delivery. Furthermore, through the Construction Industry Development 
Board Act, 2000 (cidb), the Council for the Built Environment Act, 2000 (CBE) and the six Professional Councils Acts that 
regulate the six built environment professions, the DPW regulates the construction industry and the built environment. 
(Appendix A provides a list of the various Acts that outline key responsibilities placed on DPW).

1.3 Organisational Structure (Management)

Minister 
Mr TW Nxesi

Director - 
General

Mr M Dlabantu

Business 
Improvement Unit

Mr M Govender

Deputy 
Minister 

Mr J Cronin

DDG: 
Regional - 

Cordination
Mr B Matutle

DDG: 
Key Accounts 
Management
Mr MP Mabuza

DDG: 
Construction 

& Property 
Policy 

Regulation
Ms L Bici

DDG: 
Inner-City 

Regeneration 
Programme
Ms S Subban

DDG: 
Projects & 

Professional 
Services

Mr M Gwazube

DDG: 
Expanded 

Public Works 
Programme 

Mr S Henderson

DDG: 
Asset 

Investment 
Management 
Mr P Chiapasco 

(Acting)

DDG: 
Corporate 

Services
Mr K Govender

(Acting)

Chief 
Financial 

Officer
Mr C Mokgoro
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Strategic outcome oriented goals (continued)

1.4 Entities Reporting to the Minister
These entities assist the Department to deliver on its objectives and achieve the broader governmental goals, focusing on 
the construction and property industries. Key to attaining these objectives, is a long term drive towards transformation. 

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 
Relationship 

Nature of Operations

1.	 Construction 
Industry 
Development 
Board (cidb)

To provide strategic leadership 
to the construction industry 
stakeholders to stimulate 
sustainable growth, 
reform, transformation 
and improvement of the 
construction sector in order to 
meet the social and economic 
development objectives

Transfer payment 1.	 Categorising and grading of 
contractors on a National Register of 
Contractors which reflects the nature, 
size and geographic distribution of 
andcontractors and further reflects 
the country’s capacity to meet the 
construction demand. 

2.	 Establishment of the iTender system 
and the National Register of Projects. 
The Register of Projects reflects 
the nature, size and geographic 
distribution of the projects.

3.	 Establishment of the Best Practice 
Contractor Recognition System 
which enables organs of state to 
manage risk on complex contracting 
strategies; and promotes contractor 
development in relation to best 
practice standards and guidelines, 
developed by the Board in terms of 
the section.

4.	 Establishment of the Best Practice 
Project Assessment Scheme, based on 
best practices identified by the Board.

To promote uniform application 
of policy in the construction 
industry throughout all spheres 
of Government

1.	 Development and implementation 
of the Standard for Uniformity 
in Construction Procurement 
which is aimed at bringing about 
standardisation and uniformity 
in the construction procurement 
documentation, practices and 
procedures.

2.	 The establishment of the Code of 
Conduct for all parties engaged in 
Construction Procurement to guide 
and regulate the behaviour of parties 
engaged in construction-related 
procurement.
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Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 
Relationship 

Nature of Operations

To promote sustainable growth 
of the construction industry 
and the participation of the 
emerging sector 

1.	 Establishment of the National 
Contractor Development Programme 
(NCDP) to increase the capacity, 
equity ownership, sustainability, 
quality and performance of cidb 
registered contractors 

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 
Relationship 

Nature of Operations

1.	 Agrément 
South Africa 

Operates under the delegation 
of authority from the Minister of 
Public Works and represents the 
Government of the Republic of 
South Africa. The delegation is 
to the Chairperson of the Board 
of Agrément South Africa, when 
acting in consultation with the 
wishes of the Board, who is 
nominated by the Minister

Receives an 
annual grant from 
the Department 
of Public Works. 
The annual grant 
for 2012/2013 
was R8 686 842 
An increase of 
approximately 
5% per annum 
was granted to 
Agrément South 
Africa to fund 
its operational 
activities during 
the financial year

Agrément South Africa is an 
internationally acknowledged, South 
African Centre for the assessment 
and certification of innovative, non-
standardised construction products, 
systems, materials, components 
and processes, which are not yet 
fully covered by a national standard 
or code of practice. It supports the 
construction industry by facilitating 
the safe introduction, application and 
utilisation of satisfactory innovation and 
technology development.  Agrément 
South Africa does this, inter alia, by 
providing assurance of fitness-for-
purpose of such technologies that 
optimise resource utilisation and realises 
cost savings in industry.

The entity also explores alternative 
methods of construction within the built 
environment. 

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 
Relationship

Nature of Operations

2.	 Independent 
Development 
Trust (IDT)

The IDT is a transformed 
government development 
agency that implements 
projects commissioned by 
government departments 
(1997 Cabinet decision). It is a 
Schedule 2 development entity 
and implements projects on 
behalf of government.

•	 During the 
2012/13 
financial year, 
the total 
actual budget 
was R370m of 
which R50.8m 
(14%) was 
for operating 
costs 

•	 Business Model: centralised national 
functions and regional operations.

•	 The national office determines 
policies, provides oversight, 
compliance monitoring and reporting 
on behalf of the organisation, and is 
responsible for creating an enabling 
environment that is conducive to 
effective regional operations

•	 Both national and regional offices are 
responsible for business generation. 

•	 The IDT developing a business case 
and this process impacts on the 
performance of the entity.

Strategic outcome oriented goals (continued)
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Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 
Relationship

Nature of Operations

3.	 Council for 
the Built 
Environment

To facilitate transformation 
of the built environment 
profession and protect 
members of the public within 
South Africa from unsafe 
practices by built environment 
professionals.

To provide advice and body 
of knowledge on built 
environment issues. 

To ensure good governance 
in the provisioning of built 
environment professional 
services in both the public and 
private sectors.

By Parliament 
through the 
Department

Drives and facilitates skills development 
within the built environment

Provides research and a platform for 
discussions on built environment issues. 

Strengthens and implements a public 
protection regime.

1.5 Foreword by the Minister

Strategic outcome oriented goals (continued)

Public Works Minister, Thulas Nxesi and the Deputy Minister , Jeremy Cronin

Tweefontein Police Station
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“Despite many challenges faced 
by the DPW, major sections of the 

Department, remained productive 
due to the commitment and hard 
work of officials and a number of 

successes have been recorded”

Minister : Mr TW Nxesi

The mandate of the Department as the major custodian of the State’s immoveable assets, is to manage its assets 
optimally in order to provide accommodation to government departments to effect service delivery effectively and 
efficiently. In addition, the Department regulates the property and construction sectors and provides policy advice to 
the government in this regard. The Department also strives to create jobs and develop skills, particularly in relation to 
the built environment.

Despite many challenges faced by the Department, major sections remained productive due to the commitment and 
hard work of officials and a number of successes have been recorded.

In relation to the Expanded Public Works Programme, the Department is on course to reach the initial target of 4,500,000 
job opportunities for the period 2009/2010 - 2013/2014. 

The issue of under-spending of R358 million in 2011/2012 on the EPWP incentive grant was eliminated in the 2012/2013 
financial year. This success is due to the active partnership, coordination and participation of provinces, municipalities 
and Non-profit Government, Community Based and Faith Based Organisations. 

During the 2012/2013 financial year, 214 projects were completed in relation to Capital Projects, creating 18 815 jobs.

In relation to Asset Investment Management, 6 buildings were rehabilitated in the year under review and 11 buildings 
were made accessible for people with disabilities. Two properties measuring 4 33.026 hectares, earmarked for sustainable 
human settlements were approved for release.

In relation to policy regarding the transformation of the built environment, the Construction Sector Charter Council 
was registered as a section 21 Company and the National Contractor Development Programme (NCDP) – driven by the 
Construction Industry Development Board (cidb) – was launched in December 2012.

Despite the great progress, the Department remains confronted by challenges. There are still many challenges faced by 
the Department such as fraud and corruption on the part of a few officials. This remains a concern due to a legacy of 
weak systems, poor management and a lack of accountability resulting in a disclaimer and a poor audit outcome for the 
year 2011/2012. 

The priority for the previous year was to develop and implement a robust and credible turnaround strategy to ‘Rebuild 
the Department of Public Works’. The building blocks are in place. The National Treasury has provided a budget; a 
Turnaround Team, known as the Business Improvement Unit – was established in the office of the Director-General; and 
leadership has been stabilised with the appointment of a new Director-General and Chief Financial Officer.
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Our strategic focus has been on taking control of five key areas:

Combatting fraud and corruption - We have worked closely with the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) to investigate 
a total of 40 irregular leases and projects of which 23 were completed. This resulted in successful disciplinary actions 
being implemented, for example, the suspension of six officials and the dismissal of three others, including one Deputy 
Director-General (DDG). Court actions were instituted to recover monies wrongly paid by the Department. We are 
currently awaiting reports from disciplinary hearings involving another DDG and Chief Director. The SIU completed 
investigations into Prestige within the Pretoria regional office relating to the inflated cost of renovations of ministerial 
houses. It was recommended that all officials involved in irregular behaviour be disciplined. This process is currently 
underway. In addition, all Prestige projects are under investigation. The process was completed in Pretoria and has 
been extended to Cape Town where R100 million was spent on renovating 11 ministerial houses. The SIU investigations, 
together with recent findings of the Competition Commission, confirm that there was over-pricing and collusion among 
some officials and sections of the construction industry. They further concluded that corruption and greed in the private 
and public sectors were mutually reinforcing unethical practices. 

The Immovable Asset Register - The state land reconciliation with the Deeds Office records was completed by the end 
of the financial year. Provinces, the Departments of Rural Development and Land Reform and Human Settlements made 
inputs and cooperated with the process of creating an Asset Register that will accurately reflect the state’s assets. This will 
give us the tools to leverage this massive property portfolio for future economic development. 

Audit of Leases – All of the Department’s 2 778 leases were reviewed during the past year. Of these, 1 316 required 
attention in terms of either revision/cancellation or renewal. Presently, all new leases are being correctly processed.

Improving audit outcomes - The Clean Audit project was initiated in December 2012 and rolled out in February 2013 
to address the negative audit outcomes. This intervention resulted in the deployment of well in excess of 100 experts 
within the finance and SCM profession. Also included was the deployment of additional 64 unemployed graduates for 
skills and development within finance and SCM. The strong element of this intervention was to transfer skills with the 
intention to absorb these graduates into the Department. 

Operationalising the Property Management Trading Entity–(PMTE)

The establishment of the PMTE was formalised. A detailed business plan will be submitted to Cabinet for approval in 
the financial year 2013/14. Failure in finalising these processes previously approved in 2006, contributed significantly to 
both the DPW and PMTE receiving negative audit outcast in the past.

I thank the Auditor-General, the Public Protector, the SIU and members of the Parliamentary Committees for their 
constructive criticism and support; National Treasury and the DPSA for the assistance in developing and implementing a 
turnaround strategy; the MECs and the HoDs whose participation has reinvigorated MINMEC; the Director- General and 
senior management of the Department who have kept the ship afloat. A special word of thanks to those officials of the 
Department who actively assisted in the process of rebuilding the Department. Working together we have stabilised the 
Department, put in place the building blocks and developed a plan of action to rebuild Public Works and deliver on its 
mandate. 

	

Mr. TW Nxesi	 Mr. J Cronin 

Minister	 Deputy Minister

Foreword by the Minister (continued)
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1.6 Overview by the Accounting Officer 

“While the Department remains 
committed to the National Development 
Agenda through its strategic objectives 
that meet specific strategic outcomes, 

the rationale for change, resulted in the 
Department focusing on re-building 

Public Works and reclaiming its mandate. 
The approach by the Department is 

aligned with the MTEF allocations by 
National Treasury.”

Accounting Officer: Mr. M Dlabantu

The financial year 2012/13 was challenging and exciting. It year was marred by a significant degree of negativity especially 
around certain core business areas of the Department, much of which emanate from the operational complexities of the 
Department. These complexities also arose from the ever changing infrastructure and property environment, internal 
business improvement initiatives and broader policy changes affecting the Department. All these necessitated a change 
in operations and some projects were initiated to address these challenges and stabilise the Department. The exciting 
part of the year was as a result of the Department making considerable strides with the asset register, although not 
to the levels initially envisaged, but to a point that some degree of reliability and certainty could be attached to it. In 
addition, the positions of the Director-General and the Chief Financial Officer were filled, addressing the top management 
instability that had existed for some time. Apart from all the challenges, the Department continued to realise its mandate 
and the various turnaround projects have started yielding some positive results.

Top management perspective of the Department 

The Department plays a crucial role in government in line with its mandate to provide and manage accommodation, 
housing, land and infrastructure needs for national Departments, promote the Expanded Public Works Programme 
(EPWP) and encourage the transformation of the construction and property industries. The Department was guided 
by the Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan that were successfully tabled to the Parliament of South Africa. 
The Department further took risk elements into consideration and implemented the audit action plans that sought to 
address the various challenges facing the Department. Many of those challenges received the appropriate attention 
with the assistance of the Business Improvement Unit that instituted a Turnaround Strategy. The Turnaround Strategy 
projected a number of initiatives with emphasis on stabilisation, business efficiency and transforming the Department 
over a period of time. Some of these initiatives are starting to bear fruit. Dictated by the mandate and the performance 
agreement of the Executive Authority that is central to the planning in the Department, attention was paid to three 
sector outcomes: decent employment through inclusive economic growth (Outcome 4); sustainable human settlements 
and an improved quality of household life (Outcome 8) and an efficient, effective and development oriented public 
service and an empowered, fair and inclusive citizenry (Outcome 12). The Department also provided full support to the 
realisation of a skilled and capable workforce (Outcome 5) and the creation of an efficient, competitive and responsive 
economic infrastructure network (Outcome 6).

Despite yet another challenging year, the Department has made satisfactory progress in various areas. During the 
year under review, the Department embarked on a clean audit project to drive the Department to financial health, 
accountability, transparency, credibility and compliance.

The clean audit project is a culmination of various key projects, namely Supply Chain Management, Property Management 
Trading Entity, Immovable Asset Register and Lease Review.
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Supply Chain Management (SCM)

Supply Chain Management within the Department was identified as a major risk area by the Auditor-General and is a key 
project within the Turnaround Strategy. As part of the Organisational Functional Assessment, the Department intends 
establishing a separate Supply Chain Management Branch with oversight and management at senior level.

A large percentage of the Department’s work is undertaken through the supply chain processes and as such this is 
critical to the business of the Department. In the financial year under review, the SCM processes were critically reviewed 
to combat waste and corruption as well as to improve efficiencies. The supplier register’s objective is to have an effective 
and efficient database of suppliers and service providers to support the quotation and tendering environment for 
general goods and services. The Department drafted a revised Supplier Register Directive and developed an SCM Policy 
that incorporated all applicable circulars and practice notes issued by the National Treasury and the cidb.

Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE)

During the reporting period, the Department decided to adopt interim structural measures by establishing a clear 
separation between the PMTE and the Department’s main account. The implementation of PMTE is in line with the 
original approval by National Treasury. An interim solution was conceptualised in terms of structure, systems and human 
resource requirements and is envisaged to be implemented in the next financial year. In addition, much focus was on 
the accounting and reporting requirements for this entity. Trading entities are required to adopt the GRAP principles of 
accounting in the next financial year and the Department decided to accommodate an early adoption of GRAP as from 
1 April 2012 and align all accounting and reporting templates and processes accordingly.

The intention of establishing the trading entity within the Department was to facilitate better delivery on its mandate 
in providing fit-for-purpose accommodation to clients at appropriate prices and to enable PMTE to obtain and retain 
funds for future immovable property development. The achievements to date are encouraging and it is expected that 
the eventual outcome of the project will support the creation of financial centres of excellence for the Department’s 
main account as well as the PMTE. The policy enhancements, controls and systems improvements have already been 
implemented, and this bodes well for the coming years.

Asset Investment Management 

The Asset Life Cycle of the immovable asset is obtained at an initial acquisition cost (that could be through construction, 
purchase, lease, acceptance as a gift, exchange or transfer of custodianship between custodians). Ordinary use of the 
asset leads to wear and tear, thus requiring preventative maintenance to ensure that deterioration remains within the 
parameters of the assets required for performance. 

After an initial phase (7-10 years for buildings) the asset requires renovation to reinstate it to its original state, followed by 
the next phase of preventative maintenance. During a lifecycle, the asset may also be upgraded or extended that would 
increase the value of the asset. The asset could be renovated for a second or a third time. 

The useful life of the immovable asset typically extends beyond this point and after refurbishment, a new economic 
lifecycle will commence. Some well-known immovable assets, such as the Union Buildings, are already in their fifth 
financial lifecycle. 

Once the value of the asset has deteriorated below the salvage value, the cost to refurbish or repair the asset is generally 
more than the cost to construct a new asset.

Inherent in the Immovable Asset Management function is the Immovable Asset Register, Portfolio Analysis and Valuations 
components which are central in the management of State immovable assets.

Immovable Asset Register 

The Department embarked on a process to update the Immovable Asset Register. The Department in consultation 
with the Office of the Chief Surveyor General received the extensive reconciliation of National and Provincial current 
IARs that were completed against the Deeds Registry. The State land reconciliation with the Deeds Office records was 
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completed by 31 March 2013. Together with the input from the Provinces and the co-operation from the Departments 
of Rural Development and Land Reform and Human Settlements, this is a huge milestone to create an IAR that will – 
for the first time in years - accurately reflect the state’s immovable assets. A process is underway to link structures to 
land parcels and sourcing other information sources, for example, UAMPs, and external databases. The Department has 
created a repository in iEWorks for cleansed IAR data to be placed and also procured a tool for the physical inventory. 
The immediate plans for the IAR include formulating a custodian framework, a capitalisation policy, an operating model 
and a Fair Value model. Looking ahead, this will give the Department the tools to leverage its massive property portfolio 
for greater economic development.

Portfolio Analysis

Portfolio Analysis is central in determining of all property investment solutions. The built environment professionals 
enhance service delivery through the compilation of technical reports on option analysis, valuation reports and lease 
reviews. Such information provides recommendations on detailed solutions for specific projects inter alia, the options to 
buy, sell, maintain or construct new property.

Valuations and the Land Affairs Board (LAB)

The Department is responsible for the provision of a competent, comprehensive and cost effective valuation service. 
The Valuation Services function is tasked with the valuation of all acquisitions, disposals and rentals that involve 
transactions between the Department and various parties, mainly private sector property entities. The other key activity 
within Valuation Services has been the review of municipal valuations on State-owned properties to enable savings on 
municipal rates levied, through lodging of objections on over/under valued State properties.

The Department is in the process of developing a fair value model to undertake property valuations that comply with 
accounting standards, in particular GRAP. In conducting valuations, internationally recognised valuation methods are 
applied as stipulated in the International Valuation Standards (IVS), these methods include among others the Sales 
Comparison, Income Capitalisation and Depreciated Replacement methods.

During 2012/2013 the following was achieved in terms of valuations:

•	 355 Market Valuations completed. 

•	 2 633 Municipal Valuations appraised. The Land Affairs Board (LAB) members are appointed on an annual basis 
by the Minister of Public Works in terms of Section 3 of the Land Affairs Act, 101 of 1987. The functions of the LAB 
in terms of the Land Affairs Act 101 of 1987, Section 6(1) and (2) are subject to the directions of the Minister. The 
Board shall determine the amount of compensation, purchase prices or rentals payable in respect of immovable 
property which is expropriated, purchased or leased by the Department for public purposes, out of funds 
appropriated by Parliament for that purpose.

In the financial year 2012/2013, the LAB assessed 230 valuation reports for purposes of acquisitions, disposals, rentals, 
donations and exchange.

Property Management

Property Management is one of the streams of the core business of the Department. In the 2012/13 Annual Performance 
Plan, the Department announced that as part of enhancing the Property Management function to reflect properly its 
centrality, it will embark on a lease audit review, with the assistance of the National Treasury. 

Prior to the lease review with the National Treasury, the Department initiated a process with the Auditor General to 
conduct an audit on all the Departmental leases which would form the basis of the specific terms of reference for the 
lease review project. The purpose of the lease review exercise was to address the irregularities in the lease environment 
by conducting a forensic lease audit, dealing with the backlog of leases, dealing with leases that are due to expire and 
managing the accommodation needs of the State.

To date, all of the 2 778 leases have been reviewed. Of the 2 778, a total of 1 316 were leases that required completion, 
revision or renewal. These were regarded as backlog leases. Of the backlog leases, recommendations have already been 
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made in respect of 365 leases. Recommendations for the remaining 951 leases were made and should be in place in the 
next financial year. 

In enhancing the Property Management function, through the Organisational Functional Assessment project in 
consultation with DPSA, the Department intends to elevate the property management function to a branch level. 

Devolution of budgets and accommodation charges

During 2006 the Department devolved its maintenance budget to the users in favour of an accommodation charge. The 
purpose of the accommodation charge is to reflect the full cost of accommodation on the budget of the user and to 
establish a landlord – tenant relationship between the Department as custodian and the user as its clients.

In terms of the “Framework for the Devolution of Budget and the Introduction of Accommodation Charges Version 17, 18 
December 2005” a rental per square meter was determined for each accommodation type, based on the then maintenance 
budget of the Department. 

However the current budget levels, given the condition of the Departments assets, are still not sufficient to ensure that 
the full maintenance, renovation and refurbishment requirements are met. The National Treasury has also committed 
to fund the full accommodation charges (full cost of accommodation) on all assets that are fully refurbished by the 
Department. Currently the National Treasury has made capital available for the funding of various refurbishment 
activities. These include the Inner City Regeneration, upgrading of land ports of entry through the Border Control 
Operational Coordinating Committee (BCOCC) and capital on the budget of the user Departments.

As the accommodation charges model only provides for ongoing maintenance requirements, it does not take into 
account the inherited backlogs in maintenance and associated rehabilitation requirements, nor does it take into account 
the possible savings from more efficient use of available accommodation space. The Department agreed that the budget 
will include a capital amount to contribute to the rehabilitation and investment in new or replacement accommodation.

Construction management

The Department has access to three key infrastructure budget streams, namely the Department of Public Works 
capital and the user Departments’ capital and maintenance. At national government level, the Department provides 
accommodation to 52 user Departments including entities. The implementation of projects on the building programme 
funded by the Department and the user Departments, at Head Office level and throughout the 11 Regional Offices is 
significant for job creation.

The infrastructure budget of the Department for 2012/13 was spent on the following programmes:

•	 Accessibility of state-owned buildings by people with disabilities.

•	 Dolomite Risk Management. 

•	 Land Ports Of Entry.

•	 Inner-City Regeneration.

•	 Special and Major Projects.

•	 The Departments’ own office accommodation. 

 Approximately 214 projects were completed, including high-profile projects for the Department of Justice, Correctional 
Services, SAPS, and the SANDF. These included the upgrading of the Boston Base Air Force Base and the Phase 2 runway 
upgrade at the Waterkloof Air Force Base for the Department of Defence, the new magistrates court buildings in Katlehong, 
renovations to Bloemfontein Magistrates Court, refurbishment of Gelvandale Magistrates Court (Port Elizabeth) for the 
Department of Justice and Constitutional Development, maintenance at Glencoe and Kroonstad prisons, upgrading of 
the power supply at Goedemoeg Prison, repairs at Tulbagh Prison for the Department of Correctional Service and for the 
South African Police Services the renovation of buildings at Port St Johns and the upgrade and new accommodation for 
the Clocolan Police Station was completed. Capital projects created about 18 815 jobs during the financial period. The 
target for the new financial year is approximately 40 000 jobs – based on the current and planned projects. Currently 518 
projects are in the construction phase, with 300 expected to be completed by the end of March 2014. 
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Strategic projects to be completed this year include 7 military projects, the Tzaneen prison, the Matola Raid Monument 
in Mozambique, the Skilpadhek Port of Entry; upgrading of 38 Church Street (National Treasury); and the Golela Port of 
Entry Residential Complex.

Border Control Operating Co-coordinating Committee (BCOCC)

The BCOCC is a National body “responsible for the strategic management of the South African border environment in a 
coordinated manner.” This includes the key components of improved and coordinated security, trade and tourism. The 
control of the border environment is inherently a multi-Departmental responsibility, requiring extensive communication 
and coordination across Departments, agencies and provinces. The BCOCC comprises numerous stakeholders in the 
border environment, of whom, six Departments are actively operational at the Land Ports of Entry. 

The Department, as custodian to state-owned immovable assets at land ports of entry has progressively improved over the 
years to support the BCOCC Departments by providing operational accommodation and related physical infrastructure 
services. The Department executes its custodian functions in the form of comprehensive upgrade, repair, renovation and 
facilities management contracts at all land ports of entry. In most cases the border posts are situated in remote parts of 
the country where accessibility to services remains a challenge. Where required, auxiliary services are provided on site 
and managed with daily operators to ensure compliance to Occupational Health and Safety requirements. 

As the largest infrastructure programme under the Department Capital Budget, R233 891 508 (84% of the allocation is for 
land ports of entry) was spent for the period under review, on the construction of new accommodation, refurbishment 
of existing accommodation and repairs and maintenance of accommodation at the land ports of entry.

An Inter-Agency Clearing Forum (IACF) steering committee was formed to spearhead the work aimed at developing an 
enhanced movement control system at identified ports of entry. The committee ensured development and the smooth 
and timely roll-out of the Department of Home Affairs (DHA) system to 34 sites including airports and land ports of entry. 

The successful roll-out of the project provided affirmation that with cooperation and collaboration among and between 
Departments, a lot can be achieved. The steering committee has evolved into a bigger forum and has been extended to 
include the additional Departments. The IACF manages the problems associated with operations at ports of entry, with 
the aim of finding collective resolutions to these problems.

Service Delivery Improvement Programme (SDIP)

The development of the SDIP is based on the premise, as per Section 195(5) of the South African Constitution (1996), 
that states that “the public administration must be governed by the democratic values and principles”. The intention 
of the SDIP is for the Department to strive for excellence in service delivery and commit to continuous service delivery 
improvement. It seeks to improve the nature or quality of the actual service being provided and the manner in which 
the service is delivered focusing on whether the Department utilises its resources efficiently to produce outputs that are 
consistent with its mandate and have objectives that are relevant for its users which are key to achieving service delivery 
excellence. 

Between 2005 and 2007, the Department developed a Service Delivery Improvement Programme called Zimisele. 
Building on the work completed through Zimisele, the Department is improving the SDIP in collaboration with DPSA. 
In line with the methodology used, the following areas were identified as needing improvement during the 2013/14 
financial year:

•	 Acquisition of functional, office and residential accommodation through construction.

•	 Provision of leased accommodation.

•	 Provision of day-to-day maintenance services.

Professional Legal and Variations Order (VO) Committees

On the 4 April 2012, the Department signed back into operation the Professional Legal Committee, comprising members 
from the Professional and Legal Services’ Units. The objectives of the Committee are to advise on matters related to 
construction contracts, Professional Acts and Regulations and published professional fee scales, including the drafting 
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of generic and specific documentation related to the aforementioned; advising Project Managers on cases involving 
repudiation, default, cancellation of contracts and liquidations and whether to defend or settle matters of dispute; to co-
ordinate legal matters and be a central body of progress verification of litigation events of a construction industry nature 
for or against the Department; to assist Project Managers in litigation matters which could, inter alia, include instruction 
to Legal Counsel, assistance in drawing up legal documentation and pleadings, consultation with legal Counsel, guide 
settlement negotiations; and to issue professional/legal directives aimed at assisting and capacitating Project Managers.

The work of the VO Committee commenced on the 15th May 2012 and the basis for its existence emanates from the 
decision to withdraw the Variation Orders Delegations. The VO Committee reports to the Director-General on a quarterly 
basis and its role is to assess the applications of variation orders on capital projects and advise the Director-General on 
the suitable actions to take.

Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP)

The Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) is a National programme co-ordinated by the Department. The goal 
of EPWP is to create 4.5 million work opportunities (equivalent to 2 million full time equivalents) for the poor and 
unemployed people of South Africa, so as to contribute to halving unemployment by 2014, through the delivery of 
public and community services. EPWP supports public bodies from all spheres of government (in terms of their normal 
mandates and budgets) and the Non-State sector through Government incentives to deliberately optimise the creation 
of work opportunities for unemployed and poor people in South Africa through the delivery of public and community 
services. 

Overall, the EPWP has created 3 054 027 work opportunities in Phase 2 thus far (April 2009 - 31 March 2013). This is 68% 
of the five year target of 4 500 000 work opportunities. The four year commulative performance of 3 054 027 constitutes 
93.4% of the cumulative target of 3 270 000 for the period April 2009 to 31 March 2013. For the financial year 2012/13, the 
programme has created 941 593 work opportunities during the period 01 April 2012 to 31 March 2013. This constitutes 
78% of the target of 1 210 000 work opportunities. 

Three provinces over-performed against their 2012/13 work opportunity targets, namely, Eastern Cape, Mpumalanga 
and Western Cape. The Northern Cape achieved 99% of its target. Three provinces achieved more than 70% of their 
2012/13 target, namely Limpopo, Gauteng and KwaZulu-Natal. 

For the 2012/13 financial year, the Department disbursed 100% of the Social Sector EPWP Incentive Grant allocated to 
DoRA compliant provincial sector public bodies via the Provincial Treasuries. Provincial departments in total spent 91% 
of the Grant in 2012/13. Seven provinces (GP, LP, MP, NC, EC, NW and WC) had spent more than 95% of their allocation 
except whereas KZN and FS at 47% and 77% respectively. A total of 520 839 households were serviced, 2 890 NPOs 
supported, and Stipends paid to 11 902 beneficiaries. 

In terms of the EPWP Integrated Grant to Provinces, 100% of the grant has been disbursed by the National Department 
of Public Works. In terms of expenditure, 90% of the grant has been spent by the eligible Provincial Departments as at 
the end of March 2013. Full expenditure of the grant was not achieved in the Free State, Gauteng, Northern Cape, North 
West and Western Cape provinces. Full expenditure has not been recieved by the public bodies because of delays in the 
implementation of projects. 

The measures put in place to improve expenditure on the Integrated Grant include providing technical support to help 
in the implementation of projects, in terms of design and relevant contract documentation; re-orientation workshops 
on labour-intensive methods are being held with officials in the different public bodies to empower them on EPWP 
principles to assist with implementation; and site verification visits have been made to different public bodies to monitor 
implementation of projects. In addition, follow-up is being made with Accounting Officers and Financial Officers in the 
different public bodies to provide regular reports.
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Limpopo Department of Public Works (LDPW) 

Cabinet decided on the 5 December 2011 to invoke s100 (1) (b) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa in 
the Limpopo Department of Public Works. The intervention identified five areas of intervention that was informed by a 
diagnostic report. The vision of the intervention team is to position the Limpopo Department of Public Works (LDPW) 
as an infrastructure Department that is able to deliver on its mandate as required by a proclamation of the Premier of 
Limpopo in terms of Section 3.3 of the GIAMA. The key areas of intervention included, inter alia, the compilation of a 
GIAMA asset register; review of the current lease portfolio of the LDPW, building the professional capacity of the LDPW 
to deliver on its mandate and building the capacity of the CFO’s office to manage procurement and finances. To date, 
in terms of progress, the intervention consolidated six immovable asset registers into one Master Register. In addition, 
appropriate title deed numbers to registered properties as indicated on the deeds register were assigned. One of the 
challenges facing the LDPW was around its management of its finances. Through the intervention, the R2billion that 
contributed to the disclaimer in the previous year was reconciled. Importantly, the intervention established a vesting 
factory to speed up the process of vesting properties by 31 March 2014 in line with the National targets.

The Department has improved the pace of its institutional support to the Provinces through its coordinating engine – 
the Intergovernmental Unit – where meetings between the Accounting Officer and the provincial Heads of Departments 
are held and technical areas affecting the spheres are discussed. These discussions also form the basis for engagement 
at Minmec with the aim of implementing the decisions taken. 

Mr Mziwonke Dlabantu

Accounting Officer

Golela border Post
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CHAPTER 2
Performance Information
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2.1 �Accounting Officer’s Statement of Responsibility for Performance 
Information

Statement of Responsibility for Performance Information 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Department’s performance information and judgements’ 
made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is also responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control designed to 
provide reasonable assurance to the integrity and reliability of performance information.

In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the performance information of the Department for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2013. 

Mr Mziwonke Dlabantu

Accounting Officer

31 May 2013
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2.2 Overview of Departmental Performance
Service delivery environment

As the key provider of government building infrastructure in South Africa, the Department plays a critical role in 
providing an enabling environment for the effective implementation of social and economic development. Its mandate 
is governed largely by the Government Immovable Asset Management Act of 2007 (GIAMA). This is a continuation of 
its pre-1994 role, that was to provide government building infrastructure delivered through the vehicle of National 
Public Works Programmes and accompanied by job-creation mechanisms. The existing public works programmes 
were replaced by the Expanded Public Works Programme in 2004. While the period since 1994 was marked by several 
programmatic shifts in focus, the underlying mandate of the Department remained constant. The White Paper on Public 
Works, gazetted in 1997, reinforced the role of the Department of Public Works as an enabler of sustainable economic 
growth through infrastructural development, a leader in transforming the construction and property sectors and the 
lead coordinator in optimising state funding for job creation through public works programmes. 

Following a diagnostics undertaken as part of the turnaround process, it was revealed that there are major capacity 
deficiencies within the professional services of the Department which, if not corrected, impact negatively on the 
Department’s ability to deliver on the its mandate, also resulting in under-spending on capital projects.

As a major custodian of state immovable assets, the Department is responsible for the planning, acquisition, management 
and disposal of State immovable properties vested in the national government, hence, the Immovable Asset Register is 
key to the custodial role which the Department plays, in relation to the planning and management of state immovable 
assets. As reflected historically in reports from the Auditor General, the inadequacy of a compliant Immovable Asset 
Register has significantly contributed to the Department’s successive negative audit opinions. As a key priority towards 
the cleaning up of all negative audit findings, the compilation of a comprehensive compliant baseline Immovable Asset 
Register is paramount. 

The Department remains responsible for the regulation and transformation of the construction and property 
sectors. Skewed property ownership patterns should be addressed, and the construction industry has to create an 
environment where emerging contractors graduate into sustainable businesses. The key programmes in this regard are: 
Implementation of the Construction Sector Charter Codes; the National Contractor Development Programme (NCDP), 
driven by the Construction Industry Development Board (cidb); the Contractor Incubator Programme (CIP) contributing 
to the development of emerging contractors between grades three and seven; the Property Incubator Programme (PIP); 
active participation in the Construction and Property Sector Charter Councils; and new legislation to facilitate change 
in these sectors.

The Department’s entities reporting to the Minster, namely the Agrément South Africa (ASA), Council for the Built 
Environment (CBE), Construction Independent Development Board (cidb) and Independent Development Trust (idt), 

Saldanha Bay: Sea Border Aerial View
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play a vital role in the area of construction, property, provision of expert advice and delivery of infrastructure such as 
schools. 

Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE) 

In 2006, the Department developed a draft business case for the establishment of the PMTE due to the devolution 
of budgets and the introduction of accommodation charges. However, the concept of a fully-fledged PMTE was not 
finalised. Furthermore, the Department failed to segregate properly the functions of its “main account” from those of the 
PMTE. This contributed significantly to both the Department and the PMTE receiving disclaimed audit opinions over the 
past years. The intervention to establish the PMTE to achieve greater transparency and cost-saving for the Department, 
created an adverse impact on the credibility of the Department. The Department has mapped out a plan that details the 
interim, medium to long term measure to organise the PMTE.

In relation to systems, the PMTE is still operating without the relevant financial systems that are critical for enabling 
compliance with GRAP. The business requirements in terms of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) 
requirements as well as the technical requirements were developed and documented. The procurement of the new 
financial system will be put to the open market during the 2013/14 financial year. In the meantime, the PMTE continues 
to use the Basic Accounting System (BAS), that is a “cash based” system. All balances have to be converted to accrual 
figures at year-end. All reports are based on manual processes that have to be updated on a monthly basis and all 
accounting treatments (e.g. impairments and discounting) are also performed manually on these balances. To ensure 
accuracy, reconciliations are done on a monthly basis on all accounts and between operational systems to ensure that any 
discrepancies are identified and dealt with expeditiously. Significant progress has been made in terms of completeness 
and accuracy of figures, especially those relating to previous year’s balances.

Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) 

Through the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP), many work opportunities were created through various projects 
during the financial year under review. Although some targets may have not been fully achieved due to implementation 
challenges, inter alia, it is evident that the programme’s achievements impacted on creating work opportunities for the 
unskilled and reducing poverty amongst the poor in the country. In addition, the benefits of the EPWP on beneficiaries, 
especially with regard to addressing household food security are visible.

Projects 

In terms of projects done by the Department, for the year under review, 214 projects were completed achieving status 6A 
stage (construction is completed in terms of all tender conditions and specifications). Under the Department’s Capital, a 
total of 264 projects were at the commitment stages of construction, while 348 projects and 68 projects (varying in status) 
were on construction stages. These projects will continue into the next financial year. The projects were achieved despite 
some challenges such as late awarding of projects, especially those above R20 million in tender value as well as capacity 
constraints with regard to project leaders. In addressing the capacity challenges, the Department established a joint 
professional team consisting of Architects, Engineers, and Quantity Surveyors in these regions to provide professional 
and technical support to project managers starting in the financial year 2013/14.

Strategic Asset Investment Analysis 

Extensive work took place during the period under review to ensure that the information required for the Immovable 
Asset Register (IAR) meets the completeness assertion. The programme focused on confirmation of registered properties 
and verification of discrepancies identified, during the desktop deeds reconciliation process for state land custodians 
as at 31 March 2013. This verification and confirmation process resulted in adjustments to the National Department of 
Public Works and relevant custodians’ asset registers, to ensure that the correct properties were recorded and accounted 
for by relevant custodians. Outstanding issues pertaining to the status of IARs are addressed through various forums 
between National Treasury and custodians in the national and the provincial spheres of government. Furthermore, 
and in order to address accuracy and existence requirements, the Department appointed service providers to conduct 
physical verification of all immovable assets under its custodianship, which will take place in the 2013/14 financial year. 
In addition, the Department continues to engage with all relevant national and provincial stakeholders to support 
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the national programme on immovable asset register. This will ensure that all management assertions (completeness, 
accuracy, existence, rights and obligations, valuations, and presentation and disclosure) for IARs are addressed.

In an effort to ensure that User Departments are accommodated in functional buildings, the Department embarked on 
enhancing the condition and increasing the value of State’s immovable assets through the Rehabilitation Programme. In 
the year under review, 6 State-owned buildings were rehabilitated to accommodate various User Departments.

Further, in ensuring that Government services are accessible to people with disabilities, the Department through its 
Accessibility Programme made 11 State-owned buildings accessible.

In addressing Outcome 8 which relates to provision of decent human settlements, the Department approved the release 
of 433.0026 hectares for human settlements to Housing Development Agency and municipalities. 

Inner City regeneration 

An Inner City Master Plan was completed in the financial under review for Tshwane. The Master Plan encapsulates a vision 
for the City as an African Capital City and demonstrates how Government’s presence in the Inner City creates a catalyst 
for Inner City regeneration and development. Precinct Plans were completed for Salvokop, Paul Kruger and Marabastad 
zones. Through concerted and multiple actions by all levels of government, these plans will deliver a combination of 
safety, cleanliness, efficiency, and urban management to drive the alignment of public service improved infrastructure, 
including planning for funding and appropriate delivery models. 

Towards the creation of a government estate in Salvakop, the Department of Statistics South Africa was provided with 
site development guidelines that enabled them to finalise their Public Private Partnership tender for a new head office 
at Salvokop. Engagement with other prioritised departments were initiated for their optimal placement within the 
Salvakop Precinct. 

Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP)

The Department conducted a situational analysis and identified projects for improvement over the three-year cycle. 
The following projects were identified as high impact service delivery areas: Acquisition of accommodation through 
construction, leasing of accommodation and provision of day-to-day maintenance services. Governance structures to 
give effect to SDIP were approved.

Organisational Environment 

In the past, the Department was fraught by a number of changes at management level and the financial year under review 
was not immune to the challenge. Some of the challenges, because of their nature, could not be resolved immediately, 
resulting in structural fissures. In an effort to address some of the structural challenges and management stability, the 
Department appointed a permanent Director-General and Chief Financial Officer to help steer the Department in the 
right direction. This meant that plans had to be revised with the intention to improve business efficiency and deliverables 
that meet the broader government objectives. 

Key policy developments and legislative changes 

The Department as a major shareholder of the sector entities, has during the period under review, developed business 
cases for the Independent Development Trust (IDT) and Agrément South Africa (ASA). The former seeks to IDT’s mandate 
and address the future sustainability of the entity while the latter is intended to establish the entity as a juristic person. 
Furthermore, the Construction Industry Development (cidb) Amendment Regulations, 2013 was published for public 
comment on 5 October 2012. The public comment phase closed on 5 December 2012. The requirements for registration 
were improved. Contractors will be better able to maintain their grades with the cidb and to upgrade. The final Regulations 
are being reviewed by the Department. The draft Built Environment Professions (BEP) Policy was developed to address 
challenges and shortcomings in the functioning and regulation of the built environment professions.

The Department continued the development of the draft Expropriation Bill to ensure consistency with the Constitution 
and uniformity in the expropriation of property by all organs of state.
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Overview of Departmental Performance (continues)

2.3 Strategic outcome oriented goals
Directed by the mandate and the performance agreement of the Executive Authority that is central to the planning of 
the Department. Further attention is paid to three sector outcomes: decent employment through inclusive economic 
growth (Outcome 4); sustainable human settlements and an improved quality of household life (Outcome 8) and an 
efficient, effective and development oriented public service and an empowered, fair and inclusive citizenry (Outcome 
12). The Department also provides full support to the realisation of a skilled and capable workforce (Outcome 5) and the 
creation of an efficient, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network (Outcome 6).

Progress on DPW’s contribution to the National Outcomes

•	 Outcome 4

The Department of Public Works is responsible for leading and co-coordinating the Expanded Public Works 
Programme (EPWP). The second phase of the EPWP covers the period from 2009/10 to 2014/15 and it aims to 
create 4.5 million work opportunities over a 5-year period. During the 2012/13 financial year year, 941 593 work 
opportunities were created under EPWP.

•	 Outcome 8 

Departments from all spheres of government are required to release land for human settlements development 
purposes. As indicated above, the Department of Public Works, in consultation with the Department of Human 
Settlements contributes to the mobilisation of well-located public land for low income and affordable housing. In 
this regard, the Department of Public Works released 433.0026 hectares of land for human settlement purposes 
during the period under review.

•	 Outcome 12 

The Department of Public Works will contribute to the access of government services through the provision 
of office accommodation. During the period under review, the Department of Public Works constructed 214 
building projects, of which 11 buildings were made accessible to people with disabilities and 6 properties were 
rehabilitated in an effort to improve the physical environment where government services are rendered.

Progress on National Development Plan 

The National Development Plan contains proposals for addressing the problems of poverty, inequality and 
unemployment in the country. It is a roadmap to a South Africa, where all South Africans will have water, electricity, 
sanitation, jobs, housing, public transport, adequate nutrition, education, social protection, quality healthcare, recreation 
and a clean environment. The Department will contribute to the priorities in the National Development Plan through the 
implementation of a number of initiatives.

 Lamberts Bay police station
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Overview of Departmental Performance (continues)

Environmental Sustainability and Resilience 

In operationalising the Long Term Mitigation Strategy (LTMS) of government within the built environment, the DPW 
(through its entities such as CBE and cidb) engaged International organisations and programmes such as the United 
Nations Environment Programme- Sustainable Building Climate Initiative (UNEP-SBCI) and the United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change which located the built environment as one of the foremost contributors to Greenhouse 
gas emission, with a footprint of 40 percent of total emissions and a high potential for mitigation measures.

As a lead Department in the built environment sector, the Department of Public Works is in a process of establishing 
a Project Management Office for its Built Environment Green Economy Programme (BEGEP) that is aimed at bringing 
effect to the Department’s Green Building Framework, supporting South Africa’s commitments to the Kyoto Protocol, 
and contributing towards the implementation of the National Climate Change Response White Paper.

BEGEP will encompass energy efficiency, water efficiency, sustainable waste management, building retrofitting, eco-
labelling of building materials and processes, and Green Building rating metrics aligned to international best-practice, 
socio-economic development trajectory, social-cohesion, and promote African epistemologies on sustainable building. 
The programme will coordinate the work and prescripts of DPW and its entities, i.e. CBE, cidb, ASA, and IDT.

Performance information on concurrent mandate

The National Department of Public Works assisted the Provincial Department of Public Works to developed a revised 
set of performance indicators for Programme two (2) –Immovable Asset Management and three (3) – Expanded Public 
Works Programme for the financial year 2013/14. This is an institutional support role played by the National Department 
as required by the Framework for Managing Performance Information (FMPPI). 

Tweefontein police station in KwaMhlanga

The newly built Myra Primary School
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Overview of Departmental Performance (continues)

2.4 Performance Information by Programme 
The Department has five programmes and below is a brief description of each. 

Programme 1: Administration

Purpose: To provide strategic leadership and support services, including the accommodation needs and overall 
management of the Department.

Sub-Programmes:

•	 Ministry

•	 Management

•	 Corporate Services

•	 Office Accommodation 

Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management

Purpose: To provide and manage the Government’s immovable property portfolio in support of Government’s social, 
economic, functional and political objectives.

Sub-Programmes:

•	 Infrastructure (Public Works)

•	 Strategic Asset Investment Analysis

•	 Special Projects

•	 Operations Management

•	 Prestige Management

•	 Property Management

•	 Augmentation of the PMTE

•	 Construction Industry Development Board

•	 Council for the Built Environment

•	 Parliamentary Village Management Board 

•	 Independent Development Trust
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Overview of Departmental Performance (continues)

Programme 3: Expanded Public Works Programme

Purpose: To create work opportunities and provide training (in targeted sub-programmes) for unskilled, marginalised 
and unemployed people of South Africa by coordinating the implementation of the Expanded Public Works Programme.

Sub-Programmes:

•	 Expanded Public Works Programme

•	 Performance-based Incentive Allocations

Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry Policy Regulation

Purpose: To regulate and promote the growth and transformation in the construction and property industries and to 
promote uniformity and best practices in construction and immovable asset management in the public sector.

Sub-Programmes:

•	 Construction Industry Development Programme 

•	 Property Industry Development Programme

Programme 5: Auxiliary and Associated Services

Purpose: To provide for various services, including compensation for losses on the Government-assisted housing scheme 
and assistance to organisations for the preservation of national memorials and to meet the protocol responsibilities for 
state functions.

Sub-Programmes:

•	 Compensation for Losses

•	 Distress Relief

•	 Loskop Settlement

•	 Assistance to Organisations for the Preservation of National Memories

•	 State Functions

•	 Sector Education and Training Authority

Lamberts Bay police station



34 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

1:
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e:
 P

ro
vi

de
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
an

d 
ov

er
al

l m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

ST
RA

TE
G

IC
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 

Su
b-

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

ou
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
r

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
11

/1
2

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
12

/2
01

3
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/2

01
3

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 to

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t f
or

 
20

12
/2

01
3

Co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
D

ev
ia

tio
ns

Su
bm

is
si

on
 a

nd
 

ta
bl

in
g 

of
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 A
nn

ua
l 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
la

n 
to

 
Pa

rli
am

en
t a

lig
ne

d 
to

 
al

l r
el

ev
an

t p
re

sc
rip

ts
.

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 A

nn
ua

l 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 P

la
n 

(A
PP

) 
w

er
e 

ta
bl

ed
 in

 P
ar

lia
m

en
t 

on
 7

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

to
 th

e 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 C

om
m

itt
ee

.

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 
A

nn
ua

l P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 w
ith

 T
re

as
ur

y 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

re
le

va
nt

 p
re

sc
rip

ts

Th
e 

fin
al

 2
01

3/
14

 A
nn

ua
l 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
la

n 
w

as
 ta

bl
ed

 
in

 P
ar

lia
m

en
t o

n 
12

 M
ar

ch
 

20
13

. T
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

w
as

 
no

t r
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 re
-t

ab
le

d 
as

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

in
is

te
r f

or
 

th
e 

5-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d 

N
on

e

U
pd

at
ed

 ri
sk

 re
gi

st
er

s
Re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
/p

ol
ic

y

Ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ep
or

ts
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

(A
RM

C)
.

Ri
sk

 R
eg

is
te

rs
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 

al
l u

ni
ts

 fo
r 2

01
1/

12
.

Ri
sk

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

s 
si

gn
ed

 o
ff 

fo
r 2

01
1/

12
 

(1
00

%
 c

om
pl

et
ed

)

80
%

 o
f D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l R

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

s 
up

da
te

d
A

nn
ua

l r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t r
ev

ie
w

s 
fo

r 2
01

2/
13

 w
as

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 fo

r 
al

l b
ra

nc
he

s 
in

 h
ea

d 
offi

ce
 a

nd
 

11
 re

gi
on

al
 o

ffi
ce

s.

20
12

/1
3 

ris
k 

re
gi

st
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r h
ea

d 
offi

ce
 a

nd
 

re
gi

on
s

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 35

Performance Indicators
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
IN

TE
RN

A
L 

AU
D

IT
 A

N
D

 IN
V

ES
TI

G
AT

IO
N

 S
ER

V
IC

ES

Su
b 

- P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 S
er

vi
ce

s

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

ou
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

11
/2

01
2

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
2/

20
13

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
12

/2
01

3

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 

pl
an

ne
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 

ac
tu

al
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t f

or
 

20
12

/2
01

3

Co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
D

ev
ia

tio
ns

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pl

an
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

y 
M

ay

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
Pl

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 o
n 

27
 M

ay
 

20
11

 b
y 

Au
di

t a
nd

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
.

1 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
M

ay
 

20
12

 b
y 

Au
di

t a
nd

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
.

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
Pl

an
 (A

nn
ua

l 
Pl

an
) a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 A

RM
C 

on
 

29
 M

ay
 2

01
2.

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pl

an
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ad
 

Au
di

t r
ep

or
ts

 is
su

ed
 

to
 E

XC
O

 a
nd

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

•	
75

.5
 %

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
ud

it 

•	
7 

re
po

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 to

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

9 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 to

 E
XC

O
 a

nd
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Co
m

m
itt

ee

2 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 to

 E
XC

O
 a

nd
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Co
m

m
itt

ee

Cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 is
 

at
 6

5%
 a

nd
 

Ac
tu

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 
19

.5
%

 

•	
H

R 
D

at
a 

A
na

ly
si

s/
St

aff
 

Co
m

pl
em

en
t (

IT
) A

ud
it

•	
Tr

an
sf

er
 P

ay
m

en
ts

-
En

tit
ie

s

Ta
rg

et
 N

ot
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

7 
au

di
ts

 w
er

e 
ov

er
la

ps
 

fr
om

 2
01

1/
20

12
:

•	
PM

TE

•	
SA

S 
– 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Co
nt

ro
ls

 R
ev

ie
w

•	
D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 R

ev
en

ue
 

(D
O

RA
)- 

Tr
an

sf
er

s

•	
IT

 G
en

er
al

 C
on

tr
ol

s 
Re

vi
ew

 (G
CR

) -
 A

D
 H

O
C

•	
Fo

llo
w

 U
p 

on
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

au
di

ts
: I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

&
 

AG
 F

in
di

ng
s

•	
Au

di
t o

f P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

•	
EP

W
P 

(C
om

pl
ia

nc
e)



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 41

Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)

Su
b-

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

es

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

ou
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

11
/1

2
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

12
/2

01
3

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
12

/2
01

3
D

ev
ia

tio
n 

fr
om

 
pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 to
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

fo
r 2

01
2/

20
13

Co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
D

ev
ia

tio
ns

Se
cu

rit
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 p
er

so
nn

el
.

28
6 

ve
tt

in
g 

fil
es

 fo
r 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 o

ffi
ci

al
s 

w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.

80
 p

rio
rit

iz
ed

 p
er

so
nn

el
 to

 
be

 v
et

te
d.

99
 V

et
tin

g 
fil

es
 w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

an
d 

se
nt

 to
 th

e 
SS

A
 fo

r f
ur

th
er

 
ha

nd
lin

g 
an

d 
32

 s
ec

ur
ity

 
cl

ea
ra

nc
es

 w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
.

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

Re
su

lts
 o

f s
cr

ee
ne

d 
co

m
pa

ni
es

.
73

3 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 w
er

e 
ve

tt
ed

.
20

0 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 to
 b

e 
sc

re
en

ed
. 

24
6 

of
 th

e 
24

6 
co

m
pa

ny
 

sc
re

en
in

g 
re

qu
es

ts
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
d.

 

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

of
 w

om
en

, p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s, 
an

d 
yo

ut
h 

in
 D

PW
 b

us
in

es
s. 

-
5%

 in
cr

ea
se

 fr
om

 2
01

1/
12

 o
n 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
of

 w
om

en
 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 D
PW

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

. 

Yo
ut

h

25
0 

gi
rls

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
ta

ki
ng

 a
 g

irl
 c

hi
ld

 to
 w

or
k.

12
0 

bo
ys

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
“M

en
 

in
 th

e 
M

ak
in

g 
Ca

m
pa

ig
n”

.

W
om

en

87
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e.

40
0 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ad

vo
ca

cy
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e/

Aw
ar

en
es

s.

30
 w

om
en

 in
 S

M
S 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

SM
S 

W
om

en
 F

or
um

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

32
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e

Ta
rg

et
 N

ot
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

Su
bm

is
si

on
 fo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 d

el
ay

ed
.



50 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
PR

O
JE

C
TS

 A
N

D
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
SE

RV
IC

ES

Su
b-

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 in

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
effi

ci
en

t i
m

m
ov

ab
le

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
 e

na
bl

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 b
ot

h 
sh

or
t a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 w

or
k 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, s
o 

as
 to

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l 
go

al
 o

f j
ob

 c
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
po

ve
rt

y 
al

le
vi

at
io

n

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

11
/1

2
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

12
/2

01
3

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
12

/2
01

3
D

ev
ia

tio
n 

fr
om

 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 to
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

fo
r 2

01
2/

20
13

Co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
D

ev
ia

tio
ns

N
um

be
r o

f p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 (s

ta
tu

s 
6a

) w
ith

in
 H

ea
d 

O
ffi

ce
 

an
d 

11
 R

eg
io

na
l 

O
ffi

ce
s 

as
 p

er
 th

e 
CW

IP
s 

an
d 

PI
M

P

23
7 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

20
0 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 (s
ta

tu
s 

6a
) a

s 
pe

r t
he

 C
W

IP
s 

an
d 

PI
M

P 
by

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

Bl
oe

m
fo

nt
ei

n 
- 2

7 
Ca

pe
 To

w
n 

– 
26

 
D

ur
ba

n-
 2

7 
Jo

ha
nn

es
bu

rg
 –

 2
2 

H
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

 - 
2 

Ki
m

be
rle

y 
- 1

9 
M

m
ab

at
ho

 –
 1

4 
N

el
sp

ru
it 

– 
12

 
Po

lo
kw

an
e 

– 
14

 
Po

rt
 E

liz
ab

et
h 

– 
20

 
Pr

et
or

ia
 –

 1
0 

U
m

ta
ta

 -7

21
4 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

up
da

te
d 

on
 W

CS
Ta

rg
et

 A
ch

ie
ve

d

Ad
di

tio
na

l 1
4 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

/ 1
07

%



56 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)

Su
b-

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

in
 a

ll 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
s 

to
 m

ee
t c

lie
nt

’s 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 le

ve
ra

ge
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 re

la
tio

ns

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
r

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
11

/1
2

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
12

/2
01

3
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/2

01
3

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 to

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
fo

r 2
01

2/
20

13

Co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
D

ev
ia

tio
ns

N
um

be
r o

f  
St

at
e-

ow
ne

d 
an

d 
le

as
ed

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ve
rifi

ed
 fo

r 
pa

ym
en

ts
 o

f M
un

ic
ip

al
 

se
rv

ic
es

, r
at

es
 a

nd
 

ta
xe

s

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

11
5%

N
um

be
r o

f p
ay

m
en

ts
: 

91
 4

57

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
:  

R 
2.

61
8 

bi
lli

on
. 

10
0%

Ve
rifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 2
00

90
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
fo

r p
ay

m
en

t o
f 

ce
rt

ifi
ed

 in
vo

ic
es

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys

Bl
oe

m
fo

nt
ei

n 
- 2

19
8 

D
ur

ba
n-

 2
29

7 
Jo

ha
nn

es
bu

rg
 –

 2
08

1 
Ca

pe
 To

w
n 

- 4
53

5 
Ki

m
be

rle
y–

 1
90

0 
Po

rt
 E

liz
ab

et
h-

 1
69

0 
Pr

et
or

ia
– 

74
9 

M
m

ab
at

ho
 –

10
84

 
N

el
sp

ru
it 

– 
15

03
 

Po
lo

kw
an

e 
– 

14
19

 
U

m
ta

ta
 -6

34

23
3 

46
6 

ce
rt

ifi
ed

 in
vo

ic
es

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 w

er
e 

pa
id

Bu
dg

et
 a

llo
ca

te
d:

  
R0

 (R
ec

ov
er

ab
le

).

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
: 

R2
 9

36
 8

18
 6

30
.8

5 
bi

lli
on

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

Ti
m

eo
us

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

 
of

 in
vo

ic
es

 b
y 

M
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es

Ti
m

eo
us

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

 
of

 in
vo

ic
es

 b
y 

M
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es

Ra
te

s 
an

d 
Ta

xe
s 

87
%

N
um

be
r o

f p
ay

m
en

ts
: 8

83
4

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
: R

51
4 

m
ill

io
n 

79
%

4 
86

0 
ce

rt
ifi

ed
 in

vo
ic

es
 re

ce
iv

ed
 

w
er

e 
pa

id
.

Bu
dg

et
 a

llo
ca

te
d:

 
R7

16
 8

76
 0

00

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
:  

R7
86

 8
69

 4
20

.6
2

Ti
m

eo
us

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

 
of

 in
vo

ic
es

 b
y 

M
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es



64 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)
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Performance Indicators (continued)

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

The Department is experiencing many complex challenges. These challenges are both internal (structures, processes, 
systems, capacity and capability and performance) and external (stakeholder relations and impaired public perceptions). 
Most of them predate the existing leadership of the Department and have not been adequately addressed over the past 
several years.

The Report of the Auditor-General highlighted the need for a serious review of the management systems of the 
Department. The Special Investigation Unit also conducted investigations regarding alleged irregularities. The 
Department is committed to improve the management systems and actively addressing issues of fraud and corruption.

In response to this situation, the Department initiated the development of a turnaround strategy in January 2012. This 
strategy and its associated high-level project plan, defines the process of organisational review and renewal that will 
ensure compliance with the mandate and satisfactory audits.

Short-term stabilisation interventions were defined and others may be added. Stabilised areas will create the potential 
for more fundamental change that can bring large efficiency gains, through better practice and improved policy options. 
The stabilisation of management is critical.

Key areas of attention in the turnaround strategy include Supply Chain Management, Lease Management, the Property 
Management Trading Entity (PMTE), the Immovable Asset Register (IAR) and a lack of professional and technical skills in 
the built-industry environment. These are addressed below:

Lack of controls in Supply Chain Management 

A core driver to the transformation of operations of the Department is the efficiency enhancement of the Finance and 
Supply Chain Management (SCM) operations. In this regard, a service provider was appointed towards the end of the 
reporting period to assist with a fundamental review of these functions and the capacitation of the affected units. This 
intervention will operate until July 2014. Post this intervention, the Department will have all the necessary controls, 
systems and processes in place for the Department to take full responsibility of these important functions.

The project consists of three core focus areas of operations: 

The Departmental (DPW) main Account. 

•	 The Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE) Account, 

•	 Supply Chain Management across all regions and head office. 

The Department’s capacity to process tenders, perform Supply Chain Management and project manage construction, 
maintenance and lease contracts, has been severely eroded. The resultant lack of financial controls and mismanagement 
provided fertile ground for fraud and corruption. The scale of mismanagement and corruption is only now coming 
to light owing largely to the detailed forensic work of the Special Investigating Unit. Consequently, the Supply Chain 
Management processes are being critically reviewed both to combat waste and corruption as well as expedite delivery 
and supplier payments. 

These concerns are being addressed across several dimensions:

•	 Four discrete supply chain streams are being designed to address the differing needs of clients and projects;

-- Prestige 

-- Infrastructure projects 

-- Acquisition of poperty for leasing

-- Goods and services
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Performance Indicators (continued)

•	 Supply chain controls are being improved through process redesign. Gaps are being identified with SCM 
processes and plugged. In addition suspect contracts are being investigated extensively. This will take between 
12-18 month to conduct.

•	 Supplier payment lead times are being progressively reduced to the targeted 30 days. While there is a backlog, 
this process should be up-to-date by end of third quarter of 2013/2014 financial year. All new supplier invoices 
are already being settled within 30 days.

•	 The supplier database is being overhauled for relevance.

•	 Supply Chain experts and a service provider were appointed to run the intervention in the absence of adequate 
organisational skills and capability.

•	 Revised Policy on SCM.

Poor lease management 

Building on earlier work by the Auditor-General and the Special Investigations Unit, and with the assistance of National 
Treasury, the Department embarked on a review of all lease agreements, including leases of government-owned 
properties. The irregularities in the leasing environment created unmanageable legal and reputational risks, lack of value 
for money and directly affected service delivery. The purpose of this exercise is to resolve the backlog of leases: deal with 
the leases that are due to expire: conduct a forensic audit to establish lease irregularities; conduct a physical verification 
of the condition, extent, occupation and use of leased properties; recover monies owed to the Department; review and 
strengthen the business processes, policies, strategy and systems of the Department relating to lease management: and 
to train and capacitate staff accordingly.

A joint Departmental and service provider team is in place. Challenges were experienced in sourcing information and 
documentation for the Lease Review. These impacted on the Department’s ability to conduct a physical verification 
of leased accommodation. At this stage, only 42 percent of floor plans and contact details are in place. As a result, the 
project is approximately one month behind schedule.

The lease backlog is being progressively addressed by a newly-established Bid Adjudication Committee for Leases.

To date, 100 percent the 2 778 leases were reviewed. Of the 2 778, 1 316 were leases that required attention, revision or 
renewal. These were regarded as backlog leases. Of the backlog leases, recommendations were made in respect of 365 
leases. These included leases for Pretoria, Nelspruit and Polokwane. Recommendations for the remaining 951 leases will 
made in the financial year 2013/14.

Lack of an appropriate accounting platform for the PMTE

The creation of the PMTE was approved by National Treasury in 2006. It has only recently been formalised. This was long 
overdue and a source of embarrassment to the Department. It was also the source of many of the issues identified by 
the Auditor-General.

An interim operating model was developed and implemented and, with effect from the 1st April 2013, PMTE and DPW 
main account activities will be separate. The PMTE has, ahead of schedule, adopted GRAP as its accounting system and 
the first formal training interventions were completed.

A detailed business case is under development and will be submitted to Cabinet for approval in 2013/14. This relates to 
the final structure of the PMTE.

The new entity requires a different accounting platform to that used by the DPW. The move from a modified cash basis 
to GRAP has far-reaching impacts. A business needs assessment was completed on the billing and accounting system 
requirements.

There are several options that are being explored in terms of systems selection. These will be finalised by September 
2013.
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Inadequate Immovable Asset Register

The Department is in the process of rebuilding its immovable asset register. As part of this process, it is reviewing the 
current structure and operating model to maintain this database of state property in conjunction with the provinces and 
other key custodians. The rebuilt and revised operating model will not only provide the right data and tools to ensure 
compliance but will also provide the type of data base required to support DPW’s core business, enable the right level of 
integration with its clients’ needs and support specific asset and portfolio management principles. The asset register will 
be integrated with the required billing, asset management (UAMPs and CAMPs), budgeting, accounting and reporting 
systems.

As the major custodian of State immovable assets, the DPW is responsible for the planning, acquisition, management 
and disposal of State immovable properties vested in the national government, hence the Immovable Asset Register is 
key to the custodial role which the Department plays, in relation to the planning and management of state immovable 
assets. 

As reflected historically in reports from the Auditor General, the absence of a compliant Immovable Asset Register has 
significantly contributed of the Department’s successive negative audit opinions. 

The compilation of a comprehensive and compliant Immovable Asset Register is paramount. This exercise involves a 
joint-DPW and service provider team. A significant amount of work is required to resolve a multitude of unresolved legacy 
issues which requires extensive interaction with the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform, Provinces, 
National Treasury and other stakeholders. We are developing a fair value model to value the Immovable Assets and a 
compliant capitalisation policy to ensure that it remains properly valued, going forward.

The state land reconciliation has been substantially completed and the asset register updated. The results currently 
reflect the following:

Custodian Number of land parcels

National DPW 28 841

DRDLR 25 435

9 Provincial Departments of Public Works 50 606

9 Provincial Departments of Human Settlements 70 176

Work in progress, still to be allocated 1 174

Other custodians being confirmed 3 341

Total according to original Deeds downloaded 179 573

These figures will form the basis of a physical verification process due to commence in 2013/14.

The Department commenced work in conjunction with the Chief Surveyor-General in addressing the completeness and 
accuracy of surveyed land not registered and other unregistered state land.

The Department established a process of engagement with the identified state land custodians on an ongoing basis, to 
update registers and keep track of the balance of registered land parcels. This has never been attempted before and is 
proving to be more time-consuming than expected.

Further, the Department has targeted the completion of the Immovable Asset Register in line with the revised 
requirements of the PMTE established with effect from 1 April 2013. This requires us to substantially complete the IAR by 
31 March 2015 with the final adjustments effected by 31 March 2016.

A total of about 24 000 land parcels lying in the regions still need to be vested. These are planned for completion by 
March 2016.
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Road construction under EPWP 

Lack of built environment and property management skills across the value chain

Several years ago, the state, including the Department, employed artisans and professionals, including engineers, 
architects, and quantity surveyors etc. to construct and maintain buildings. Despite the existence of pockets of skills 
within the Department, there is a significant lack of technical capacity to undertake direct construction and maintenance 
functions – as well as to effectively manage relations with contractors and service providers. 

The Department recently started reversing this trend through the resuscitation of regional workshop facilities, prioritising 
Pretoria and Cape Town, and employing trainee artisans. We have secured cooperation from the Department of Public 
Service and Administration and the Department of Higher Education and Training to assist in the training of artisans and 
technicians. 

The Department has initiated a Professionals Insourcing Strategy to build-in capacity of built environment professionals 
who will continue to assist the Department for the three to five year duration. 

The task of capacitating the Department is a significant one as the built environment and property management industry 
is suffering from a general shortage of skills, making attraction and retention of appropriate resources a challenging task.

Expanded Public Works Programme 

The Expanded Public Works Programme is one of the Government arrays of programmes, aimed at providing poverty 
and income relief through temporary work for the unemployed to carry out socially useful activities. This programme 
cuts across all spheres of government. One of the challenges facing the Department regarding EPWP projects at local 
government level, has been the ability to implement projects with ease. Therefore, the Department has deployed 
technical support to municipalities to assist in maximising EPWP job creation in all municipalities. The Department will 
fast track all projects that are implemented to ensure that the National Youth Services (NYS) programme achieves its 
targets.
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2.5 Summary of financial information
Departmental Receipts

The Department collected 53 795 million more than the target of R36 445 million as depicted in the table for departmental 
revenue below, which represent an overall increase of 33 percent of revenue collected for the financial year ended 31 
March 2013. Sale of goods and services other than capital assets, the revenue collected increased by 10% as a result of 
slight improvement on collection of debtors. There was no collection from sales of scrap, waste, arms and other used 
current goods. Fines, penalties and forfeits, the revenue collected decreased by 467 percent because fewer incidents 
of fines and penalties occurred during the year. There was no sale of capital assets during the financial year. Financial 
transactions were more by 82% as a result of old payables that was allocated to revenue.

Departmental revenue 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 % 
Deviation 

from Target
Actual Actual Target Target

R`000 R`000 R’000 R`000

Sale of goods and services other than capital 
assets 36 388 32 017 31 445 32 772 10%

Sales of scrap, waste, arms and other used 
current goods 35   467    

Fines, penalties and forfeits 12 3 17   -467%

Interest, dividends and rent on land 103 7 835 546   89%

Sales of capital assets 3 154 - 1 454 1 527  

Buildings and other fixed structures 3 154    -  -  -

Land and subsoil assets       1 527  

Financial transactions (recovery of loans and 
advances) 35 538 13 940 2 516 2 642 82%

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL RECEIPTS 75 195 53 795 36 445 36 941 33%

Programme Expenditure

Details 2012/13 2011/12

R`000 R`000

Budget Allocation 7 891 248 7 829 744

Actual expenditure 7 203 925 7 061 437

Spending as a percentage 91% 90%

Unspent funds   687 323 768 307

Unspent funds as a percentage 9% 10%

Mitchelle’s Plain police station
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Spending per Economic Classification

  2012/13 2011/12

  Final 
Appropria-

tion 

Actual 
Expendi-

ture 
Variance Exp as % 

Final 
Appropria-

tion 

Actual 
Expendi-

ture 
Exp as % 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 % 

Current payments              
Compensation of 
employees 1 381 450  1 374 552  6 898 100%  1 252 469 1 269 579 101%

Goods and 
services  1 203 845 977 014 226 831 81%  1 034 900 1 032 905 100%

Interest and rent 
on land 9 774  21  9 753 0.2%  1 586  1 567 99%

               

Transfers & 
subsidies              

Provinces & 
municipalities 3 090 982 2 969 955 121 027 96%  2 950 451  2 592 965 88%

Departmental 
agencies & 
accounts 

752 986  751 640  1 346 100%  734 690  732 486 100%

Foreign 
governments 
& international 
organisations 

18 941  15 436  3 505 82%  16 915  12 956 77%

Public 
corporations & 
private enterprises 

50 800  50 800  - 100%  150 000  150 000 100%

Non-profit 
institutions 282 724 292 627  (9 903) 104%  154 370  163 801 106%

Households 11 876  11 875  1 100%  3 968  4 012 101%

Gift & donation 3 20 (17) 668% 2 2 100%

Payment for 
capital assets              

Buildings & other 
fixed structures  999 254  713 003 286 251 71%  1 436 745  1 011 408 70%

Machinery & 
equipment  59 558  43 283  16 275 73%  84 984  81 162 96%

Software & other 
intangible assets 

 25 857  501 25 356 2%  6 639  6 569 99%

               

Payment for 
financial assets 3 198  3 198  - 100%   2 025  2 025 100%

               

 Total  7 891 248  7 203 925 687 323 91%  7 829 744  7 061 437 90%
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Notes to expenditure 

Current Payments: Compensation of employees

Expenditure for the compensation of employees is R1.375 billion and is equivalent to 100 percent of the allocation. 
Adjustment of R52 million from goods and services was approved by National Treasury to offset the projected over-
spending on compensation of employees.

Current Payments: Goods and services

Expenditure for the goods and services is R983 million and is equivalent to 82 percent of the allocation. Under-spending 
on goods and services relates to funds allocated for the Turnaround programme and office accommodation. Turnaround 
programme funds were allocated during the adjustment estimates and the delay in the appointment of the services 
provider resulted in funds being underspend. Under-spending in Office Accommodation is due to reconciliation of the 
leases between the Department and PMTE. Roll over was requested for the funds not spent during 2012/13 under Office 
Accommodation. 

Transfers and Subsidies

Expenditure for the transfers and subsidies is R4.092 billion and is equivalent to 97 percent of the allocation. Under-
spending in transfers and subsidies relate to funds declared as saving by Kwazulu-Natal Provincial Department of Public 
Works for funds related to Devolution of Property Rates Fund Grant to Provinces.

Payments for Capital Asset: Infrastructure

Expenditure for infrastructure is R713 million and is equivalent to 71 percent of the allocation. Under-spending in 
infrastructure is due to non-performance of the contractors, termination and technical problems on the project side, 
including vacant project managers’ posts in some regional offices.

Payments for Capital Assets: Machinery and Equipment

Expenditure for machinery and equipment is R43 million and expenditure is equivalent to 71 percent of the allocation. 
Under-spending in machinery and equipment is due to invoices received but could not be paid before the end of the 
financial year.

Payment for Capital Assets: Software and Intangible

Expenditure for software and intangible assets is R584 000 and is equivalent to 2 percent of the allocation. Under-
spending in software and intangible assets relate to funds received during the adjustment estimates for accounting 
system for the PMTE.

Palmridge Magistrates court
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Transfer Payments (excluding public entities)

Public Entities 

Name of Entity Service Rendered by 
the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity

Achievement of the 
Public Entity

1.	 Construction 
Industry 
Development 
Board 

Programme 1: Growth 
and Contractor 
Development (GCD) - 
focuses on promotion 
of enterprise 
and contractor 
development 
facilitated support 
towards increasing 
the participation of 
the emerging sector. 
The programme also 
oversees the cidb 
Provincial footprint 
and associated support 
offerings via the nine 
Provincial cidb Offices 
(Construction Contact 
Centre)

Transfer from 
DPW

R 67,614,000.00

Other funds 
generated

R 47,442,000.00

R27,031,403.00 •	 NCDP Framework 
and Guidelines for 
Implementing CDPs 
approved by MinMec 
on 21 September 
2012 and launched 
by the Minister on 6 
December 2012

•	 Client awareness and 
capacitation workshop 
on Framework and 
Guidelines completed 
in each of the nine 
provinces

•	 Provincial Construction 
Development Forums 
(PCDFs) held quarterly 
in each of the nine 
provinces

•	 Provincial Catalytic 
contractor 
development support 
projects in provinces 
via PCDF’s

•	 Targeted contractor 
training through 
partner associations 
and/or CDP intake as 
recipients

•	 Provincial cidb offices 
resourced and value-
add cidb services in all 
9 provinces

Palmridge Magistrates court
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Name of Entity Service Rendered by 
the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity

Achievement of the 
Public Entity

Programme 2: 
Construction Industry 
Performance - 
focuses on improved 
performance and 
best practice for 
an industry that 
delivers reliable 
value to clients, 
investors and end-
users, information 
on construction 
industry indicators to 
inform cidb strategy, 
policy makers and 
stakeholders.

R 8,719,249.00 •	 Standard for Indirect 
Targeting for Enterprise 
Development 
published in the 
Gazette on 25 February 
2013, which establishes 
an enterprise 
development contract 
participation goal 
(CPG). 

•	 Standard for Contractor 
Performance Reports 
for Grades 2 to 9 
gazetted for public 
comment on 25 
February 2013, which 
provides for a uniform 
and consistent 
method of assessment 
of performance of 
contractor with respect 
to time, cost, quality, 
health and safety 
safety, site conditions 
and and management 
of subcontractors.

•	 Report on the State 
of Sub-Contracting 
published in March 
2013 with the the 
primary objective to 
better understand skills 
development within 
the subcontracting 
sector – and to 
identify opportunities 
for improving skills 
development within 
this sector.

•	 Construction Industry 
Indicators (CIIs) 
published, monitoring 
perceptions of 
clients, professionals 
and contractors on 
procurement and 
construction factors, 
including construction 
quality, defects, 
delayed payments, etc. 
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Name of Entity Service Rendered by 
the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity

Achievement of the 
Public Entity

•	 4 SME Business 
Conditions Survey 
published, monitoring 
business confidence, 
tendering competition, 
employment, access to 
credit, access to skills, 
etc. 

•	 4 Quarterly Monitor 
published covered 
supply and demand 
factors, including 
number of contractors 
per grade, ownership 
profiles per grade, 
contractor upgrades, 
public sector spending 
per grade, spend vs. 
budget for provincial 
and municipal 
government, etc.

•	 4 Compliance Monitors 
published, monitoring 
compliance of national 
and provincial 
departments and 
metropolitan councils 
with iTender / Register 
of Project requirements 
for the registration of 
tenders and projects.

Programme 3: 
Procurement and 
Delivery Management 
- focuses on 
enhanced public 
sector construction 
procurement and 
infrastructure 
delivery, management 
capability of public 
sector clients, enabling 
efficient and effective 
delivery of quality 
infrastructure to the 
public

R 11,595,434.00 •	 Assessment report on 
the application and 
maintenance of the 
Infrastructure Delivery 
Management Toolkit 
(IDMT) was finalised 
and the assessment 
report shows that 
there is a general 
improvement in the 
level of application of 
the IDMT by provincial 
Departments of Public 
Works, Health and 
Education as compared 
to the previous 
financial years. 

•	 IDMT training course 
material was delivered 
by March 2013.
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Name of Entity Service Rendered by 
the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity

Achievement of the 
Public Entity

Programme 4: 
Construction 
Registers Service 
focuses on:

Registration of 
Contractors (ROC) for 
application in public 
sector construction 
work projects, and 
ROP which provides 
information on 
the nature, value 
and distribution of 
construction projects 
nationally

Implementation of 
regulations to align 
the Construction 
Registers Service with 
developments in the 
construction industry, 
ensuring that the 
Register is maintained 
as a macro risk 
management tool for 
the public sector, while 
taking into account the 
state of development 
of the emerging sector.

R 21,340.206 •	 New Customer 
Relationship 
Management 
(CRM) System was 
implemented in 
August 2012 in order 
to provide an improved 
service to stakeholders. 
The system was 
stabilised in February 
2013 and provides for 
improved registration 
services provincially. 

•	 Regulation 
amendments 
designed to improve 
the requirements 
for registration was 
published for public 
comment in October 
2012

Minister Thulas Nxesi opens Setumo Secondary School in Stella North West province 
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Name of Entity Service Rendered by 
the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity

Achievement of the 
Public Entity

Supporting 
Programmes:

Programme 5: Chief 
Executive’s Office 
focuses on:

•	 Overall strategic 
leadership, risk 
management 
and corporate 
governance in 
support of the 
Board;

•	 Marketing, 
stakeholder 
consultations and 
communications.

R 12,003,554.00 •	 National Stakeholder 
forum and Provisional 
stakeholder liaison 
meetings were 
successfully held. 

•	 Vision, Mission and 
Values of the cidb 
were reviewed and 
communicated to 
staff. This included 
the review of the 
cidb brand, for 
implementation in 
2013/14.

•	 Construction 
Transformation summit 
for the industry was 
hosted by cidb on 
behalf of DPW.

•	 The approved Internal 
Audit Plan was 
completed in the 
financial year

Programme 6: 
Corporate Services, 
responsible for:

•	 Financial 
management 
including registers 
fees;

•	 Human Resource 
administration;

•	 Supply Chain 
Management;

•	 Information 
Technology

•	 Facilities 
Management

R37,714.537 .00 •	 Fraud and corruption 
as well as PFMA 
awareness were 
workshopped with all 
staff 

•	 Compliance with 
PFMA and corporate 
governance was 
achieved in terms 
of the Board and 
subcommittee 
oversights.

•	 The interim external 
audit was conducted 
and concluded.

•	 The quarterly 
management accounts 
were done for all 
quarters.

•	 The review of the HR 
policies was started in 
November 2012. 

•	 The Delegations 
of authority and 
SCM policies were 
developed, approved 
and workshopped with 
all staff
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Name of Entity Service Rendered by 
the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity

Achievement of the 
Public Entity

•	 The vacant positions of 
key personnel within 
Corporate Services 
were filled: viz. CFO, 
HR Manager and SCM 
Manager.

•	 The servers for IT were 
upgraded nationally.

•	 The IT equipment was 
upgraded.

•	 A division for Facilities 
Management was 
established.

•	 The tender to 
upgrade the network 
infrastructure 
nationally, was 
finalised.

•	 The tender to review, 
upgrade and centralise 
the management of 
automation facilities: 
printing, faxes etc. was 
finalised.

Name of 
Public 
Entity 

Services 
rendered by the 
public entity 

Amount 
transferred 
to the public 
entity 

Amount spent 
by the public 
entity 

Achievements of the public entity 

Agrément 
South Africa

Undertaking 
technical 
assessments 
of innovative 
construction 
technologies

The amount 
for the annual 
grant was 
R8 686 842 for 
the 2012/2013 
financial year.

The total 
annual 
expenditure 
from the 
annual grant 
was R8 686 
842 for the 
2012/2013 
financial year.

Agrément South Africa received a total of 
33 applications for technical assessments 
in accordance with Agrément South Africa 
assessment criteria. Of these, a total of 30 
contract offers for assessment for fitness for 
purpose were submitted to the applicants. 

During the year under review a record number 
of 31 product assessments were finalised and 
successfully awarded Agrément certificates of 
fitness for purpose by the Board of Agrément 
South Africa. 

An Agrément certificate has a deemed to satisfy 
status in the national building regulations and 
can be used to show compliance therewith, thus 
allowing the benefits of innovation to be used in 
the construction industry.

The technical assessments provide a technical 
conduit for the safe introduction of new and 
improved standardised building materials which 
leads to improvements in performance of the 
construction industry.
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Name of Public 
Entity

Services Rendered 
by Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to 
Entity

Amount Spent 
by Public 
Entity

Achievements of the Public 
Entity

Independent 
Development 
Trust

Programme 
Management on 
behalf of national 
and provincial 
government 
departments

R50.8 million R50.8 million The IDT was not given a 2012/13 
baseline allocation, the R50.8m 
allocation was used to fund 
operational costs to deliver 
programmes to the value of R5.6 
billion 

R 190.5 m (51%) of the IDT’s 
budget was expended on 
Strategic Objective 1.2 focusing 
on Integrated Social Infrastructure 
Delivery. The R50.8m allocation 
constitutes 26.7% of these 
operational costs.

Key development performance 
indicators arising from this R5.6 
billion programme spend include:

•	 34 354: No. of Jobs created

•	 95% of the programme spend 
was directed at the delivery of 
social infrastructure

•	 259 social infrastructure 
facilities completed and 
handed over. Facilities 
included schools, clinics and 
multi-purpose centres. 

65% (R3.696bn): Programme 
spend was delivered by BBBEE 
contractors, 

31% (R1. 737m): Approximate 
value of contracts awarded to 
women-owned contractors 

11.8% (R 667.57m): Approximate 
value of Youth spend

104: No. of Contractor 
Development Programme 
participants of which xx are 
women
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Name of Public 
Entity

Services rendered by 
public entity

Amount 
transferred to 
entity

Amount spent 
by public 
entity

Achievements of the public entity

Council 
for Built 
Environment 

•	 Skills Development

•	 Research

•	 Public protection

R 28 146 000 R 28 146 000 Entity budget is augmented 
through other income such as 
levies from the professional council 
as well as interest on investment 
made.

33 students from previously 
disadvantaged backgrounds 
received CBE financial assistance 
through the bursary scheme

Framework developed on 
Structured Candidacy Programme

Research report on the state of 
the built environment professions 
completed.

Technical built environment 
skills capacity conducted in the 
following municipalities:

Tshwane, Johannesburg, Bojanala 
(Rustenburg), Mudiri (Mafikeng), 
Capricorn (Limpopo), Thabo 
Mafutsanyana (Free State), City 
of Cape Town and Winelands, 
King Dalintjebo (Eastern Cape), 
Ethekwini (Durban), Zululand 
(Ulundi), Francis Baard (Northern 
Cape), Pixley Kaseme (De Aar) 

 Built Environment Indaba hosted 
in March 2013

Completed 8 of 9 Engineering 
scopes of Identification of Work 
(IDoW) – which ring fences work 
that can only be undertaken by 
registered persons

Conditional Grants and earmarked funds paid

Conditional Grants and earmarked funds received

There were no conditional grants or earmarked funds received

Donor Funds 

There were no donor fund received by the Department



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 91

Linking performance with budgets (continues)

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

(a)	 The current state of the Department’s capital stock, for example what percentage is in good, fair or bad condition

Department

Condition of State-owned Buildings

Total
(Number and Percentage)

Very Good Good Fair Poor Very Poor

C5 C4 C3 C2 C1

Defence 1 0% 126 4% 2332 83% 335 12% 28 1% 2822 100%

Correctional 
Services

1 1% 11 6% 153 81% 20 11% 5 3% 190
100%

Justice 3 0% 103 14% 580 79% 35 5% 9 1% 730 100%

Other Clients 
Combined

34 4% 116 14% 631 73% 70 8% 8 1% 859
100%

SAPS 43 3% 145 10% 1014 70% 232 16% 14 1% 1448 100%

Unutilised 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 133 100% 133 100%

TOTALS 82 1% 501 8% 4710 76% 692 11% 197 3% 6182 100%

•	 The table above represents the number of buildings in the DPW portfolio for which high-level condition 
assessments were concluded in the year under review.

•	 Justice portfolio excludes condition ratings for all residential accommodation as the audit is on-going. 

•	 SAPS portfolio includes condition ratings for devolved police stations. 

•	 The number of properties under Defence is derived from the User Asset Management Plan (UAMP) 2012-2015 
and it includes residential units within complexes.

•	 Unutilised buildings comprise of offices only and reported at complex level. 

•	 DCS portfolio excludes condition rating for residential units both within and outside complexes. 

Saldana Bay 
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3.1 Introduction 
Good governance is essential for growth and development. When the principles of good governance are applied, it 
makes it possible for Departments to grow, improve their human capital, welfare, business efficiency, and ensure political 
stability, capacity and responsibility towards achieving the developmental goals and broader government priorities over 
a period of time. The Department commits to maintain the highest standards of governance.

3.1.1 Risk Management 

Nature of risk management 

The risk management process of the Department is structured and guided by an approved Risk Management Policy that 
is supported by a Risk Management Strategy. The Department established a Risk Management Committee (RMC) that 
convenes quarterly to look at the Department’s critical risks, emerging risks and advises the Accounting Officer. In the 
financial year ending 31st March 2013, the RMC met six times. 

Risk management strategies to identify and manage the risks 

During the fiscal year under review, the Department developed high level risks and separate risk registers for Head 
office and 11 regional offices with action plans. The Office of the Auditor General, Internal Audit and Investigations 
played a key role in risk management. Risks were monitored by requesting quarterly reports from the action owners and 
workshops/ meetings were held with regional offices to evaluate the implementation of the plans. 

Progress in addressing risks identified 

Whilst the Department managed to monitor the implementation of action plans, the following challenges still have to 
be addressed to ensure that risks identified are managed and mitigated to be within an acceptable level:

•	 No link between key strategic projects and the risks facing the Department

•	 Setting risk appetite and tolerance levels to guide the prioritisation of risks

•	 Review of key risks during the strategic planning sessions and incorporating risk management activities (including 
management actions) into the business plans

•	 Inclusion of risk management into the performance agreements of the heads of units and other personnel within 
the Department

•	 Costing of risk management controls and action plans for key strategic risks to guide the prioritisation of the 
management of key risks facing the Department

•	 Adequacy of risk management structure/capacity to optimally service the Department

3.1.2 Fraud and Corruption 

The Department’s Fraud Prevention Plan and its implementation

The Department developed a Fraud Prevention Plan (FPP) as required by the PFMA to ensure that it is able to respond 
to issues related to fraud and corruption. The Strategy recognises basic fraud and corruption prevention measures, that 
are already in place within DPW. Furthermore, it identifies fraud and corruption risks that must be addressed and which 
could jeopardise the successful implementation of the Fraud Prevention Strategy, and the achievement of the DPW goals.

Fraud Awareness Campaigns

The Department conducts on-going training with the officials and induction programmes are held for the new appointees 
to familarise themselves with the elements of fraud and corruption within their area of responsibility and for detection 
and prevention purposes.
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Investigations

The Directorate Fraud Awareness and Investigation conducts investigations on reported cases of fraud and corruption. 
Capacity is enhanced through the appointment of three services providers. The Unit is in the process of appointing a 
panel of service providers for a period of 24 months to capacitate the Unit by assisting in conducting investigations as 
and when cases are reported.

Mechanisms todisclose confidentially and report fraud and corruption 

The Department promotes the utilisation of the National Anti-Corruption Hotline to stakeholders to report allegations 
of fraud and corruption anonymously. The DPW web portal also makes provision for reporting to the Minister, Deputy 
Minister and Director General through the “Talk to Minister“, “Talk to Deputy Minister” and “Talk to DG”. Furthermore, all 
stakeholders are also encouraged to report fraudulent activities to either the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) or Director of 
Fraud Awareness and Investigations.

Reporting fraud and taking action 

All reported allegations of fraud and corruption are recorded on the allegations register maintained within Internal Audit 
and Investigations Unit and allocated a reference number for tracking purposes. This register is updated on a regular 
basis to track progress with regard to the status of the reported allegations. 

Upon completion of an investigation, the Unit provides an investigation report to the Accounting Officer and relevant 
Senior Management to consider and implement corrective actions i.e. criminal, civil and/or disciplinary action against 
identified transgressors.

3.1.3 Minimising Conflict of Interest 

Conflict of Interest

A conflict of interest is considered if a SCM practitioner or other role player, or any close family member, partner or 
associate of such official or other role player; 

•	 Has any private or business interest in any contract that is to be awarded

•	 Conducts activities that could reflect negatively on the reputation of the DPW and its personnel

•	 Participates in any activity that might lead to the disclosure of DPW proprietary information

•	 Conducts outside work for suppliers

 The affected official or role player must:

•	 Disclose the interest to the Head of the unit

•	 Withdraw completely from participating in the process relating to the contract or bid

Breaches

Employees and agents of DPW shall report to the Accounting Officer any alleged irregular conduct that they may become 
aware of, including any alleged fraud or corruption.



96 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Governance (continued)

3.1.4 Code of Conduct 

All officials and other role players involved in the SCM processes, must adhere to the National Treasury’s Code of 
Conduct for Supply Chain Management Practitioners and the Policy Strategy to guide uniformity in Procurement reform 
processes in Government, as well as directives regarding the code of conduct for SCM Practitioners. In addition, the cidb 
Code of Conduct for the parties engaged in Construction Procurement requires that the parties in any public or private 
construction-related procurement, in their dealings with each other:

•	 Behave equitably, honestly and transparently.

•	 Discharge duties and obligations timeously and with integrity.

•	 Comply with all applicable legislation and associated regulations.

•	 Satisfy all relevant requirements established in the procurement documents.

•	 Avoid conflicts of interest.

•	 Not maliciously or recklessly injure or attempt to injure the reputation of another party.

Reports on any perceived breaches or transgressions to the applicable code of conduct will be reported by the Accounting 
Officer to the applicable authority. These aspects of the code of conduct must be adhered to by all stakeholders within 
the SCM processes. 

3.1.5 Health Safety and Environmental Issues 

Section 8 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993 (OHSA) requires that every employer “shall provide 
and maintain, as far as is reasonably practicable, a working environment that is safe and without risk to the health of his 
employees.” This refers in particular to: 

•	 Taking such steps to eliminate or mitigate any potential hazard.

•	 Ensuring adherence to the requirements of the OHSA.

•	 Taking all necessary measures in the interest of health and safety.

The Department conducted inspections in various workplaces, including projects that were under construction to 
ensure compliance of OHSA. Regular Training was provided to departmental officials alerting them to the hazards that 
existed in the workplace. 
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Audit Committee Report

1. Report of the audit and risk management committee for the year 
ended 31 March 2013

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

2. Audit and Risk Management Committee Members and 
Attendance

In the course of the year under review, the term of the preceding Audit and Risk Management Committee (the Audit 
Committee or the Committee) expired and accordingly, the Department duly appointed a new Audit Committee. Our 
reporting under this sub-section therefore, reflects this transition.

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference (the audit charter) provide for the Committee to meet at least four times in a 
financial year. During the year under review, meetings were held as follows:

2.1 The Outgoing Audit Committee:

The Outgoing Audit Committee covering the period 01 April 2012 to 30 September 2012 held three meetings. Attendance 
at these meetings was as follows:

No of members Name of member Number of meetings attended

1. Ms V. Zitumane - Chairperson 3

2. Ms V.F. Memani-Sedile 0

3. Advocate O.C. Mabaso 1

4. Commissioner B. Seruwe 1

5. Ms N. Noxaka 3

2.2 The Incoming Audit Committee:

The Incoming Audit Committee covering the period 01 October 2012 – 31 March 2013 held two meetings during the 
year. Attendance at these meetings was as follows:

No of members Name of member Number of meetings attended

1. Z Luswazi - Chairperson 2

2. Ms N Singh 2

3. C Bunting 2

4. M Ramurunzi 2

3. Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee has complied with Section 38(1) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (the 
PFMA) and Treasury Regulation 3.1 in that the Department has and maintains a system of Internal Audit under the control 
and direction of the Audit Committee complying with and operating in accordance with regulations and instructions 
prescribed by the PFMA.

The Audit Committee has formally adopted an audit charter, reflective of the terms of reference under which the 
Committee operates. 

The Audit Committee further reports that it has complied with the spirit and the letter of the said audit charter.
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4. Effectiveness of Internal Control
4.1 Efficiency and effectiveness of the system of internal control

The system of internal control at the Department and at the Property Management Trading Entity (the PMTE) is not 
considered to be efficient nor effective. The Auditor General has raised a number of issues with respect to the system 
of internal control. Similarly during the year under review, the Internal Audit Unit presented reports articulating similar 
governance concerns. As a result, the Department’s audit report was qualified due to the state of its Supply Chain 
Management Function. The Auditor General’s audit report further highlighted internal control concerns on the system 
responsible for the safeguarding and maintenance of assets. 

At the PMTE, the Auditor General raised similar Supply Chain Management issues that directly affected Irregular 
Expenditure and Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure. Revenue completeness controls affecting both revenue and trade 
debtors; accounting and internal control systems affecting operating leases and associated liabilities were also reported 
as pervasive issues. The same applied to retention liabilities. All the foregoing PMTE issues led to the disclaimer of audit 
opinion in the year under review. The foregoing clearly indicates that in the 2013/14 financial year these areas have to be 
prioritised, this to ensure a visibly improved internal control environment.

4.2 Risk Management its effectiveness, efficiency and transparency

The Risk Management function at the Department and at the PMTE (collectively referred to as the institution) remains 
an area of concern. While there is an active Risk Management Function at the institution, significant work remains to 
be done in terms of crystallizing the Risk Management Function to exist at operational level impacting the day-to-day 
operational and management activities of both the Department and the PMTE. Equally, the quality of Risk Assessment as 
a technical discipline (in terms of identifying all the core risk areas) needs equally significant improvement. 

4.3 Annual Financial Statements

The Department and the PMTE made significant improvements in enhancing the quality of the financial statements 
in relation to prior years. The qualified report versus the historical disclaimers for the Department reflects this. 
Notwithstanding the disclaimer of opinion on the PMTE financial statements, Management embarked on an ambitious 
plan to implement GRAP on the PMTE financial statements for the first time. The Audit Committee is of the view that a 
foundation has been laid in respect of both the Department and the Entity whereby the quality and the content of future 
financial statements will be improved as a result of the foundational work done in the current reporting period. 

4.4 Management report of the Auditor General

There has been robust interaction between the Auditor General and Management. The Management Report and equally 
the Audit Report are reflective of factual findings that Management supports. Currently underway right through to the 
compilation and submission of the 2013/14 annual financial statements is a comprehensive Audit Action Plan to address 
issues raised by the Auditor General.

4.5 Quality of in year management and monthly / quarterly reports submitted in terms of the 
PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act

In the year under review, there was no compliance in the sense of compiling qualitative, accurate and informative 
management accounts. Under item 5 below, we revisit this aspect. Going forward, the Audit Committee has recommended 
compilation of quarterly financial statements (to comply with the annual reporting standard i.e. Modified Cash Basis and 
GRAP applicable to the Department and the PMTE respectively) to be presented at future Audit Committee meetings. 
Management has agreed to this recommendation and the implementation is underway.

5. Evaluation of financial statements
As mentioned in item 4 above, significant progress was made in the current year to compile credible financial statements. 
Comparatively speaking, the disclaimer of opinion on the PMTE financial statements is on a significantly less number of 
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issues than was the case in the 2011/12 audit. The Audit Committee’s evaluation of the financial statements therefore is 
that they are reflective of a reliable base upon which both the Department and the PMTE can build on for the 2013/14 
financial year and beyond.

The Committee agrees with the Auditor General’s findings and the resultant audit opinions in respect of both sets 
of financial statements. As mentioned already, these findings are reflective of established facts that Management 
objectively supports.

The PMTE changed its accounting policies by implementing GRAP changing from SA GAAP. This resulted in a number of 
prior period adjustments as well as reclassification of comparative figures. 

There are a number of areas and instances where the Department and the PMTE did not comply with specific provisions 
of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations. Both audit reports have articulated these non-compliances.

The quality of Performance Information reported during the year was unsatisfactory and noted as an area of improvement. 
The Audit Committee has been making continuous recommendations in this regard for the improvement of Performance 
Information, starting with how the performance targets are set and documented, to how performance against these 
targets is measured, monitored and reported upon. .

There were significant adjustments on the financial statements of both the Department and the PMTE. These major audit 
adjustments were audited and approved by the Auditor General; presented to the Audit Committee and duly approved. 

6. Internal Audit
In the year under review, the Internal Audit Unit has not been as effective as it should have been. This is primarily due 
to three factors. Firstly, that the Unit has been and continues to be short-staffed for quite a lengthy period extending 
to preceding financial years. Secondly, that notwithstanding being ordinarily short-staffed, the Unit has had to provide 
a Secretariat Support Responsibility to the Audit Committee thereby further depleting the already depleted resources. 
Thirdly that the Unit needs to overhaul its own internal processes that unnecessarily lead to bottlenecks, inefficiencies 
and a general compromise of the quality of output from the Unit. 

Management will support speedy recruitment of human resources. It will also effect  the necessary budgetary adjustments 
to avoid unauthorised expenditure. The Audit Committee will continuously provide an effective quality assurance and 
continuous improvement role on the work of Internal Audit. Furthermore, a five year review of the Internal Audit is 
imminent and that this imminent review follows a similar review by National Treasury, in terms of which the Unit is 
currently implementing the latter’s (National Treasury’s) recommendations. 

7. Auditor General South Africa
No unresolved issues with respect to the audit have been brought to the attention of the Audit Committee; accordingly 
the Committee is not aware of any unresolved audit issues in respect of the year under review.

8. Turnaround Strategy to Clean Audit
Subsequent to the financial year end, the Audit Committee spent time reviewing progress on the turnaround strategy 
for clean audit. The Committee remains concerned with the pace, overall project management, expected deliverables 
and the cost of the project. The Committee received assurance from the Accounting Officer of closer monitoring of the 
project management aspects of the project.

9. Overall observation 
Amongst the biggest challenges facing the Department and the PMTE is a lack of capacity in terms of the requisite 
number of personnel firstly within the Finance Department and secondly, generally within the rest of the Department 
and the PMTE Management structures. The second aspect of inadequate capacity relates to the desperate shortage of 
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the required accounting and financial management skills on the existing personnel. This is the core reason behind the 
engagement of the Turnaround Team (Operation Clean Audit) as the Department and the PMTE do not have adequate 
capacity or skill to achieve the turnaround. On the positive side however, we report that towards the end of the financial 
year, senior permanent leadership such as a permanent Director General and a Chief Financial Officer have been engaged. 
This is bringing about stability in the Department and the PMTE and creates a realistic environment for a sustainable 
turnaround. 

The second core challenge ahead of the Department and the PMTE (collectively referred to as the institution) is that 
the institution as a whole is not properly structured to enable it to successfully fulfil or execute its core business and 
mandate. In simple terms, the institution’s core business is property management with a hardcore engineering base. The 
challenge therefore is to restructure the institution and do this at pace.

Thirdly and lastly, the process of engaging new personnel at the institution is prohibitively long and immeasurably costly 
when measured (the cost that is) in terms of the impact that the absence of the required skills has on the business of the 
institution. This area requires its own turnaround intervention.

The Operation Clean Audit has made a positive impact on the current year audit results of the institution, the challenge 
now is to sustain the work done while improving on the institution’s audit opinion in the 2013/14 financial year. 

Finally, effective management of various teams of consultants assisting with the turnaround initiative is of critical essence 
to ensure delivery on the mandate and value for money for the institution. 

The Audit Committee’s overall assessment is that progress is being made, however the issues articulated in this report 
require attention to ensure a sustainable turnaround of the institiution.

Z Luswazi CA(SA)

Chairperson 

Audit and Risk Management Committee

31 March 2013
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Human Resource Management
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4.1 Personnel Related Expenditure 
The following tables summarise the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In 
particular, they indicate the following: 

•	 Amount spent on personnel 

•	 Amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and medical aid. 

Table 4.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme

Programme Total Voted 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Compensation 
of Employees 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Compensation 
of Employees 
as % of Total 
Expenditure

Average 
Compensation 
of Cost per 
Employee 
(R’000)

Administration 862 492 218 979 3 727 25.39 371

Immovable Asset  Management 4 683 990 1 046 755 3 142 22.35 226

Expanded Public Works 
Programme 

1 708 612 100 901 2 779 5.91 410

Property and Construction 
Industry Policy 

26 858 7 916 4 29.47 466

Auxiliary and Associates Services 53 330 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total 7 335 282 1 374 551 9652 18.74 1472

Table 4.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band

Salary Bands Compensation of 
Employees Cost 
(R’000)

Percentage 
of Total 
Personnel 
Cost for 
Department

Average 
Compensation 
Cost per 
Employee (R’000)

Number of 
Employees

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)  125 265  9.11 111 1 125

Skilled (Levels 3-5)  177 571  12.92 135 1 313

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)  326 363  23.74 248 1 317

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)  507 061  36.89 480 1 057

Senior management (Levels 13-16)  123 213 8.96 811 152

Contract (Levels 1-2)  22 724 1.65 85 266

Contract (Levels 3-5)  8 830 0.64 210 42

Contract (Levels 6-8)  33 957 2.47 233 146

Contract (Levels 9-12)  29 025 2.11 492 59

Contract (Levels 13-16)  12 208 0.89 718 17

Periodical Remuneration  6 720 0.49 3 2 212

Abnormal Appointment  1 614 0.12 16 104

TOTAL  1 374 551 100 176 7810
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4.2. Employment and Vacancies 
The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies, the number of posts on 
the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there is any staff that is additional to the 
establishment. This information is presented in terms of three key variables: 

•	 Programme 

•	 Salary band 

•	 Critical occupations 

Table 4.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme

Programme Number 
of Posts

Number 
of Posts 

Filled

Vacancy 
Rate as 

a %

Number of 
Posts Filled 

Additional to the 
Establishment

Programme 1 DPW Administration 728 591 18.8 21

Programme 2 DPW Immovable asset management 5654 4640 17.9 299

Programme 3 DPW Expanded public works 
programme 

298 246 17.4 28

Programme 4 DPW Property and Construction 
industry policy regulation 

25 17 32 2

TOTAL 6705 5494 18.1 350

Table 4.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band

Salary Band Number of 
Posts

Number of 
Posts Filled

Vacancy Rate Number of Posts 
Filled Additional to 
the Establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent 1419 1127 20.6 2

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent 1515 1312 13.4 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), 
Permanent 

1667 1317 21 0

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), 
Permanent 

1384 1057 23.6 3

Senior management (Levels 13-16), 
Permanent 

190 151 20.5 2

Contract (Levels 1-2), Permanent 266 266 0 187

Contract (Levels 3-5), Permanent 42 42 0 16

Contract (Levels 6-8), Permanent 146 146 0 100

Contract (Levels 9-12), Permanent 59 59 0 38

Contract (Levels 13-16), Permanent 17 17 0 2

TOTAL 6705 5494 18.1 350
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Employment and Vacancies (continued)

Table 4.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations

Critical Occupations Number of 
Posts

Number of 
Posts Filled

Vacancy 
Rate

Number of 
Posts Filled 
Additional 

to the 
Establishment

Architects town and traffic planners, Permanent 49 32 34.7 7

Chemical and physical science technicians, 
Permanent 

13 8 38.5 0

Civil engineering technicians, Permanent 36 11 69.4 0

Electrical and electronics engineering 
technicians, Permanent 

11 1 90.9 0

Engineering sciences related, Permanent 103 92 10.7 2

Engineers and related professionals, Permanent 301 178 40.9 37

Quantity surveyors and professionals not 
classed elsewhere, Permanent 

39 23 41 2

TOTAL 552 345 37.5 48
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Job Evaluations (continued)

The table below provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their post 
being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are 
automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded may also be vacant. 

Table 4.3.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 12 0 2 0 14

Male 4 0 0 0 4

Total 16 0 2 0 18

Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0

The table below summarises the number of cases where the remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by the 
job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case. 

Table 4.3.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by occupation

Occupation Number of 
Employees

Job 
Evaluation 

Level

Remuneration 
Level

Reason for 
Deviation

No of 
Employees in 
Department

None 0 0 0 0 0

None 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Percentage of total employment 0 0 0 0 0

The table below summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability. 

Table 4.3.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0
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4.4. Employment Changes
This section provides information on changes in employment during the financial year under review. Turnover rates 
provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the Department. The tables below provide a summary of 
the turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations.

Table 4.4.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band

Salary Band Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period (April 
2012)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1559 135 215 13.8

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1409 19 132 9.4

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1538 52 96 6.2

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 1149 17 63 5.5

Senior Management Service Band A 107 3 5 4.7

Senior Management Service Band B 41 4 5 12.2

Senior Management Service Band C 8 3 2 25

Senior Management Service Band D 2 1 1 50

Total 5813 234 519 8.9

Table 4.4.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation

Occupation Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period (April 
2012)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate 
as a %

Architects town and traffic planners, 
Permanent 

36 5 6 16.7

Chemical and physical science 
technicians, Permanent 

8 1 1 12.5

Civil engineering technicians, Permanent 14 0 6 42.9

Electrical and electronics engineering 
technicians, Permanent 

1 0 1 100

Engineers and related professionals, 
Permanent 

186 8 39 21

Mechanical engineering technicians, 
Permanent 

1 0 0 0

Quantity surveyors and related 
professionals not classed elsewhere, 
Permanent 

29 1 0 0

TOTAL 275 15 53 19.3
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Employment Changes (continued)

Notes

The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

The table below identifies the major reasons for staff leaving the Department. 

Table 4.4.3 Reasons for staff leaving the Department 

Termination Type Number Percentage 
of Total 

Resignations

Percentage 
of Total 

Employment
Death, Permanent 30 5.8 0.5
Resignation, Permanent 127 24.5 2.2
Expiry of contract, Permanent 261 50.3 4.5
Discharged due to ill health, Permanent 3 0.6 0.1
Dismissal-misconduct, Permanent 6 1.2 0.1
Retirement, Permanent 92 17.7 1.6
TOTAL 519 100 8.9
Resignations as % of Employment 8.9

Table 4.4.4 Promotions by critical occupation

Occupation Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period 
(April 2012)

Promotions 
to another 

Salary Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 

as a % of 
Employment

Progressions 
to another 

Notch within 
Salary Level

Notch 
progressions 

as a % of 
Employment

Architects town and traffic planners 36 1 2.8 12 33.3
Chemical and physical science 
technicians 

8 0 0 6 75

Civil engineering technicians 14 0 0 3 21.4
Electrical and electronics engineering 
technicians 

1 0 0 1 100

Engineers and related professionals 186 11 5.9 101 54.3
Mechanical engineering technicians 1 0 0 0 0
Messengers porters and deliverers 64 0 0 41 64.1
Quantity surveyors and related 
professional not classed elsewhere 

29 0 0 17 58.6

TOTAL 339 12 3.5 181 53.4

Table 4.4.5 Promotions by salary band

Salary Band Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period 
(April 2012)

Promotions 
to another 

Salary Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 

as a % of 
Employment

Progressions 
to another 

Notch within 
Salary Level

Notch 
progressions 

as a % of 
Employment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent 1559 0 0 858 55

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent 1409 2 0.1 1105 78.4

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), 
Permanent 

1538 26 1.7 958 62.3

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12), Permanent 

1149 45 3.9 753 65.5

Senior management (Levels 13-16), 
Permanent 

158 9 5.7 3 1.9

TOTAL 5813 82 1.4 3677 63.3
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Employment Equity (continued)
Ta

bl
e 

4.
5.

2 
To

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s)
 in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l b
an

ds
 o

n 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l B
an

ds
M

al
e

Fe
m

al
e

To
ta

l

A
fr

ic
an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an
W

hi
te

A
fr

ic
an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an
W

hi
te

To
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

4
1

0
1

1
0

1
0

8

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
59

1
2

19
50

3
4

5
14

3

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

ly
 q

ua
lifi

ed
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
dl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t
44

5
50

30
15

4
31

3
13

7
45

10
57

Sk
ill

ed
 te

ch
ni

ca
l a

nd
 a

ca
de

m
ic

al
ly

 q
ua

lifi
ed

 
w

or
ke

rs
, j

un
io

r m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s,

 
fo

re
m

en

39
8

62
5

68
59

3
38

13
14

0
13

17

Se
m

i-s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g
56

0
23

6
6

21
39

9
85

1
4

13
12

U
ns

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
de

fin
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g
35

3
52

4
4

64
2

67
3

2
11

27

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (T
op

 M
an

ag
em

en
t)

1
0

1
1

1
0

0
0

4

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t)
7

0
0

2
3

0
0

1
13

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
lifi

ed
)

19
1

1
5

28
2

0
3

59

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l)
69

1
0

0
73

2
0

1
14

6

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d)

17
0

3
0

21
0

1
0

42

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (U
ns

ki
lle

d)
69

2
0

0
18

9
6

0
0

26
6

TO
TA

L
20

01
40

6
52

27
5

23
13

21
6

30
20

1
54

94



112 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Employment Equity (continued)
Ta

bl
e 

4.
5.

3 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l B
an

ds
M

al
e

Fe
m

al
e

To
ta

l

A
fr

ic
an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an
W

hi
te

A
fr

ic
an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an
W

hi
te

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

ly
 q

ua
lifi

ed
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
dl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t
4

0
0

0
4

0
0

2
10

Sk
ill

ed
 te

ch
ni

ca
l a

nd
 a

ca
de

m
ic

al
ly

 q
ua

lifi
ed

 
w

or
ke

rs
, j

un
io

r m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s,

 
fo

re
m

en
 

7
1

0
1

12
0

0
0

21

Se
m

i-s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g
7

0
0

0
4

0
0

0
11

U
ns

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
de

fin
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g
1

0
0

0
3

0
0

0
4

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (T
op

 M
an

ag
em

en
t)

1
0

1
1

1
0

0
0

4

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t)
4

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
6

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
lifi

ed
)

2
0

1
0

4
0

0
0

7

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l)
23

1
0

0
5

0
0

2
31

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d)

2
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

8

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (U
ns

ki
lle

d)
 

38
7

0
0

76
10

0
0

13
1

TO
TA

L
90

9
2

2
11

6
10

0
5

23
4



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 113

Employment Equity (continued)
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Employment Equity (continued)
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Employment Equity (continued)
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4.6. Performance Rewards
To encourage good performance, the Department granted performance rewards during the year under review. The 
information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability, salary bands and critical occupations.

Table 4.6.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability

Demographics Number of 
Beneficiaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 

Employment

Cost (R’000) Average Cost 
per Beneficiary 

(R)

African, Female 1 140 2 304 49.5 5 523 4845

African, Male 931 1 980 47 4 878 5 240

Asian, Female 18 30 60 125 6 937

Asian, Male 37 52 71.2 382 10 327

Coloured, Female 148 214 69.2 745 5 031

Coloured, Male 241 397 60.7 1 203 4 993

Total Blacks, Female 1 306 2 548 51.3 6 393 4 895

Total Blacks, Male 1 209 2 429 49.8 6 463 5 346

White, Female 154 195 79 1 298 8 430

White, Male 157 258 60.9 1 805 11 494

Employees with a 
disability 

32 64 50 174 5 424

TOTAL 2 858 5 494 52 16 132 5 645

Table 4.6.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service

Salary Band Number of 
Beneficiaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 

Employment

Cost (R’000) Average Cost 
per Beneficiary 

(R’000)

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

662 1125 58.8 1 593 2 406

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

917 1313 69.8 2 921 3 185

Highly skilled 
production (Levels 6-8) 

719 1317 54.6 4 460 6 203

Highly skilled 
supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

540 1057 51.1 6 787 12 569

Total 2 838 4812 59 15 761 5 554
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Performance Rewards (continued)

Table 4.6.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation

Critical Occupations Number of 
Beneficiaries

Total 
Employment

% of Total 
Employment

Cost (R’000) Average 
Cost per 

Beneficiary (R)

Architects town and traffic 
planners 

15 32 46.9 250 16 667

Chemical and physical science 
technicians 

8 8 100 59 7 375

Civil engineering technicians 4 11 36.4 34 8 500

Electrical and electronics 
engineering technicians 

1 1 100 12 12 000

Engineers and related 
professionals 

70 178 39.3 914 13 057

Mechanical engineering 
technicians 

0 1 0 0 0

Messengers porters and 
deliverers 

33 64 51.6 112 3 394

Quantity surveyors and 
professional not classed 
elsewhere 

9 23 39.1 134 14 889

TOTAL 140 318 44 1 515 10 821

Notes

The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, was used to complete this table.

Table 4.6.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service

SMS Band Number of 
Beneficiaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 

Employment

Cost (R’000) Average 
Cost per 

Beneficiary 
(R)

% of SMS 
Wage Bill

Band A 4 115 3.5 96 24 000 0.1

Band B 0 42 0 0 0 0

Band C 0 9 0 0 0 0

Band D 0 3 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 4 169 2.4 96 24 000 0.1
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4.7. Foreign Workers
The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the Department in terms of salary band and major 
occupation.

Table 4.7.1 Foreign workers by salary band

Salary Band 1 April 2012 31 March 2013 Change

Number % of Total Number % of Total Number % Change

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 2 7.7 2 14.3 0 0

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

5 19.2 6 42.9 1 -8.3

Senior management (Levels 13-
16) 

3 11.5 3 21.4 0 0

Contract (Levels 1-2) 1 3.8 1 7.1 0 0

Contract (Levels 9-12) 14 53.8 1 7.1 -13 108.3

Contract (Levels 13-16) 1 3.8 1 7.1 0 0

TOTAL 26 100 14 100 -12 100

Table 4.7.2 Foreign workers by major occupation

Major Occupation 1 April 2012 31 March 2013 Change

Number % of Total Number % of Total Number % Change

Elementary occupations 2 7.7 2 14.3 0 0

Other occupations 1 3.8 0 0 -1 8.3

Professionals and managers 23 88.5 12 85.7 -11 91.7

TOTAL 26 100 14 100 -12 100
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Leave utilisation (continues)
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Leave utilisation (continues)

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the 
PSCBC in 2000 requires the management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time 
of termination of service. The number of employees that took leave refers to the leave forms captured.

Table 4.8.3 Annual Leave

Salary Band Total Days Taken Average days 
per Employee

Number of 
Employees 
who took 

leave

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 21 446.12 20 1 063

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 31 842.2 23 1376

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 31 505.36 22 1421

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 24 258.08 22 1094

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 3 910 23 173

Contract (Levels 1-2) 3 906 10 399

Contract (Levels 3-5) 1 141 12 92

Contract (Levels 6-8) 2 290 13 171

Contract (Levels 9-12) 1 138 16 69

Contract (Levels 13-16) 141 14 10

Abnormal Appointment 1 1 1

TOTAL 121 578.76 21 5 869

Table 4.8.4 Capped Leave

Salary Band Total number 
of days of 

capped leave 
taken

Average 
number of 

days taken per 
employee

Average 
capped leave 
per employee 

as at 31 
December 2012

Number of 
Employees who 

took capped 
leave

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 40 3 46 13

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 250 4 62 57

Highly skilled production  
(Levels 6-8) 

127 3 41 37

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

101 5 55 19

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 13 2 55 7

TOTAL 531 4 55 133
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Leave utilisation (continues)

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 4.8.5 Leave Payouts

Reason Total Amount 
(R’000)

Number of 
Employees

Average 
Payment per 
Employee (R)

Leave pay out for 2012/13 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle 

0 1 0

Capped leave pay outs on termination of service for 
2012/13 

1 717 151 11 371

Current leave pay out on termination of service for 
2012/13 

24 88 273

TOTAL 1 741 240 7 254
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4.9. HIV/AIDS and Health Promotion Programmes
Table 4.9.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high 
risk of contracting HIV and related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

Mobility and migration are heavily linked to the spread 
of HIV particularly in relation to the construction sector.

As custodian and the main player in the construction 
sector, the National Department of Public Works (DPW) 
developed and implemented an HIV/AIDS Strategy 
for the construction sector to protect and support the 
industry’s workforce

Table 4.9.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and provide the 
required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. �Has the department designated a member of 
the SMS to implement the provisions contained 
in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name 
and position. 

Yes   Mr Jabulani Nkwanyana: CD: HR and OD

2. �Does the department have a dedicated unit or 
have you designated specific staff members 
to promote health and wellbeing of your 
employees? If so, indicate the number of 
employees who are involved in this task and the 
annual budget that is available for this purpose. 

Yes  Advocacy and the Support sub-directorate is 
dedicated to this programme. 2 permanent 
staff members are responsible for a staff 
establishment of about 6700 with the annual 
budget of R150 000.00.

3. �Has the department introduced an Employee 
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme 
for your employees? If so, indicate the key 
elements/services of the programme. 

Yes  Responsive Programmes Addressing psycho-
social health and wellness issues 

4. �Has the department established (a) committee(s) 
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 
of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, 
please provide the names of the members of 
the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they 
represent. 

Yes  A Department-Wide Committee constituted by 
HR representatives from 11 regional offices. 

5. �Has the department reviewed the employment 
policies and practices of your department to 
ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the basis of their HIV 
status? If so, list the employment policies/
practices so reviewed. 

Yes  The Departmental HIV and AIDS Policy. 

6. �Has the department introduced measures 
to protect HIV-positive employees or 
those perceived to be HIV-positive from 
discrimination? If so, list the key elements of 
these measures. 

Yes  Stigma Mitigation programme is in place. Key 
elements include:-Knowledge, Attitudes and 
Practices surveys; Dialogues and Peer education.
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HIV/AIDS and Health Promotion Programmes (continued)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

7. �Does the department encourage its employees 
to undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? 
If so, list the results that you have achieved. 

Yes  The department collaborates with GEMS and 
NGOs in providing on-site opportunities for HIV 
Counselling and Testing and TB screening. 368 
employees were counselled and tested for HIV.

8. Has the department developed measures/
indicators to monitor and evaluate the impact 
of your health promotion programme? If so, list 
these measures/indicators. 

Yes  Utilisation by employees to the Health and 
Wellness services offered. Many employees 
attending wellness events. Number of wellness 
events, workshops and trainings conducted.  
Sick leave utilisation (reduction).Number of 
employees living openly with HIV
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4.10. Labour Relations
Table 4.10.1 Collective Agreements

Subject Matter Date

None  

The table below summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the Department for the year under 
review.

Table 4.10.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number Percentage of 
Total

Total

Dismissal 6 5.82 6

Suspensions from work without pay 7 6.79 7

Final Written Warnings 42 40 42

Written Warnings 37 33.98 35

Verbal Warnings 7 6.79 7

Not guilty 2 1.94 2

Withdrawals 4 3.88 4

TOTAL 105 100 105

Table 4.10.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Type of misconduct Number % of Total Total

Absent from work without reason or permission 28 27.45 28

Steals, bribes or commits fraud, corruption 11 10.67 11

Gave false information 1 0.97 1

Displayed disrespectful, disgraceful and 
unacceptable behavior 

8 7.76 8

Assault 3 2.91 3

Abuse of state vehicle 4 3.88 4

Negligence of duty 13 12.62 13

Failure to comply with policy or procedures 6 5.82 6

Drinking on duty 3 2.91 3

Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 4 3.88 4

Undertake remunerative work outside official duties 
without permission

1 0.97 1

Failure to carry out lawful instruction/ 
insubordination

20 19.41 20

TOTAL 102 100 102
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Labour Relations (continued)

Table 4.10.4 Grievances Lodged 

Number of grievances addressed Number % of Total Total

Not resolved 17 11 17

Resolved 136 89 136

TOTAL 153 100 153

Table 4.10.5 Disputes Lodged 

Number of disputes addressed Number % of total Number

Upheld 4 33.33 4

Dismissed 8 66.66 8

Total 12 100 12

Table 4.10.6 Strike actions

Strike Actions

Total number of working days lost None

Total cost(R’000) of working days lost R 0.00

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay R 0.00

Table 4.10.7 Precautionary suspensions

Precautionary Suspensions

Number of people suspended 8

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 8

Average number of days suspended 259

Cost (R’000) of suspensions R4 736 192.50
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Skills Development (continued)
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4.12. Injury on duty
The tables below provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 4.12.1 Injury on duty

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 37 86

Temporary Total Disablement 6 14

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 43 100

Pothole rehabilitation, Soshanguve Pretoria
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Report of the Accounting Officer
for the year ended 31 March 2013

1. General review of the state of financial affairs
The 2012/13 financial year has been a landmark in the transformation of the finance and Supply Chain management 
functions of the Department and the PMTE. Towards the latter part of this financial year, a consortium of service 
providers was engaged to support the Department with the enhancement of efficiencies of operations in both the 
regions and at head office level. Notwithstanding the fact that this support was only rolled out in February 2013, very 
encouraging results were achieved in a very short space in time. This intervention undoubtedly also contributed towards 
the improved audit outcomes attained for this year for the department’s main account and the PMTE.

Key policy and legislative developments:

During the financial year under review, the Department continued with the development of the following key legislation 
to enable the Department to direct the execution of its mandate more effectively and to enhance its operational 
efficiencies: 

•	 the draft Agrément South Africa (ASA) Bill - to establish the entity as a juristic person. A draft Business Case has 
been developed and is under consideration. A draft Agrément South Africa Bill is being finalised. This Bill will be 
tabled in Parliament in 2013/2014. 

•	 the draft Built Environment Professions (BEP) Policy - towards the possible amendment of the legislative 
framework governing the Built Environment Professions. The draft BEP Policy has been developed and is under 
consideration. The BEP Policy will be finalised in the 2013/2014 financial year.

•	 the draft Expropriation Bill - to ensure consistency with the Constitution and uniformity in the expropriation 
of property by all organs of state. The draft Bill and explanatory memorandum was approved by Cabinet for 
publication and subsequently gazetted for public comments. The Bill will be tabled in Parliament in 2013/2014. 

•	 the Construction Industry Development (cidb) Amendment Regulations, 2013, to ensure improvements of 
registration requirements for Contractors and to better maintain and upgrade their grades with the cidb. The 
draft Regulations were published for public comment on 5 October 2012. The public comment phase closed 
on 5 December 2012. The final Regulations are being reviewed by the department and will be submitted to the 
Minister for approval in 2013/14.

Further, the Department under the leadership of the Deputy Minister, commenced with the development of business 
case for the Independent Development Trust (IDT) to review the mandate of IDT. The revised mandate will be submitted 
to Cabinet for approval in 2013/14. 

Construction projects 

During the year under review, the Department planned to complete 200 construction projects. This includes projects 
directed at maintenance, repairs, renovations and new facilities. However, the Department managed to complete 214 
projects during this period. 

At the end of March 2013, 453 projects were still underway and it is anticipated that they will continue into the next 
financial year. The latter projects consist of the following:

•	 68 resort under the DPW capital program;

•	 268 relate to DPW maintenance programmes; and

•	 117 are undertaken on behalf of client departments.

If all the projects currently under construction are delivered within the specified completion periods, a further 300 
projects will be handed over by end of March 2014. This represents a planned increase of 40% compared year on year.
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The following expenditure against budgets was achieved:

•	 DPW capital ..................................................... 61%;

•	 Client departments’ capital ........................ 72%; and 

•	 Planned maintenance .................................. 96%.

Programme for the compilation of the Immovable Asset Register

During the year under review, the Department conducted an extensive reconciliation of immovable assets in its 
Immovable Asset Register (IAR) against Deeds Registry data. The reconciliation exercise was conducted in conjunction 
with all National and Provincial custodians, and achieved a substantial improvement on the completeness assertion as 
evidenced by the Audit report for the 2012/13 financial year. The current list of improvements (to the extent that current 
data in the IAR permits) has been linked to the land parcels in order to provide a more holistic view of immovable assets 
as contained in the IAR presented for the year under review.	

Following the decision to expedite the establishment of the PMTE, the key milestone was set to achieve an IAR that 
substantially meets business and regulatory requirements, including meeting all GRAP standards. In order to achieve this 
milestone, the Department will conduct physical verification on its immovable assets and address other management 
assertions (e.g. accuracy) in the 2013/14 and 2014/15 financial years. The Department will also apply a fair value model 
and capitalisation practices as a means of establishing a meaningful, consistent and reliable deemed or base cost for its 
immovable assets. The current carrying values in Note 34 will be adjusted to reflect fair value as soon as such model has 
been fully applied. 

Moving forward, the Department will continue to engage all custodians of State-owned immovable assets in the 
National and Provincial spheres of government during the processes of re-building its IAR. This is paramount as the 
objective of achieving a compliant IAR is interdependent on the parallel processes being followed by other custodians 
to also enhance and maintain accurate Immovable Asset Registers of their own. 

Stabilisation interventions 

A core driver to the transformation of operations of the Department is the efficiency enhancement of the Finance and 
Supply Chain Management (SCM) operations. In this regard, a service provider was appointed towards the end of the 
reporting period to assist with a fundamental review of these functions and the capacitation of the affected units. This 
intervention will operate until July 2014. Post this intervention, the Department will have all the necessary controls, 
systems and processes in place for the Department to take full responsibility of these important functions.

The project consists of three core focus areas of operations: 

a.	 the Departmental (DPW) main Account 

b.	 the Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE) Account; and 

c.	 SCM across all regions and head office. 

The project deliverables of this intervention are structured to address the immediate technical matters relating to these 
functions as well as the medium to long term human resource requirements to support such functions. A skills transfer 
programme by the insourced professionals is paramount and integrated into the deliverables against which the service 
provider will be measured. The resourcing of the project was similarly prescribed to consist of at least 64 graduated 
unemployed individuals. These interns will be comprehensively assessed at the end of this calendar year and those who 
qualify, will be considered for absorption into the approved structure of the department. This capacity enhancement 
is intended to be a project legacy and has received widespread management support since it directly supports the 
national strategic objective of skills development.
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Of importance is that this intervention did not start off with a clean slate to deal with current year challenges only. 
Previous and historical findings by the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA), e.g. irregular expenditure, placed an 
enormous burden on the team to resolve before shifting full attention to current challenges and expectations. In this 
regard, it must be reported that with the time available, the full population of current year transactions for both the main 
account and PMTE were comprehensively reviewed together with prior year transactions of the DPW main account. 
Prior year transactions relating to the PMTE will receive the necessary attention early in the next financial year in order 
to finally also lay this matter to rest. 

This project also covers the requirement to set up an appropriate accounting and billing system for the PMTE. This 
application requires significant infrastructure capability to support its roll-out. Concerns have emanated during other 
business process enhancement initiatives within this project that the weak Information Technology (IT) backbone will 
be unable to support the additional processing capability required. This has the potential to jeopardise the roll-out of 
any new application in support of the finance improvements planned. Given the fact that the Department currently lacks 
an IT strategy and roadmap to drive the development of the IT capability in the short term, focussed attention has been 
redirected to this area as a matter of urgency.

The Supply Chain Management function requires a complete transformation to ensure an adequate Supply Chain 
Management (SCM) system that supports the core business areas of the Department. Although the current efforts to 
transform SCM are dedicated to improving legislative compliance, efficiency enhancement initiatives have also been 
identified for priority implementation to support enhanced service delivery and combat potential fraud and corrupt 
practices. Considerations for efficiencies include differentiated streams for SCM to isolate the core business functions 
so that appropriate policies, business processes, structures and skills can be advanced. The governance structures 
operating as Bid Committees’ are being streamlined to enhance the functional performance of these Committees to 
further improve service delivery and enhance controls.

Re-engineering of business processes is expected to yield further efficiencies in support of the establishment of a 
comprehensive demand management framework and revised acquisition and procurement framework. In support of 
this, the decentralisation of supplier databases supporting small value procurement as well as the institutionalisation of 
term contracts across the Department has been rolled out to promote further efficiencies and improve compliance and 
service delivery.

In support of the aforementioned, the Chief Procurement Office at the National Treasury has identified the Department 
as a pilot site for procurement transformation. Work has commenced between the respective teams from National 
Treasury to develop adequate SCM capability for the core business functional areas of the Department by March 2014. 
It is expected that the SCM capability emanating from this project will have a positive impact on the establishment and 
roll out of the differentiated streams and supporting structure for the new SCM dispensation.

Since the commencement of this project early in 2013, very little time was available to achieve the total planned impact 
on the operational and regularity assessments for this year. However, the policy enhancements, controls and systems 
improvements already implemented bodes well for expectations in the coming years. It is however, beyond any doubt 
that the achievements to date on this stabilisation intervention have been encouraging and have directly contributed 
to the improved audit outcomes for this financial year. It is therefore a firm expectation that the eventual outcome of 
the project will support the creation of financial centres of excellence for the DPW main account as well as PMTE with an 
adequately designed SCM system as a shared service. 

Spending trends

The Department’s adjusted appropriation for the year under review was R7.891 billion compared to R7.830 billion in 
2011/12, which translates to a 1% year-on-year increase. The bulk of the appropriation is allocated to the Programmes 
that are the core policy implementers of the Department, i.e:
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•	 Immovable Asset Management (Programme 2)	 64%;

•	 Expanded Public Works Programme (Programme 3)	 22%;

•	 Property and Construction Industry Regulations Policy Regulations (Programme 4)	 0.4%,

•	  Administration (Programme 1)	 13%

•	 Auxiliary and Associated Services (Programme 5)	 0.6%.

See diagrammatic illustration below.

For the 2012/13 financial year, the original allocation of the Department was reduced by the net amount of R102 million 
through the Adjustments Estimate. This reduction emanates from:

•	 R212 million declared saving from the infrastructure program; and

•	 R109 million additional allocation as roll- over for unforeseen costs and other adjustments

The declared saving of R212 million is made up of the under-spending on infrastructure for the Department of Home 
Affairs in the amount of R112 million for the construction, maintenance and refurbishment of border post infrastructure; 
and the balance of R100 million is a declared saving due to under-spending on the departmental projects.

The additional funding of R109 million received through the Adjustment Estimates for 2012/13 is made up of:

•	 R70 million allocated for the implementation of the Turnaround programme;

•	 R17 million allocated as transfers and subsidies for the Expanded Public Works’ Programme as integrated grants 
to municipalities;

•	 R18 million for compensation of employees for conditions of service benefits improvements;

•	 R4 million for the establishment of the Office of the Deputy Minister;

•	 R700 000 transfers to Construction Industry Development Board; and

•	 R200 000 transfers to Council for the Built Environment.

The infrastructure budget was further reduced by R273 million through a reprioritisation of funds towards the following 
funding requirements:

•	 R51 million for shortfalls on compensation of employees on the approved establishment;

•	 R106 million for Turnaround interventions;



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 139

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2013

•	 R50 million financial support to the Independent Development Trust;

•	 R46 million for Expanded Public Works’ Programme integrated grant to municipalities; and

•	 R20 million for Accounting and Billing system for PMTE.

The Departmental spending for the period under review is R7.204 billion which represents 91% expenditure of the 
allocation. Under-spending on the allocation can mainly be attributed to unspent funds on infrastructure; devolution 
of property rates funds and delays in the appointment of service providers for the various projects related to the 
Departments’ Turnaround Strategy. The funding for the Turnaround Strategy was only confirmed in November 2012 as 
additional funds during the adjustment estimates of national expenditure. The appointment of service providers could 
therefore only be finalised after the confirmation of funds was received. 

The contributing factors to the under-spending on infrastructure projects are the non-performance of contractors, 
termination of projects, and technical problems on project sites that may have affected actual expenditure on projects 
with large budget allocations. As further eluded to later under “capacity constraints”, regional offices are adversely 
affected by the instability of project leadership due to high vacancy rates. Key positions in the Projects Units cannot be 
filled because it is unattractive due to lower classification of posts and strict criteria of Occupation Special Dispensation 
(OSD). 

A summary of the departmental financial performance is provided in Tables 1 and 2 below which shows the overall 
budget and expenditure as well as spending per economic classification

Table 1: Overall expenditure analysis

Details
2012/13 2011/12

R`000 R`000

Budget Allocation 7 891 248 7 829 744

Actual expenditure 7 203 925 7 061 437

Spending as a percentage 91% 90%

Unspent funds 687 323 768 307

Unspent funds as a percentage 9% 10%
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Table 2: Spending per economic classification

  2012/13 2011/12

  Final 
Appropria-

tion 

Actual 
Expendi-

ture 
Variance Exp as % 

Final 
Appropria-

tion 

Actual 
Expendi-

ture 
Exp as % 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 % 

Current payments              
Compensation of 
employees 1 381 450  1 374 552  6 898 100%  1 252 469 1 269 579 101%

Goods and 
services  1 203 845 977 014 226 831 81%  1 034 900 1 032 905 100%

Interest and rent 
on land 9 774  21  9 753 0.2%  1 586  1 567 99%

               

Transfers & 
subsidies              

Provinces & 
municipalities 3 090 982 2 969 955 121 027 96%  2 950 451  2 592 965 88%

Departmental 
agencies & 
accounts 

752 986  751 640  1 346 100%  734 690  732 486 100%

Foreign 
governments 
& international 
organisations 

18 941  15 436  3 505 82%  16 915  12 956 77%

Public 
corporations & 
private enterprises 

50 800  50 800  - 100%  150 000  150 000 100%

Non-profit 
institutions 282 724 292 627  (9 903) 104%  154 370  163 801 106%

Households 11 876  11 875  1 100%  3 968  4 012 101%

Gift & donation 3 20 (17) 668% 2 2 100%

Payment for 
capital assets              

Buildings & other 
fixed structures  999 254  713 003 286 251 71%  1 436 745  1 011 408 70%

Machinery & 
equipment  59 558  43 283  16 275 73%  84 984  81 162 96%

Software & other 
intangible assets 

 25 857  501 25 356 2%  6 639  6 569 99%

               

Payment for 
financial assets 3 198  3 198  - 100%   2 025  2 025 100%

               

 Total  7 891 248  7 203 925 687 323 91%  7 829 744  7 061 437 90%
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Virement

The virements for the year were made in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations, 
as follows:

Table 3:

Economic classification

Prog. 1 Prog. 2 Prog 3 Prog 5 Total

R`000 R`000 R`000 R`000 R`000

Compensation of employees (6 749) 58 305 - - 51 556

Goods and services (40 900) (22 605) - 28 000 (35 505)

Transfers and subsidies (Household) 4 800 2 444 - 7 244

Machinery and equipment (23 555) 260 (23 295)

Total (42 849) 14 589 260 28 000 -

•	 Programme 1 reduced by R43 million with funds adjusted to Programme 2 and 5 to offset over-spending on 
compensation of employees, goods and services and household. Funds for goods and services were reduced 
by R4.8 million to offset over-spending under household and the approval for the adjustment was granted by 
National Treasury.

•	 Programme 2 increased by the net amount of R15 million. The amount of R15 million is the net effect of the 
additional allocation of R58 million from Programme 1 and Programme 2 for compensation of employees 
adjusted from goods and services, R2 million increase in household from goods and services in Programme 2 and 
R24 million adjusted to Programme 3 to offset over spending of R260 000 on machinery and equipment and R23 
million to Programme 5 for goods and services.

•	 Programme 3 increased by R260 000 adjusted from Programme 2 to offset over spending under machinery and 
equipment.

•	 Programme 5 increased by R28 million with funds adjusted from Programme 1 and 2 to offset over-spending on 
goods and services. The adjustment of funds from programme 1 and 2 was approved by National Treasury.

Payment of suppliers

The Department’s performance with regard to the settling of invoices within 30 days has not been satisfactory. Non-
compliance with National Treasury directives regulating this matter is regarded as a serious transgression as it has a 
direct economic and social impact on suppliers and their families. A three phased approach has been developed to 
enhance compliance with this requirement and will be directed towards:

•	 Addressing current payment backlogs experienced;

•	 Improving business processes to control and expedite the payment of invoices; and

•	 Implementing an invoice management system supported by an IT capability.

Unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

a.	 Unauthorised expenditure

In response to the Presidential call to eradicate mud schools in the country by 2014/15, the Department constructed 
schools in the Eastern Cape and North West Provinces through the Independent Development Trust (IDT) using 
technologically-advanced alternative methods. The Department’s actions were to swiftly respond to a situation where 
mud schools was dire and posing risks to the teachers and learners. The construction of schools is however outside the 
scope of the Department and this can only be done on behalf of clients on a recoverable basis. The Department further 
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procured desks for the schools since the schools did not have furniture that can accommodate all the classrooms built. 
The schools and movable assets (desks) have been transferred to the relevant provincial departments. 

The total costs incurred for the construction of these schools and desks bought, amount to R166 million. This amount 
was incurred in the financial year 2010/2011 and was subsequently declared unauthorised as it was outside the scope 
of the programme from which it was funded. The transactions were reported to National Treasury as required in terms 
of Section 38(1)(g) of the PFMA. All projects undertaken in response to national priorities will in future be implemented 
with more circumspect and in collaboration with the relevant department and controlling authorities.

b.	 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

The Department procured SAS software in the financial year 2005/2006 at a cost of R40 million. This software enables a 
reporting capability and has not yet been fully operationalised to derive value for money. A further R8 million has since 
been spent to customise the system and provide training to IT personnel. As the Department has embarked on the 
development of an IT blueprint which will target the infrastructure and applications requirements of the Department in 
future, it is anticipated that this software may in future still be customised for proper integration to operational databases.

The Department has established a Steering Committee which will, in future, oversee and control the procurement of IT 
infrastructure to enhance the efficiency of the IT capability. 

c.	 Irregular Expenditure

The Auditor General has qualified irregular expenditure disclosed by the Department and the PMTE between the 2009/10 
to 2011/12 financial years. As these disclosures have balances that roll forward into subsequent financial years, it is 
inevitable that the entire payment population be revisited to adjust amounts disclosed for the relevant financial years. 

The Department has successfully completed this review for the DPW main account and this finding has been cleared in 
the current financial year. However, the National Treasury published revised directives that impacted on the interpretation 
and identification of irregular expenditure which had to be applied to the affected prior years as well. Together with 
additional irregular transactions identified, the cumulative result is that the amount disclosed as irregular expenditure 
for the main vote has subsequently increased from R171 million in financial year 2011/2012 to R1.045 billion in the 
financial year 2012/2013.

With regards to PMTE, all payment transactions for the year 2012/2013 were reviewed and analysed to identify additional 
irregular transactions. This detailed analysis resulted in irregular expenditure to the amount of R1,2 billion being 
identified in the current year resulting in a total cummulative balance of irregular expenditure of R2,6 billion from the 
initially reported R1,4 billion. The combined cumulative irregular expenditure for DPW and PMTE has thus risen from a 
combined opening balance of R1,6 billion to R3,6 billion. 

The problems identified in the Department giving rise to this unacceptably high level of irregular expenditure are 
systemic in nature for both procurement of goods and services as well as leasing of properties. The Department therefore 
embarked on a project which will assist with the re-engineering of business processes and the updating of various 
policies and controls that will address the shortcomings identified.

d.	 Other Investigtions 

The Department’s involvement in the security upgrading of the President’s private residence in Nkandla is already public 
knowledge. This project was undertaken on the strength of a security assessment by the relevant security agencies. 
Based on this needs assessment it is the functional responsibility and mandate of the department to deliver the project 
in line with the specified requirements.

Given the deep-seated problems within the Department that have been exposed in the public arena, we suspected in 
respect of the above mentioned and other related projects, that officials in the Department were complicit in violating 
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our policies and procedures and allowing projects to escalate way beyond approved budgets. This included allowing 
service providers to escalate their prices beyond what is reasonable. Our investigations vindicated our suspicions. We are 
working with the Public Protector to ensure that her investigation on this matter is concluded. It is our commitment to 
address her findings and recommendations when presented.

In addition to the above certain cases of expected maladministration were referred to the Special Investigations Unit 
(SIU) which inter alia include-

•	 Skilpadshek Borderpost project

•	 Procurement of the SAS system 

•	 Various procurements within the Prestige environment

•	 Procurement of leases

The above investigations are at various stages of completion and the recommendations shall be acted upon when 
presented. 

2.	Services rendered by the department
2.1 Tariff policy

The PMTE mainly derives its revenue from collecting accommodation charges from clients occupying State-owned 
accommodation. These tariffs were originally calculated on the properties occupied by clients based on information 
on the Immovable Asset Register as at 2005. Although the entity calculated its required tariff at R 26/m2 on average for 
office buildings, it was only allowed to devolve and claim back the amount that was on client departments’ baselines 
at that stage (2006). This effectively decreased the average tariff to R 4.74/m2. Since the devolution in 2006, this charge 
has increased on average by 19% per annum as approved by National Treasury. The financial impact of this adjustment 
is that the average charge has increased from approximately R4.74/m2 to R11/m2 for office buildings. However, different 
facility types are charged out at different rates. 

It is important to note that only the total amount allocated per client is adjusted annually when allocations are made by 
the National Treasury. The main reason for this is that the Immovable Asset Register improvement project has not yet 
generated confirmed detail information from which a new tariff structure can be accurately calculated.

The entity also derives revenue from a management fee that it charges clients to administer their municipal services 
accounts. A 5% fee is charged on the baseline of every invoice issued as a recovery for municipal services paid on their 
behalf.

Furthermore, the Department generates revenue through the letting of state-owned properties consisting mainly of 
houses and vacant land. Clients are primarily government departments, government officials and members of the pub-
lic.  According to the Department’s Rental Debtors Management Policy, properties must be let at market related tariffs. 
However, due to the poor condition of some properties and other factors impacting on the possible demand of these 
properties, market related rentals could not be charged. 

2.2 Free services

The Department is responsible for cleaning and horticultural services at its own buildings as well as those occupied 
by the Department of Justice. Currently, the Department is paying the salaries and other operating expenses for these 
services where it makes use of its own staff to perform these functions. The trading entity (PMTE) pays all expenditure 
where this service is delivered by means of external contractors. The cost involved for PMTE to perform these functions 
amounted to R158 million during the 2012/13 financial year.
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3. Capacity Constraints
The capacity constraints of the Department relate to a structural fissure and lack of technical and professional skills to 
deliver on its mandate. The symptoms of this structural fissure is clearly evident in the misalignment of responsibilities and 
lack of technical competencies which have resulted in the inability to deliver on DPW’s and PMTE (Client Departments) 
infrastructure programmes in an effective and efficient manner. Five of the 11 Regional Offices had no professional 
services positions on their structure. This created an environment which is not conducive to service delivery.

During the reporting period, the Department identified 219 technical positions that are vacant. This is indicative of the 
capacity constraints experienced in order to deliver effectively on infrastructure projects, which is the core business of 
the Department. In order to address this decisively it was decided to:

•	 Fill the mentioned vacancies as soon as possible. In this regard, 40% of the positions have been advertised and 
will be filled in the coming year.

•	 As a bridging strategy, active in-sourcing of professionals are being pursued to fill this vacuum in the interim. This 
intervention is intended to:

-- Promote a value proposition framework with client departments;

-- Reconfigure the service delivery branches of the Department; and

-- Build capacity through the engagement of professional firms or individuals.

•	 Joint teams have been established for critical clients that represent 80% of the infrastructure budgets.

•	 The Minister further made a plea to retired engineers to make their skills and experience available during the 
transformation phase of the Department. Individuals that have responded will be considered against vacant 
technical positions that could not be filled through normal recruitment processes.

4. Utilisation of donor funds
No donor funds were received during the reporting period.

5.Trading entities and public entities
4.1 Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE)

National Treasury approved the establishment of the Property Management Trading Entity in March 2006 to manage 
the Department’s property portfolio. During the reporting period, the Department took decisive action to implement 
the PMTE in line with the original approval of the National Treasury. An interim solution was conceptualized in terms of 
structure, systems and human resource requirements. This solution was implemented on 1 April 2013 and also focused 
on the accounting and reporting requirements that is required for this entity. Although it is only a requirement for 
all trading entities to adopt the GRAP principles of accounting as from the 2013/14 financial year, it was decided to 
accommodate an early adoption of GRAP as from 1 April 2012 and align all accounting and reporting templates and 
processes accordingly.

The adoption of the interim solution for the PMTE will now clearly segregate the functions of the PMTE and DPW’s 
Main Account. All the current Asset and Property Management functions within DPW will formally be transferred to the 
PMTE and henceforth be reported on as part of the PMTE’s operations. This is a distinct departure from the historical 
dispensation where the PMTE simply operated as an account rather than a fully-functional trading entity. It is foreseen 
that this intervention to properly establish the PMTE will not only address the negative audit opinions received over the 
past years but will also improve the financial sustainability of the PMTE going forward. 
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As a result of the decision to adopt GRAP accounting principles, the following changes were made with regards to the 
financial statements for PMTE:

•	 Included a statement of comparison between budgeted and actual amounts

•	 Revenue and interest is split between revenue from exchange and non-exchange transactions.

•	 Commitments are not disclosed in PMTE but only in DPW as the properties are held and disclosed within DPW.

In the medium to long term, it is the intention for the PMTE to be suitably positioned and structured to enhance the 
capacity of the Department to better deliver on its mandate and to directly contribute towards its strategic objectives. 
For this purpose it was deemed appropriate to position the PMTE as a formalised Trading Entity under the direct control 
of the Department.

The envisaged future structure and operating model will in the medium to longer term most probably take the form of 
a government component and lay the foundation for an organization that will:

a)	 provide fit-for-purpose accommodation to its user departments at appropriate and competitive rates; 

b)	 generate sufficient funding to finance strategic projects to meet the accommodation needs of clients in the short 
to medium term; and 

c)	 apply revenue towards the optimisation of the asset portfolio. 

The current operating model of the PMTE is undoubtedly impacting on the financial efficiency of the PMTE as well as 
the liquidity of the trading account. This is, inter alia, evidenced by the bank overdraft as at year end. The PMTE only 
recovers expenditure incurred on behalf of client departments about 60 to 90 days after payment has been made to 
suppliers. As part of the future operating model, it will be important in conjunction with National Treasury to reconsider 
the devolution framework, the recovery process and the most appropriate funding model. A strategy to deal with long 
outstanding debt has also been developed.

The PMTE is still operating without the relevant financial systems that are critical for enabling compliance with GRAP. The 
business and technical requirements required in terms of GRAP have been developed and documented. The procurement 
of the new financial system will be put to the open market during the 2013/14 financial year. In the meantime the 
PMTE has to continue using the Basic Accounting System (BAS), which is a “cash based” system. All balances have to be 
manually converted to accrual figures at year-end.

Significant progress has been made in terms of completeness and accuracy of figures especially those relating to prior 
year balances. Similarly, reporting is also dependent on manual processes which have to be updated on a monthly 
basis and all accounting treatments (e.g. impairments and discounting) may be subject to human error. To ensure 
accuracy, reconciliations are done on a monthly basis on all accounts and between operational systems to ensure that 
any discrepancies are identified and dealt with expeditiously.

Net liability position reported by PMTE

The PMTE reported a net liability position of R879 million as at 31 March 2013 and R1.052 billion as at 31 March 2012.This 
raises a potential concern relating to the technical solvency of the entity.  

The reported net liability position resulted from the fact that the PMTE has been incurring operating deficits primarily 
as a result of -

•	 Significant impairments cumulatively amounting to some R1.254 billion as at 31 March 2103. This pertains primarily 
to historic debt of which the recoverability is considered to be doubtful. The implementation of appropriate 
systems, processes and enhancement of skills as part of the financial turnaround initiatives will ensure that the 
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need to impair accounts receivables is minimized in future. This is already evidenced by the significant reduction 
in the required impairment by some 79 % from R412 million in the 2011/12 financial year to R83 million during 
2012/13.

•	 Inability of the PMTE to recover all its operating lease expenditure incurred within the leasehold property 
portfolio due to the ineffective property leasing operating environment. During 2012/13 the deficit between 
accommodation leasehold income and operating lease expenditure amounted to R253 million compared to a 
deficit of R346 million in 2011/12. Significant attention is already being given to the operational enhancement of 
this function and effective management of the leasehold property portfolio. This should have a positive financial 
impact on future PMTE results.

It should however be noted that for the year ended 31 March 2013, State-owned immovable assets have been reported 
in the Department’s main vote annual financial statements at a cost of R3.568 billion (see disclosure note 34) – of these 
129 273 properties were disclosed at R1 each. In the next financial year, these assets will be transferred to the PMTE in 
line with the PMTE’s proposed business case and operating model. It is planned to have these assets fair valued in line 
with GRAP requirements applicable to the PMTE. When it is reported on in the PMTE’s financial statements, this will 
result in a significant turnaround from a net liability to net asset position. The implication of the transfer will be that 
PMTE would no longer reflect a technically insolvent position as assets and liabilities will be contained in the same set of 
financial statements and this would be far more representative of the financial position of the entity.

Despite the reported net liability position, the ability of PMTE to meet its obligations in the foreseeable future and to 
continue as a going concern remains secure. This is supported by the budgeted cash flow forecasts, access to funding 
generated from its operating activities and the augmentation allocation the PMTE receives annually from National 
Treasury. The current bank overdraft of some R1.4 billion is directly as a consequence of the PMTE’s operating model 
whereby it first pays for client expenditure and invoices and recovers afterwards from the affected parties. This timing 
difference of up to 90 days results in PMTE effectively providing bridging finance to its clients. The PMTE business model 
must be aligned to provide the most viable solution for both the PMTE and its clients.

5.2 Public entities 

5.2.1 cidb

For the financial year 2012/13 the cidb received a grant of R68 million from the Department. A further amount of R43 
million was generated in the form of revenue from registrations, as well as other income of R5 million. The total income 
for the reporting period was R115 million for the year. 

The net operating deficit for the financial year was R7 million. This was funded from the accumulated surplus of R59 
million carried over from the previous financial year. 

The cidb performance achievement according to the approved performance plan was satisfactory.

5.2.2 IDT

The financial year ended 31 March 2013 has been a challenging one for the Independent Development Trust (IDT). The 
programme portfolio it implemented for client departments grew by over 30% from the 2011/12 financial year to achieve 
programme expenditure of R5.6 billion. This delivery was achieved despite resources remaining largely unchanged from 
the previous year.

Management fees charged to client departments grew by more than 33% compared with the previous year to  
R189 million. Investment income totalled R13 million due to the diminishing investment fund which stood at R170 
million at the end of the financial year. The allocation from Treasury of R 51 million assisted in reducing the deficit for the 
financial year to R111million.
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The cost containment strategy, implemented during the financial year, and aimed at ensuring enhanced efficiencies 
and the better utilisation of resources, was an enabling factor in containing the operational costs. The organisation has 
focused on the delivery of infrastructure and reduced its social facilitation deliverables as it awaits confirmation of its 
mandate which should be finalised 2013/2014 financial year. By so doing the total operational costs have been limited 
to R370 million.

The IDT’s focus in the coming financial year is on increasing the level of management fees, with the support of the 
Department and National Treasury.  Failure to increase the managment fees will reult in the IDT not remaining a going 
concern.

5.2.3 Agrément Board

The Department has experienced problems to secure transfer payments to this institution because its mandate and legal 
status has not yet been formally established in terms of legislation. The Department has now initiated formal processes 
to correct this.

The overall financial performance of the entity has been satisfactory during the reporting period. It shows an overall 2% 
increase in revenue to R10 million. On the other hand overhead costs reduced by 8% during the year contributing to a 
107% increase in net margin. 

5.2.4 Council for the Built Environment

In line with the MTEF allocation, R27 million was received as a transfer payment from the Department. A secondary 
transfer of R708 000 was subsequently, made bringing the total grant received to R28 million. This allocation was used 
to pursue the following strategic areas:

•	 Implementation of processes and systems geared at optimizing delivery of the mandate;

•	 Driving the skills development for the transformation of the built environment;

•	 Facilitating the participation of the built environment professions in pursuit of national strategic objectives; and

•	 Promoting and enforcing professional ethics to ensure public safety within the built environment.

Interim financial results indicate minor movements within key financial components. Overall expenditure declined by 
2% due to:

•	 A decrease in operating expenditure due to a decline of spending on bursaries

•	 Reduction in the use of consultants

Assets increased by 29% due to the capital investment made on property plant and equipment.

5.2.5 Parliamentary Village Management Board

In accordance with the mandate of the Board, an amount of R8 million was transferred to the Board during the reporting 
period.

5.2.6 Construction Sector Education Training Authority 

In support of training and skills development in the construction industry, an amount of R1,260 million was transferred 
during the reporting period to the Construction SETA.

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2013



148 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

6. Organisations that received transfer payments
6.1 EPWP: Integrated grant for Provinces and Municipalities

In the 2012/13 financial year, the EPWP Integrated grant for Provinces and EPWP Integrated grant for Municipalities 
were changed from a schedule 8 grant to a schedule 5 grant for Provinces and Schedule 6 grant to Municipalities. This 
was mainly because of the low uptake of the incentive grant by different public bodies when the grant was a schedule 8 
grant and public bodies were paid according to their performance. 

The change of the schedule of the grants implies that the grants are now planning and performance based. At the 
beginning of the relevant financial year, 40% of the grant allocation is disbursed to eligible provinces and municipalities 
based upon them signing an incentive agreement detailing the projects that they are going to implement. The first 
disbursement for provincial departments was made in May 2012 with two further disbursements in August 2012 and 
November 2012. For Municipalities, the first disbursement was made in August 2012 with two further disbursements in 
November 2012 and February 2013. The second and third disbursements of the integrated grant consists of tranches of 
30% each and depends on public bodies submitting relevant financial reports and implementing projects according to 
the relevant business plan. 

The change of the schedule of the integrated grant has enabled all the eligible public bodies to access funds and all funds 
were disbursed. Some of the public bodies have experienced challenges in implementing projects but the Department 
is providing technical support to the different public bodies to ensure that they implement the different projects and 
spend their funds.

For the Social sector and the Non-State sector funds have been disbursed to the relevant Provincial Departments and 
Non-State organisations.

6.2 Devolution of property rates funds to Provinces:

Prior to 1994, the Department was the custodian / owner of most state-owned properties and therefore took the 
responsibility for the payment of municipal property rates. This continued until the 1st April 2008 when the function 
and payments of approxiately 50 000 properties were transferred to respective provinces. The funds for the payment of 
property rates to municipalities were devolved in the form of Conditional Grant. During 2012/13, an allocation of R1.919 
billion was made available to the Provinces for the payment of property rates and R1.802 billion (including the approved 
roll over), was spent by the provinces.

The Department transferred R1.798 billion to the provincial public works departments. This is equivalent to 94% of 
the allocated budget of R1.919 billion. Kwa-Zulu Natal Provincial Department of Public Works declared a saving of 
R120 million while Western Cape, Free State and Mpumalanga together had declared shortfall of R109 million of their 
allocation. 

6. Public Private Partnerships (PPP)
The Department participates in a PPP for the outsourced provision of Fleet Management Services through the National 
Department of Transport. The PPP provides full maintenance lease vehicles as per the requirement from each Depart-
ment. The contract is a 5 year contract which commenced in November 2006 and ended in November 2011. However, 
the contract was extended with a further two years in November 2011 until November 2013.
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8. Corporate governance arrangements
The nature and extent of prior years’ findings was a compelling indicator to take decisive action to remedy the root 
causes affecting the effectiveness of operations of the Department. An analysis done by the department in collaboration 
with the National Treasury set the direction for multiple interventions to address matters of regularity, internal controls 
enhancement and enforcement. This also informed fundamental transformation initiatives to improve efficiencies to 
deliver on the department’s mandate. From this review, it was clear that challenges were not localised in any particular 
function or office of the department but was rather a general trend. Due to the nature and extent of the problem, it was 
decided to target a number of critical functions to urgently stabilise operations on a wide front. This led to the initiation 
of stabilisation interventions focussing on updating the Immovable Asset Register, performing a comprehensive review 
of all private leases that the department is currently contractually bound to, and, conducting a comprehensive review 
of all finance and supply chain functions. These interventions are further elaborated on in more detail in other sections 
of this report.

A number of additional governance mechanisms were established to enforce corrective action where discrepancies 
were identified. The operationalization of a Compliance and Inspectorate unit in Head Office and all regions was an 
intervention to pro-actively avoid the occurrence of irregular and unauthorised activities. Furthermore an Action Plan 
Committee was established as an oversight structure monitoring interventions to address the root causes of core find-
ings raised by the Auditor – General as well as management.

At a senior management level and as a direct support of these initiatives, an Accountability EXCO was also established to 
oversee the progress and results from these interventions in order to steer the department towards an improved audit 
outcome. These mechanisms have had significant impact as progress is actively managed, reported on and senior man-
agers are held accountable for progress with corrective action. 

9. Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued
No activities were discontinued during the reporting period.

10. New / proposed activities
No new activities were initiated during the reporting period.
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11. Asset management (Movable)

TOTAL MINOR/MAJOR MOVABLE ASSETS - DPW ASSET REGISTER 

Regions 

Distribution 
of Assets Per 
Region

Value of Assets

R`000

CPT 53 623  201 689 

PTA 23 586  176 740 

H/O 16 367  129 409 

DBN 7 984  45 400 

PE 4 416  12 878 

BLM 4 209  10 548 

JHB 3 229  13 594 

KIM 1 806  9 341 

PLK 1 750  7 707 

MMB 1 726  7 007 

NLS 1 378  6 867 

UMT 815  5 205 

TOTALS 120 889  626 385 

The management of DPW assets is complex in nature due to the Prestige environment. The chart above demonstrates 
that 71% of DPW assets are distributed within the Prestige Regions namely Cape Town, Pretoria and Durban. These 
assets are located within VIP residences, Ministerial houses, flats for Directors-General, Parliamentary villages and offices. 
Despite the complexity of the Prestige environment, the management of departmental assets has been very efficient as 
it has received unqualified audit opinions for the last three consecutive years. This is due to the following intervention 
strategies that are in place:

•	 Continuous scanning of the environment to stay abreast of current changes

•	 Continuous improvement of internal controls to minimise risk and ensure effective and efficient movable asset 
management

•	 Introduction of the signing of a compliance certificate to reduce the risk of unauthorised movements

•	 Appointment of a service provider to assist the department with the verification of assets especially within 
Prestige environment (capacity constraints)

•	 Establishment of a fully-fledged movable asset management function/unit both at national and regional offices 

•	 Continuous cycle counts, monthly reconciliation, asset register audit and annual verifications

•	 Unique identification, cataloguing, fair valuation of heritage assets within VIP residence and Groote Schuur 
Museum. 

•	 Change accounting unit for recording of curtains, carpets, cutlery and crockery by uniquely identifying, 
cataloguing and fair valuing items within VIP residences.
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 12. Inventories
As a result of the change in accounting policy from historical cost to weighted average cost, the opening balance of 
inventories held at cost of R12 million has been restated to R5.7 million, representing 580 803 units. The breakdown of 
the inventories for the financial year 2012/2013 is as follows:

Table 4: Balances of inventories

INVENTORY
2012/2013 2011/2012

Quantity R’ 000 Quantity R’ 000

Opening balance 580 803 5 674 662 628 8 321

Add (less): Adjustment to prior year balances -  4  932  (114)

Add: Additions / Purchases – Cash 1 064 142 38 129 910 007 36 125

Add: Additions – Non cash 6 698  184 24 600  416

(Less): Disposals (41)  (2) (5 011)  (5)

(Less): Issues (961 535) (31 833) (1 004 676) (30 798)

Add / (Less): Adjustments 5 582  456 (7 678) (8 271)

Closing balance 695 649 12 612 580 802 5 674

13. Events after the reporting date 
No material events occurred after the reporting period.

14. SCOPA resolutions 
Initiatives to improve audit outcomes 

The Department introduced various projects to improve the audit outcomes within the next two years. Substantial 
progress has been made during the current financial year with regards to the completeness and accuracy of prior year’s 
irregular expenditure, completeness of immoveable assets, completeness and disclosure of accruals and related party 
transactions.

The overall quality of the Annual Financial Statements has been improved for both the Department and PMTE. Although 
the PMTE’s Annual Financial Statements has been prepared in line with Generally Recognized Accounting Practice, the 
underlying information and lack of a proper accounting system remains a challenge. Audit Action Plans are in place to 
address the remaining issues identified in the 2012/13 financial year.
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Table 5: Department of Public Works (DPW)

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

a) The Department did not provide sufficient 
and appropriate audit evidence to confirm 
the completeness, existence, rights, 
valuation and allocation of properties 
recorded in the immovable asset register of 
the department stated at R3 498 747 000 in 
note 34 to the financial statements;

Immovable 
Tangible Capital 
Assets

The Committee recommends:

a)	 Capacity constraints in the department 
are addressed so that officials of the 
department take ownership of and 
responsibility for the immovable asset 
register;

In December 2011 DPW appointed 21 
management trainees on a 24 months 
contract to capacitate the resource 
requirements to ensure that the Immovable 
Asset Register Enhancement Programme is 
completed.

The Operating model is under 
development to address capacity 
constraints in the department in future. 

b) There was no supporting documentation for 
the restatement as disclosed in note 34 to 
the financial statements, the corresponding 
figure for immovable assets has been 
reduced by R6 091 920 000 in order to 
address a prior year misstatement; and

The committee recommends:

a)	 All information listed in the asset 
register is supported by valid supporting 
documentation;

The Department has been sourcing, 
scanning and saving the required 
supporting documents (Title Deeds, SG 
Diagrams etc) through desktop exercises 
to be used as portfolio of evidence in 
the asset register during the audit of the 
Annual Financial Statements for the year 
ended by 31 March 2013. The process of 
maintaining the required valid supporting 
documentation for immovable assets has 
been incorporated into the Department’s 
business processes and is an on-going 
process.

c) The existence, completeness, valuation and 
allocation of, and rights pertaining to, the 
restated immovable assets corresponding 
figure of R2 238 008 000, could not be 
confirmed.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The committee recommends:

The asset register is updated and maintained 
throughout the year and adheres to the 
requirements for asset registers by National 
Treasury; and

a)	 Valuation of assets is done in accordance 
with the applicable accounting 
framework.

The Department of Public of Works (DPW) 
has completed the desktop analysis in 
verifying and validating the properties 
belonging to National Government under 
DPW’s custodianship against the Deeds 
Data, Chief Surveyor-General Data, National 
and Provincial Immovable Asset Registers. 
DPW is currently reconciling the properties 
against the latest Deeds data to track 
movements in property ownership since 
the initial analysis.

The verified and validated properties 
determine the scope of work for physical 
verification which will commence in the 
2013/14 financial years. DPW’s IAR is being 
maintained and updated on a regular 
basis by the management trainees at Head 
Office. In compliance with the applicable 
accounting frameworks the Department 
will also apply a fair value model and 
capitalisation practices as a means of 
establishing meaningful, consistent and 
reliable deemed cost for its immovable 
assets.

a) The department did not have an adequate 
system in place for identifying and 
recognizing all irregular expenditure. The 
completeness of irregular expenditure 
relating to the current year stated at R1 
396 000 (2010: R27 402 000) in note 26 
to the financial statements could not be 
confirmed;

Irregular 
Expenditure

The committee recommends:

a)	 The completion of the deviation registers 
is made compulsory for the head office 
and regional offices. This is not only for 
the awarding of tenders , but also where 
the required number of quotations was 
not obtained;

The reporting of deviations has been made 
compulsory through SCM Circular 16 of 
2012. In addition a centralized reporting 
repository has been set in place within 
the Paper -Trail System to ensure that all 
the offices upload the deviations within 
the system as soon as they occur on a 
weekly basis. All the relevant officials have 
been trained to ensure that they report 
accordingly in the system.

Compliance to the reporting requirements 
has not been adequate and measures are 
being put in place to follow up outstanding 
deviation reports from the relevant business 
units.

b) Irregular expenditure was understated with 
R16 552 542 due to payments that were 
made in contravention of supply chain 
management requirements not being 
included in irregular expenditure relating to 
the current year, disclosed at R1 396 000 in 
note 26 to the financial statements; and
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The Committee recommends:

The deviations are monitored, investigated 
and discussed at top management level, 
and appropriate disciplinary action is taken 
immediately against responsible officials 
where deviations were not justified;

A report on deviations is sent through to 
the CFO and the ACD: SCM. Such a report is 
also availed to the Stabilization Team both 
for quotations and bids. Within the Audit 
Action. A consolidated report of deviation 
for transactions above a million has been 
prepared and presented to management. 
In respect of transactions below R500  000 
a deviation report has also been compiled. 

A new circular has also been put in place to 
devolve the management of deviations to 
the regions and so as to hold the relevant 
managers accountable. At national level the 
delegation for consideration and approval 
of these deviations has been placed at the 
National Bid Adjudication Committee. 

c) Audit evidence for expenditure 
transactions with an estimated value of 
R154 648 753 could not be obtained. The 
occurrence, accuracy and compliance of 
goods and services amounting to R819 
046 000 and expenditure for capital assets 
stated at R1 340 569 000 in the statement 
of financial performance, could not be 
verified.

The Committee recommends:

Supply chain management policies are 
updated and circulars to this effect issued, 
and monitoring controls are strengthened 
to ensure adherence;

As is SCM policy, designed to incorporate 
the circular and changes that were effected 
during the 2012/13 financial is in the process 
of being finalized by the Financial Service 
Provider that was appointed in December 
2012 for approval by the Accounting Officer. 

The Committee recommends:

Capacity constraints in the internal audit 
are addressed to ensure that all allegations 
are responded to timeously; and

The Department is considering enhancing 
the structure of the Unit to ensure that it 
is adequately and appropriately resourced. 
The work-study has been commissioned 
to ensure that the Unit is appropriately 
structured.

Recruitment process for some of the 
approved proposed position is underway.

A panel of three service providers has been 
appointed for two years as a short term 
measure to address the capacity issue.

The Committee recommends:

A comprehensive policy with 
corresponding procedures is implemented 
to ensure proper record-keeping.

We have finalized the records management 
policy. It is in the process of being rolled 
out to the Regions.

There is also a task team that has been 
established by the meeting of the Minister 
with the Executive Managers to come up 
with better records management systems 
for implementation throughout the 
department.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

a) Audit evidence could not be obtained for 
the restatement of the comparative for 
operating leases of R115 039 000;

Lease 
Commitments 

b) The obligation, valuation and classification 
of the operating lease commitments 
corresponding figure of R115 039 000 
as disclosed in note 24.1 to the financial 
statements, could not be confirmed;

The Committee recommends:

Sufficient audit evidence is made available 
on time for all disclosure notes in the 
financial statements, for audit purposes.

Audit evidence was provided for the year 
ended 31 March 2013 except transactions 
that relate to PMTE which is under review.

The Committee recommends:

Control measures are implemented to 
ensure completeness of information 
disclosed

Implementation of control measures are 
being implemented, but not yet addressing 
completeness.

c) Information technology (IT) finance 
leases entered into in April 2009 were 
not included in the finance lease 
commitments during the prior year. 
Available lease registers did not contain 
the commitments as at the end of the prior 
year. The completeness of the finance lease 
commitments of the prior year, amounting 
to R7 797 000 as disclosed in note 24.3 
to the financial statements, could not be 
confirmed.

The Committee recommends:

Officials at regional offices are capacitated 
and trained to perform these functions.

A Financial Statement Framework was 
introduced by Head Office to capacitate 
regions where officials can perform the 
function effectively. This control was 
developed to ensure that all commitments 
are disclosed in the AFS. All officials at 
regional offices were trained between 
January and February 2013.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

a) Claims against the department amounting 
to R5 095 376 were not included in 
the contingent liabilities disclosed. 
Furthermore, the department did not 
perform any assessment as to the most 
likely settlement amounts. The valuation 
and completeness of claims against the 
department stated at R29 395 000 in note 
20 to the financial statements could not be 
confirmed;

Contingent 
Liabilities 

The Committee recommends:

Assessment of claims are documented 
and included in audit files submitted with 
thefinancial statement.

Assessment of contingent liabilities is 
currently documented on a quarterly 
basis, submitted to both PMTE and DPW 
team for verification for ultimate inclusion 
in audit files submitted with the financial 
statement. 

b) Contingent liabilities were understated 
by R3 636 000 due to unconfirmed 
interdepartmental balances not being 
included in disclosure note 20 to the 
financial statements.

The Committee recommends:

A reconciliation of the claims disclosed 
in the department and those disclosed in 
the Property Management Trading Entity 
is performed to ensure completeness of 
disclosures.

There are teams currently set up 
comprising PMTE and DPW working hand 
in hand with Legal Services to ensure 
accuracy and completeness of disclosures 
in the financial statements in order to avoid 
understatement.

a) As disclosed in note 30 to the financial 
statements, the department is participating 
in a PPP for the lease of vehicles. However, 
neither lease expenditure nor lease 
commitments have been included in the 
disclosure note;

Public Private 
Partnership

The Committee recommends:

Monitoring controls are implemented to 
ensure that disclosures are in line with the 
prescribed accounting framework.

It was successfully performed for the year 
ended 31 March 2013.

b) Lease expenditure for the current year was 
understated by R19 955 610 (R17 400 000 
for the prior year), but the department’s 
accounting records did not permit the 
quantification of the omission of prior year 
lease expenditure;

c) The extent to which the lease expenditure 
of the prior year and the lease 
commitments of the current year had been 
understated could not be determined.

The Committee recommends:

A comprehensive policy with 
corresponding procedures is implemented 
to ensure proper record-keeping.

No policy except the AFS framework 
developed in line with the Preparation 
Guide issued by National Treasury.
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Table 5: Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE)

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

a) The entity did not have adequate systems 
for identifying and recognizing all irregular 
expenditure. The completeness of irregular 
expenditure relating to the current year 
stated at R138 637 000 (2010: R264 180 
000) in note 12 to the financial statements 
could therefore not be confirmed;

Irregular 
Expenditure

Supply chain management processes are 
validated by Inspectorate and Compliance 
before appointment is finalized. All batches 
relating to financial year 2012/2013 have 
been checked to ensure completeness of 
irregular expenditure.

The Committee recommends:

d)	The planned project, to implement 
a system that enables continuous 
financial reporting in line with the 
requirements of the SA statements of 
GAAP, is prioritized and finalised as a 
matter of urgency.

The specification for billing and accounting 
system will be finalised in 2013/14 and 
award of bid will also be in 2013/14

b) Payments amounting to R291 668 886 
were made in contravention of supply 
chain management requirements. The 
amount was not included in irregular 
expenditure, disclosed in note 12 to the 
financial statements resulting in irregular 
expenditure being understated by R291 
668 886.

The Committee recommends:

The completion of the deviation registers 
is made compulsory for head office and 
regional offices. This is not only for the 
awarding of tenders, but also where the 
required number of quotations was not 
obtained.

The deviation register is submitted to Head 
Office-SCM monthly by all Regional Offices 
and Head Office.

Compliance to the reporting requirements 
has not been adequate and measures are 
being put in place to follow up outstanding 
deviation reports from the relevant 
business units.

The Committee recommends:

The deviations are monitored, investigated 
and discussed at top management level, 
and appropriate disciplinary action is taken 
immediately against responsible officials 
where deviations were not justified.

Due to limited capacity in SCM-Head Office, 
deviations are not yet investigated to 
enable management to take appropriate 
actions.

The Committee recommends:

Supply chain management policies are 
updated and circulars to this effect issued, 
and monitoring controls are strengthened 
to ensure adherence.

Supply Chain Management policy is 
currently being updated to be in line with 
current updates.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The Committee recommends:

Capacity constraints in the internal audit 
unit are addressed to ensure that all 
allegations are responded to timeously.

The Department is considering enhancing 
the structure of the Unit to ensure that it 
is adequately and appropriately resourced. 
The work-study has been commissioned 
to ensure that the Unit is appropriately 
structured.

Recruitment process for some of the 
approved proposed position is underway.

A panel of three service providers has been 
appointed for a period of two years as a 
short term measure to address the capacity 
issue.

The Committee recommends:

A comprehensive policy with 
corresponding procedures is implemented 
to ensure proper record-keeping.

We have finalized the records management 
policy. It is in the process of being rolled 
out to the Regions.

There is also a task team that has been 
established by the meeting of the Minister 
with the Executive Managers to come up 
with better records management systems 
for implementation throughout the 
department.

The Auditor-General reported that the 
entity did not have adequate systems for 
identifying and recognizing all fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure. The completeness of 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R6 772 
000 in note 12 to the financial statements 
could therefore not be confirmed.

Fruitless and 
Wasteful 
Expenditure

The Committee recommends:

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure register 
is compiled monthly, and management 
reviews the register to ensure compliance 
with Treasury Regulations and the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA).

The register of fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure is compiled monthly and 
submitted to National Treasury in 
compliance with Treasury Regulations and 
the Public Finance Management Act.

The register is reviewed by each Head of 
Finance and SCM at Regional Offices and 
Directorate: Inspectorate & Compliance 
at Head Office and also the consolidated 
register.

The Committee recommends:

The entity implements adequate and 
appropriate systems to identify unutilized 
or underutilized buildings so as to avoid 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

The Rehabilitation programme is funded by 
National Treasury and is aligned to UAMPs 
and CAMP. Consultants are to be appointed 
to determine highest and best practice 
use. The programme will be aligned to the 
Green Building Framework. It will include 
Facilities management and marketed to 
users. Action and Implementation Plans 
have been developed. 
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The Auditor-General reported that 
the entity did not apply the principles 
contained in SA Statements of GAAP, IAS 
39 (AC 133) correctly and was unable 
to provide sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence for the assumptions used in 
determining the accounting treatment of 
the bank overdraft.

As a result, interest received – stated at 
R123 657 000 in note 9 to the financial 
statements – was overstated by R84 510 
107 and the bank overdraft – stated at 
R1 254 763 000 in note 4 to the financial 
statements – was understated by R84 510 
107

Bank Overdraft

The Committee recommends:

Adequately skilled staff with the necessary 
GAAP experience is employed, and the 
current staff members trained to ensure 
correct application of GAAP principles.

The finding has been addressed and 
cleared.

The Committee recommends:

The financial statements and supporting 
schedules are reviewed in line with the 
SA statements of GAAP and that all 
deficiencies are resolved before they are 
submitted for audit.

The finding has been addressed and 
cleared.

The Auditor-General reported that the 
occurrence, obligations, completeness, 
classification and accuracy of commitments 
of R9 475 435 000 in note 13 to the 
financial statements could not be verified 
due to lack of sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence.

Other 
Commitments

The Committee recommends:

A comprehensive policy with 
corresponding procedures is implemented 
to ensure proper record-keeping.

A report is currently being developed 
on Work Control System (WCS) and 
to be certified to confirm accuracy 
and completeness after verifying with 
documentation.

The Committee recommends:

Responsibility for the safeguarding 
of documents is clearly assigned 
to individuals and action is taken if 
documentation is lost.

Through the Turnaround intervention, 
the Department will further develop 
a better records management system 
for implementation throughout the 
department.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The entity did not assess the probability of 
the outflow of future economic benefits in 
respect of claims made against the entity 
as required per SA Statements of GAAP, 
IAS 37. As a result the audit team was not 
able to determine whether contingent 
liabilities reflected were accurately valued 
and whether, based on the probability of 
the outflow of future economic benefits, 
in certain instances a provision should 
have been raised. Consequently, the 
completeness, occurrence, obligations, 
classification and valuation of contingent 
liabilities stated at R129 436 000 in note 14 
to the financial statements could not be 
verified;

Contingent 
Liabilities 

The Committee recommends:

Monitoring controls are implemented to 
ensure that disclosures are in line with the 
prescribed accounting framework.

Disclosure note was implemented 
successfully 

The Committee recommends:

Assessments of claims are documented and 
included in audit files submitted with the 
financial statement.

Contingent liabilities were assessed 
retrospectively 2011/12.

The entity could not provide evidence 
for the prior year error (reduction of 
contingent liabilities by R320 728 000). 
Consequently the occurrence, obligation, 
completeness, classification and valuation 
pertaining to the contingent liabilities 
corresponding figure of R70 276 000 in 
note 14 to the financial statements could 
not be verified.

The Committee recommends:

A reconciliation of the claims disclosed 
in the department and those disclosed in 
the Property Management Trading Entity 
if performed to ensure completeness of 
disclosures

Reconciliation between claims between 
the department and PMTE was performed 
retrospectively and disclosed correctly.

The Auditor-General reported that the 
operating lease commitments from the 
perspective of both the lessee and lessor 
stated at R12 521 880 000 in note 13 to the 
financial statements, were understated by 
an estimated amount of R2 651 698 215. 
This resulted from the calculation of the 
lease commitment being based on the 
straight-line lease payments instead of 
taking the minimum lease payments into 
account as per SA Statements of GAAP, IAS 
17 (AC105) on Leases.

Operating Lease 
Commitments
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The Committee recommends:

Adequately skilled staff with the necessary 
GAAP experience is employed, and the 
current staff members trained to ensure 
correct application of GAAP principles.

Staffing has been addressed and training 
to the current staff will be addressed on 
continues basis.

The Committee recommends:

The financial statements and supporting 
schedules are reviewed in line with the 
SA statements of GAAP and that all 
deficiencies are resolved before they are 
submitted for audit.

Internal control measures will be addressed 
with the implementation of the review and 
audit of the leases.

The Auditor-General reported that due to 
the lack of a proper accounting systems 
for trade receivables and unreconciled 
individual trade receivable balances at 
year end, the existence, completeness, 
valuation, rights and obligations of related 
party balances as well as the occurrence, 
completeness, accuracy, cut-off and 
classification of related party transactions, 
as disclosed in note 15 of the financial 
statements, could not be verified.

Related Party 
Transactions

The Committee recommends:

Adequately skilled staff with the necessary 
GAAP experience is employed, and the 
current staff members trained to ensure 
correct application of GAAP principles.

Staffing has been addressed and training 
to the current staff will be addressed on 
continues basis.

The Committee recommends:

The financial statements and supporting 
schedules are reviewed in line with the 
SA Statements of GAAP and that all 
deficiencies are resolved before they are 
submitted for audit.

Internal control measures that addresses 
the review of financial statement and 
continually improving.

The Committee recommends:

Policies and procedures to regulate the 
identification and recording of related 
parties in line with GAAP are developed.

Policy is in place and will be reviewed.

The Committee recommends:

A register to record all related party 
transactions is implemented.

Transaction and balances are recorded in 
the schedules and the aged analysis on a 
monthly basis.

The Auditor-General reported that the 
entity did not include a narrative note as 
per the requirements of SA Statements 
of GAAP, IAS 8 on the nature of the 
restatements disclosed.

Restatement of 
Comparative 
Amounts
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

The Committee recommends:

Adequately skilled staff with the necessary 
GAAP experience is employed, and the 
current staff members trained to ensure 
correct application of GAAP principles.

Staffing has been addressed and training 
to the current staff will be addressed on 
continues basis

The Committee recommends:

The financial statements and supporting 
schedules are reviewed in line with the 
SA statements of GAAP and that all 
deficiencies are resolved before they are 
submitted for audit.

Restatements were implemented 
successfully.

a) The alleged abuse of urgent and 
emergency procurement as well as 
the utilization of sole suppliers. The 
investigation aims to establish whether 
there was collusion between officials 
and service providers and to determine 
any reckless spending of funds. The 
investigation was still ongoing at the 
reporting date.

Investigations

b) Irregular expenditure in respect of the 
leasing of properties as well as an alleged 
irregular award of a tender and the 
incapacity of a contractor to fulfill his 
duties.

c) Complaints and allegations of 
maladministration and improper and 
unlawful conduct by the Department of 
Public Works and the South African Police 
Service relating to the leasing of office 
accommodation in Pretoria.

d) Complaints and allegations of 
maladministration and improper and 
unlawful conduct by the Department 
of Public Works and the South African 
Police Service relating to the leasing of 
the South African Police Service’s office 
accommodation in Durban.

The Committee recommends:

The committee notes the reported 
investigations, urges the Accounting 
Officer to ensure their finalization without 
unnecessary delay, and to apply whatever 
corrective measures necessary to recover 
all and any monies found to have been 
irregular expended.

The investigation has been finalised and 
disciplinary proceedings have been initiated 
against an official who was implicated in 
the identified anomalies. A criminal case 
has been registered with the SAPS. Works 
Manager was found guilty and sanctioned to 
3 months suspension without pay for failure 
to declare his relationship to an entity that 
he awarded contracts to company owned 
by his son.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT TRADING ENTITY (PMTE)

No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

Investigations on leasing:-

These matters were initially identified 
to be transferred to the SIU for further 
investigations as IA&IS felt that they fell 
within the SIU investigations mandate 
as stipulated in Proclamation 38 of 2010. 
The SIU subsequently indicated that they 
were not in a position to execute these 
assignments.

The Unit has since attended to them and the 
status is as follows:-

JHB - Irregular Expenditure on Leases, 
this matter was referred to Inspectorate 
and Compliance to validate the irregular 
expenditure identified. The assessment 
conducted on the matter by IA&IS did 
not reveal any indication of incident of 
fraud and corruption but rather that the 
expenditure was regarded as irregular due 
non-compliance with SCM prescripts. Upon 
validation of the irregular expenditure the 
Inspectorate and Compliance will then 
recommend possible course of action to be 
taken. 

CPT – Irregularities in leasing, this 
investigation has been completed. A 
preliminary investigation completed found 
no evidence of irregularities in leasing of 
the premises situated at 77 Long Market 
Street, Cape Town. It was revealed that the 
allegations made by the complaint were 
unfounded. 

DBN – Irregular lease Contract, this 
investigation has been completed and 
a report is undergoing internal quality 
assurance review before being issued to 
Management to consider and implement 
recommendations. 

The SIU has completed and finalised 
investigations around the irregular lease 
transactions entered into between DPW 
and a service provider at Johannesburg 
Regional Office and action is currently being 
initiated against the transgressors. 
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No. REPORT BY AUDITOR-GENERAL Subject PROGRESS

Investigation on Irregular awarding of ten-
der and incapacity of contractor to fulfill 
his duties has been completed and report 
issued. A case of possible misrepresentation 
against the contractor will be reported to 
the SAPS. The investigation report further 
made numerous recommendations to be 
considered for implementation by the DPW 
SCM Unit to curb future reoccurrences of 
identified weaknesses in the evaluation 
methods utilised to evaluate bids and ap-
pointment of successful bidders. The De-
partment is considering referring the matter 
to SAPS for further investigation on recom-
mendations by the AGSA to consider such.
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15 Corrective action based on prior audit reports 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, 
adverse opinion and matter of non-

compliance
Financial year in which it first arose Progress made in clearing / 

resolving the matter

Audit opinion obtained in the various 
comparative financial years

•	 2008/09 Qualified opinion

•	 2009/10 Qualified opinion

•	 2010/11 Disclaimer of opinion

•	 2011/12 Disclaimer of opinion

See detail below

Immovable assets

The Department did not have  a 
complete asset register of all 
immovable properties belonging to 
the national government under the 
custodianship of the Department of 
Public Works, as disclosed at R1 in 
note 31.3.

·	 2008/2009 Phase 1: Completed Deeds 
reconciliation to determine deemed 
national and provincial properties. 

Phase 2 : Reconciliation of national 
and provincial IAR’s to be completed 
by 31/03/2013

An Immovable Asset register has 
been prepared and reconciled to 
Deeds office database, this register 
will agree to AFS and includes 
all registered land parcels with 
structures thereon. 

Irregular Expenditure

Section 38(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA 
requires the Department to 
implement and maintain an 
appropriate procurement and 
provisioning system that is fair, 
equitable, transparent, competitive 
and cost-effective.

The Department did not have an 
adequate system in place to 
identifying and recognizing all 
irregular expenditure and there were 
satisfactory alternative procedures 
to obtain reasonable assurance that 
all irregular expenditure had been 
recorded.

·	 2009/2010 The policy on irregular expenditure 
has been reviewed to address all 
shortcomings identified. Officials 
have been trained on identifying 
irregular expenditure. As phase 1 to 
address the irregular expenditure, 
the Department has as per AGSA 
recommendation, embarked on 
a project to check all payments 
processed from financial year 
2009/10 to 2011/2012. The 
department completed the review 
of these batches for the Main Vote . 
For PMTE, only the current year were 
reviewed. The PMTE prior year will 
be resumed as soon as the audit has 
been completed. 

The Department has further 
implemented Inspectorate and 
Compliance function. All payments 
are currently checked by Inspectorate 
and Compliance directorate. Officials 
have been employed for regional 
offices as well .

Operating leases

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
for operating lease expenditure 
transactions not provided.

·	 2010/11 The Department has reconciled all 
leases from 2006 in order to identify 
all transaction that must be disclosed

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2013



166 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, 
adverse opinion and matter of non-

compliance
Financial year in which it first arose Progress made in clearing / 

resolving the matter

Receivables for departmental 
revenue

Adequate system not in place to 
maintain records of all properties 
rented out by the department. The 
list of properties currently rented 
out could not be reconciled with 
the departments immovable asset 
register.

·	 2011/12 Compilation of the Immovable Asset 
Register fully underway.

Lease module to be compiled 
post physical verification of the 
immovable assets.

Lease commitments – Operating 
lease Revenue 

Actual lease agreements could not 
be submitted. Understatement 
of lease commitments where 
lease contracts were submitted. 
Additionally, in the absence of a 
complete and accurate immovable 
asset register the AGSA could not 
determine whether the department 
has completely accounted 
for operating lease revenue 
commitments with respect to all 
state-owned properties currently 
rented out by the department.

·	 2010/11 Lease agreements have been 
provided and quantification of lease 
commitments determined on the 
basis of lease agreements.

Commitments

Cost Price Adjustment Provision 
(CPAP)commitments could not be 
supported with appropriate audit 
evidence

·	 2011/12

Manual calculations will be 
performed for the current year, until 
investigations are finalised on the 
PMIS/IE-Works/WCS capability.

Related party transactions

The department was unable to 
supply sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence in support of the 
assumptions used for indirect costs.

·	 2011/12 Develop checklist as per framework 
to identify transactions on disclosure 
note (where transactions were not at 
arm’s length). 

Related party transactions to be 
disclosed in line with National 
Treasury directives.
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PMTE

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, 
adverse opinion and matter of non-

compliance
Financial year in which it first arose Progress made in clearing / 

resolving the matter

Audit opinion obtained in the various 
comparative financial years

•	 2008/09 Adverse (incorrect 
accounting framework applied 
and trade receivables)

•	 2009/10 Qualified opinion

•	 2010/11 Disclaimer of opinion

•	 2011/12 Disclaimer

See detail below

Irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure

•	 Completeness of irregular 
expenditure

•	 Completeness of fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure

•	 2009/10 Irregular Expenditure

•	 Current year 2012/13 analysis 
completed and results included in 
the Annual Financial Statements

•	 Prior years – (2009/10 to 2011/12) 
completed. Department Public 
Work prior years irregular 
expenditure was prioritized

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

•	 Identified through the irregular 
exercise and updated (see above)

Trade and Other Receivables

•	 Trade and other receivables: Lack 
of appropriate audit evidence to 
support balance

•	 Trade and other receivables: Lack 
of appropriate audit evidence to 
support impairment balance

•	 Trade and other receivables: 
Could not provide evidence that 
they correctly applied IAS 39 on 
initial recognition of financial 
assets using the effective interest 
rate method (discounting)

•	 Trade and other receivables: Lack 
of proper accounting system and 
un-reconciled individual trade 
receivable accounts

•	 Trade and other receivables: 
Straight lining of leases incorrect 
as based on PMIS (PMIS does not 
agree to the lease agreements

•	 2008/09 Trade and Other Receivables

•	 Private Leases: Reconstructions 
(step 1) performed from 2006 to 
date (have invoice and proof of 
payments to support age analysis 
amounts) Step 2 performed for 
current year Steps 3-5 to be done 
in 2013/2014 

•	 Other debtors – Step 5 completed

Reconstruction Steps followed-

1.	 Verified invoices, credit notes and 
payments received to supporting 
documents Payments received 
verified to BAS (2006 to date)

2.	 Reconciled what was invoiced to 
the expense paid in PMIS

3.	 Matching unallocated receipts to 
invoices

4.	 Verifying invoiced amounts to 
leased agreements (taking Lease 
verification project findings into 
account)

5.	 Client meetings to obtain 
agreement to amounts owed. 
Assisting with preparing 
submissions to National Treasury 
for collection of prior year funds

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2013



168 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

PMTE

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, 
adverse opinion and matter of non-

compliance
Financial year in which it first arose Progress made in clearing / 

resolving the matter

•	 Impairment assessment done per 
client for all significant debtors 
per debtor type

Discounting
•	 Addressed via accounting policies 

detail included under significant 
management judgment and 
estimates. Clients required paying 
within 30 days. No credit terms 
given. Interest charged on non-
Government debtors for late 
payment but not on Government 
institutions, cannot reliably 
determine when payment can be 
expected, therefore transaction 
cost per accounting policy fair 
value. Non-payment within 30 
days for Government institutions 
assessed during impairment 
testing

•	 Business requirement document 
drafted for new system and in 
procurement process. Private 
leases trade receivable accounts 
reconstruction complete (step 
1 and 2), but reconciliation with 
client still to take place
Lease project results not finalised 
by year end. However some 
evaluation/cleanup performed 
(did not just utilise straight PMIS 
download). 

•	 Prepayments: Lack of supporting 
information

•	 2011/12 Current year - our workbooks allowed 
for prepayments identification on 
rates and taxes and operating leases

•	 Capital expenditure offset 
incorrectly against revenue

•	 2011/12 •	 Corrected. Expensed in current 
year and comparative corrected

Trade and Other Payables
•	 Trade and other payables: Lack 

of supporting documentation for 
accruals

•	 Trade and other payables: Trade 
and other payables: Could not 
provide evidence that they 
correctly applied IAS 39 on initial 
recognition of financial liabilities 
using the effective interest rate 
method (discounting)

•	 Trade and other payables: 
Straight lining of leases incorrect 
as based on PMIS (PMIS does not 
agree to the lease agreements)

•	 2009/10 Trade and Other Payables
•	 Accrual workbooks from regions 

available and year-end instruction 
dealt with this for current year. 

•	 Addressed via working papers 
and accounting policies – see 
significant management 
judgment and estimates

•	 Lease project results not finalised 
by year-end. 

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
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PMTE

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, 
adverse opinion and matter of non-

compliance
Financial year in which it first arose Progress made in clearing / 

resolving the matter

Property Rates

•	 Property rates: Lack of evidence 
to support expenditure

·	 Property Rates: 
Completeness issue

•	 2009/10 Property Rates

•	 Invoices should be available to 
support payment – workbooks 
did ask for regions to indicate 
invoice details

Accruals – regions did assess based 
on list of properties per latest 
Infrastructure Assets Register (IAR) 
info. However the finalization of the 
IAR project is on going. 

Leases rentals on operating leases

•	 Lease rentals on operating 
leases: insufficient supporting 
documents

•	 Completeness, accuracy, cut off 
and classification of operating 
lease expenditure

•	 Refurbishment costs on private 
operating leases incorrectly 
allocated to operating leases 
expense instead of recovering 
from private lease debtors

•	 2009/10 Leases rentals on operating leases

•	 Lease audit review not yet 
completed.

•	 Refurbishment cost incorrectly 
allocated to operating lease 
expenses Regions instructed to 
correct in current year

Commitments

•	 Commitments: Insufficient 
supporting documents

•	 Commitments: Incomplete, 
Inaccurate

•	 Operating lease commitments: 
based on straight lined lease 
payments instead of as required 
by relevant standard

•	 Operating lease commitments: 
completeness and accuracy

•	 2010/11 Commitments

•	 Improvement (However capital 
commitments not relevant this 
year)

•	 Improved, completeness accuracy 
of commitments addressed by 
including PMIS commitments as 
well as WCS per workbooks

•	 Current and comparative period 
based on rental amounts per 
PMIS significantly improved 

•	 Contingent assets: classification 
and valuation 

•	 2011/12 •	 Assessment done for current year

•	 Related parties: indirect costs 
with DPW

•	 2009/10 •	 Improved for current year: 
assessment based on related 
party framework determined

•	 Split of shared/indirect costs 
cannot be reliably determined. 
National Treasury agreement 
obtained and matter resolved

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
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17. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury 
The Department received exemption from National Treasury for the PMTE to continue billing client department’s accom-
modation charges for state-owned properties based on devolved amounts.

18. Interim Financial Statements
Interim financial statements were quarterly prepared and submitted to National Treasury as prescribed for the DPW 
main account. This is not a requirement for PMTE as an authorised trading account. It is however planned to introduce 
interim financial statements for the PMTE in the coming financial year.

19. Other
The President appointed the Honourable Deputy Minister Jeremy Cronin as the Deputy Minister of the Department 
during the reporting period.

20. Approval
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 177 to 273 have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

Mr Mziwonke Dlabantu

31 May 2013

Report of the Accounting Officer (continued)
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Vote No. 7:  
The Department of Public Works 

Report on the financial statements 
Introduction 

1.	 I have audited the financial statements of the Department of Public Works set out on pages 177 to 245 , which 
comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and 
the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the 
Departmental financial reporting framework prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as 
the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 

3.	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms 
thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

4.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

5.	 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified audit 
opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

Immovable tangible capital assets

6.	 The Department did not have adequate systems in place to determine whether or not renovations and refurbishment 
costs disclosed at R664 000 000 should be capitalised to individual immovable tangible capital assets, as determined 
by the accounting policy relating to subsequent recognition. I was therefore unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the value of immovable assets for the current or prior year presented in note 
34 to the financial statements. In the absence of my ability to confirm this by alternative means, I was unable to 
determine the full extent of the potential misstatement in immovable tangible capital assets.

Irregular expenditure

7.	 Section 38(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA requires the Department to implement and maintain an appropriate procurement 
and provisioning system that is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective. Furthermore, section 40(3)
(b)(i) of the PFMA requires the department to include particulars of all irregular expenditure that had occurred during 
the financial year in its financial statements.

8.	 The Department was not able to provide sufficient appropriate evidence for awards amounting to R32  219 847 
(2012: R15 813 916 ) resulting in a limitation of scope in determining whether these awards were made in line with 
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supply chain management prescripts and whether or not the resultant payments were regular. Additionally, the 
department did not complete the process of identifying and recognising all irregular expenditure incurred by the 
Property Management Trading Entity on behalf of the Department. There were no satisfactory alternative procedures 
that I could perform to obtain reasonable assurance that all irregular expenditure had been properly recorded. 

9.	 Consequently, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the fair presentation 
of irregular expenditure relating to the current year stated at R874 514 000 (2012: R168 157 000) in the financial 
statements. 

Commitments

10.	I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assumptions used to determine contract 
price adjustment provisions (CPAP) amounting to R37 472 906 (2012: R97 356 000). Furthermore, the Department 
was unable to provide sufficient, appropriate audit evidence in support of commitments to the value of R89 018 151. 
I was unable to confirm these commitments by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 
any adjustment relating to commitments stated at R1 441 031 000 (2012: R1 936 775 000) in the financial statements 
was necessary. 

Qualified opinion 

11.	In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion paragraphs, 
the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Department of Public 
Works as at 31 March 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 
the Departmental financial reporting framework prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the 
PFMA.

Emphasis of matters

12.	I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures

13.	As disclosed in notes 7, 8, 12, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26 and 30 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures 
for 31 March 2012 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2013 in the financial statements of the 
Department of Public Works at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2012.

Material impairments

14.	As disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, material impairments to the amount of R57 479 000 were provided 
for as a result of irrecoverable receivables.

Material under-spending of the vote

15.	As disclosed in the appropriation statement, the department has materially underspent the budget on programme 
2, immovable asset management, to the amount of R489 436 000. As a consequence, the department’s objectives of 
infrastructure delivery were not fully achieved.

Additional matters

16.	I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

17.	The supplementary information set out on pages 246 to 273 does not form part of the financial statements and is 
presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion 
thereon.

Financial reporting framework

18.	The financial reporting framework prescribed by the National Treasury and applied by the department is a compli-
ance framework. The wording of my opinion on a compliance framework should reflect that the financial statements 
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have been prepared in accordance with this framework and not that they “present fairly”. Section 20(2)(a) of the PAA, 
however, requires me to express an opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements. The wording of my 
opinion therefore reflects this requirement. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

19.	In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Predetermined objectives 

20.	I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual per-
formance report as set out on pages 34 to 75 of the annual report. 

21.	The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in 
accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is con-
sistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets 
are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by the 
National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information.

The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).

22.	The material findings are as follows:

Reliability of information

Programme 2: Immovable asset management and Programme 3: EPWP

23.	The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI) requires that institutions 
should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information to ensure valid, accu-
rate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. 

Significantly important targets with respect to the above mentioned programmes are not reliable when compared 
to the source information and evidence provided. 

This was due to the lack of standard operating procedures for the accurate recording of actual achievements, 
monitoring of the completeness of source documentation in support of actual achievements and frequent review of 
validity of reported achievements against source documentation.

Additional matter

24.	I draw attention to the following matter below. This matter does not have an impact on the predetermined objectives 
audit findings reported above.

Material adjustments to the annual performance report

25.	Material audit adjustments in the annual performance report were identified during the audit, some of which were 
corrected by management and those that were not corrected have been reported on accordingly.

Compliance with laws and regulations 

26.	I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regard-
ing financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with 
specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are 
as follows:

Performance management

27.	The accounting officer did not ensure that the department had and maintained an effective, efficient and trans-

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Vote No. 7:  
The Department of Public Works (continued) 



174 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

parent system of internal control regarding performance management, which described and represented how the 
department’s processes of performance planning, monitoring, measurement, review and reporting were conducted, 
organised and managed as required by section 38(1)(a)(i) and (b) of the PFMA.	

28.	The annual performance plan did not include measurable objectives, expected outcomes, programme outputs, 
indicators and targets for programme 5, Auxiliary and associated services, as required by Treasury Regulation 
5.2.3(d).	

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports

29.	The financial statements submitted for auditing were not fully prepared in all material respects in accordance with 
the prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by section 40(1)
(a) and (b) of the PFMA.

Material misstatements of disclosure notes identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were 
subsequently corrected and the supporting records provided, but the uncorrected material misstatements and 
supporting records that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management

30.	Goods and services with a transaction value of below R500 000 were in certain instances procured without obtaining 
the required price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

31.	Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised for a required minimum period of 21 days, as required 
by Treasury Regulation 16A6.3(c).

32.	Certain contracts were awarded to bidders who had not submitted a declaration of past supply chain practices such 
as fraud, abuse of SCM system and non-performance, which is prescribed in order to comply with Treasury Regula-
tion 16A9.2.

33.	Allegations of fraud, corruption, improper conduct and failure to comply with the supply chain management system 
made against officials and role players in the supply chain management system were not in all instances investigated 
as required by Treasury Regulation 16A9.1(b).

34.	Appropriate action was not in all instances taken against officials and role players in the supply chain management 
system where investigations proved fraud, corruption, improper conduct and failure to comply with the supply chain 
management system, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A9.1(b)(i).

35.	Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all contracts and quotations were awarded in ac-
cordance with the legislative requirements as the department did not implement proper record keeping in a timely 
manner to ensure that complete, relevant and accurate information was accessible and available to evaluate compli-
ance.

Expenditure management

36.	The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as 
required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

37.	 Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not in all instances taken against officials who made and permit-
ted irregular expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.3.

Financial misconduct

38.	 Investigations have not yet been conducted into all allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials, as 
required by Treasury Regulation 4.1.1.

39.	 Investigations into allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials were not in all instances instituted 
within 30 days of discovery thereof, as required by Treasury Regulation 4.1.2.

40.	 Disciplinary hearings were not in all instances held for financial misconduct committed by officials, as required by 
Treasury Regulation 4.1.1.
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Human resource management and compensation

41.	 Appointments were made in posts which were not approved and funded, as required by Public Service Regulation 
1/III/ F.1(a) and (d).

42.	 Funded vacant posts were not filled within 12 months as required by Public Service Regulation 1/VII/C.1A.2.

43.	 Persons in charge at pay points did not always certify that the employees receiving payment were entitled to such 
payment, as required by Treasury Regulation 8.3.4.

Transfer of funds and conditional grants

44.	 The accounting officer did not in all instances, prior to transferring funds, obtain written assurance from the entity 
that the entity implements effective, efficient and transparent financial management and internal control systems 
as required by section 38(1)(j) of the PFMA.

45.	 Quarterly performance reports were not submitted to the National Treasury within the prescribed time frames, as 
required by section 10(7) of the Division of Revenue Act.

46.	The internal audit function did not assess the operational procedure and monitoring mechanisms over all transfers 
made and received, including transfers in terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act, as required by Treasury Regu-
lation 3.2.8.

Revenue management

47.	Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that immovable state property was let at market-related 
tariffs, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A7.4.

Asset management 

48.	Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by section 38(1)(d) of 
the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 10.1.1(a).

Internal control 

49.	I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, the annual performance report and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are 
limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified, the findings on the annual performance 
report and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.

Leadership

50.	Certain critical appointments were only made in the last quarter of the financial year, thus instability in key leadership 
positions for the first part of the financial year had a negative impact in the provision of effective leadership in the 
department.

51.	Leadership did not exercise effective oversight of financial and performance reporting and compliance as well as 
related internal controls.

52.	Leadership did not apply effective consequence management for transgressions with regards to non-performance 
and non-compliance throughout the financial year.

53.	Leadership did not in all instances establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable and support the 
understanding and execution of internal objectives, processes and responsibilities.

Financial and performance management

54.	Proper record keeping was not always implemented in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and 
accurate information was accessible and available to support financial and performance reporting.

55.	Implemented controls over daily and monthly processing and reconciling of transactions were not effective in all 
instances.

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Vote No. 7:  
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56.	Regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that were supported and evidenced by reliable 
information were not prepared throughout the year.

57.	The reviewing and monitoring of compliance with applicable laws and regulations were ineffective.

58.	The designed and implemented formal controls over the information technology systems were inadequate to ensure 
the reliability, availability and accuracy of certain information pertaining to immovable assets. Furthermore, the 
system used for generating performance information was inadequate to facilitate the preparation of complete actual 
performance information.

Governance

59.	Risk management activities, including the consideration of information technology risks and fraud prevention, were 
not effectively conducted. A risk strategy to address identified risks was not developed and monitored throughout 
the financial year.

60.	The internal audit unit was not adequately resourced to ensure that it could effectively assist in identifying internal 
control deficiencies and developing recommendations in respect of corrective action to be taken to address the 
internal control deficiencies identified. This has also resulted in the continued backlog in internal investigations.

OTHER REPORTS 

Investigations

61.	Numerous internal allegations, mainly relating to transgressions with respect to supply chain management, potential 
fraud and financial misconduct are being investigated on an ongoing basis. 

62.	An ongoing investigation is being conducted to probe the alleged abuse of urgent and emergency procurement as 
well the utilisation of sole suppliers. The investigation aims to establish whether there was collusion between offi-
cials and service providers and to determine any reckless spending of funds. The investigation is being conducted in 
phases, with nine reports having been finalised to date while the majority were still ongoing at the reporting date. 
The department is in the process of instituting disciplinary action in respect of the finalised reports.

63.	An investigation is being conducted by the Public Protector to probe the allegation of the misappropriation of public 
funds by the Department of Public Works in respect of the installation and implementation of security measures at 
the President’s private residence at Nkandla. The investigation was still ongoing at the reporting date. I did not con-
duct any additional investigation.

Performance audits

64.	A performance audit was conducted during the year under review on the Department of Public Works’ readiness to 
fulfil its performance oversight roles and responsibilities. The report is in the process of being finalised.

Pretoria

16 / 9 / 2013
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2013
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2012/13 2011/12

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

TOTAL (brought forward)

Reconciliation with statement of 
financial performance

ADD

Departmental receipts 53,795 75,195

Actual amounts per statement of 
financial performance (total revenue) 7,945,043 7,904,939

Actual amounts per statement 
of financial performance (total 
expenditure)

7,203,925 7,061,437
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-H) 
to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on payments for financial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual 
Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

4.1 Per programme Final 
Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance R’000

Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

Administration 1,004,964 856,185 148,779 15%

Expenditure variance of 15% in Programme 1 is due to under-spending on Goods and services and Software and Intangible 
Asset. The Department received additional funding during the adjustment estimates under goods and services and 
software and intangible assets for the implementation of the Turnaround and the delay in appointing services providers 
resulted in funds not being fully spent. Roll over has been requested for unspent goods and services. Goods and services 
for Office Accommodation were also underspent, and the under-spending is due to delay in completing reconciliation of 
lease contracts between the department and PMTE. An amount of R20 million for Software and Intangible Asset for the 
procurement of the Accounting System for the PMTE received as additional funding during the adjustment estimates 
was not spent.

Immovable asset management 5,052,937 4,563,501 489,436 10%

Expenditure variance of 10% in Programme 2 is due to under-spending in goods and services, transfers and subsidies for 
the Devolution of Property Rates Fund to Provinces and payments for capital assets for infrastructure and machinery and 
equipment. Under-spending in goods and services relates to additional funds received during the adjustment estimates 
allocated for the implementation of the turnaround for Immovable Asset register, lease review and project management 
support. Under-spending in transfers and subsidies relates to an amount of R120 million for Devolution of Property Rates 
Fund Grant to Provinces declared as saving by the Kwazulu-Natal Provincial Department of Public Works. The roll over for 
the declared saving amount has been requested and funding will be allocated to other provinces that had the shortfall 
during 2012/13. Under-spending in Infrastructure is due to non-performance of contractors and vacant positions for 
the project managers in some of the regions. Under-spending in machinery and equipment is due to delayed invoices.

Expanded Public Works Programme 1,729,072 1,704,051 25,021 1%

Expenditure and transfers and subsidies variance of 1% in Programme 3 is due to under-spending on goods and services  
and compensation of employees and transfers and subsidies for payment relating to municipalities. Under-spending 
on compensation is due to positions that became vacant during the financial year and under-spending on goods and 
services is due to funds committed but not spent due to fund committed but not spent at the end of the financial year.
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Property and Construction Industry Policy 
Regulations

37,436 26,858 10,578 28%

Expenditure variance of 28% in Programme 4 is due to under-spending in goods and services and compensation of 
employees. The delay in filling of vacant positions resulted in under-spending on compensation of employees and 
under-spending on goods and services is due to low spending on allocations for border fencing.

Auxiliary and Associated Services 66,839 53,330 13,509 20%

Expenditure variance of 20% in Programme 5 relates to under-spending on goods and services for the expenditure 
related to State Function and transfers and subsidies. Under-spending of R6.4 million on good and services was mainly 
under State function was due to delay in receiving the invoices from service providers for the service rendered. Under-
spending in transfers and subsidies relate to saving realised from Commonwealth Wargrave and Sector Education and 
Training Authority.

4.2 Per economic classification Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments

Compensation of employees 1,381,450 1,374,552 6,898 0%

Goods and services 1,203,845 977,014 226,831 19%

Interest and rent on land 9,774 21 9,753 100%

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities 3,090,982 2,969,955 121,027 4%

Departmental agencies and accounts 752,986 751,640 1,346 0%

Public corporations and private enterprises 18,941 15,436 3,505 19%

Foreign governments and international organi-
sations

50,800 50,800 - 0%

Non-profit institutions 282,724 292,627 (9,903) (4)%

Households 11,876 11,875 1 0%

Gifts and donations 3 20 (17) (567%

Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures 999,254 713,003 286,251 29%

Machinery and equipment 59,558 43,283 16,275 27%

Software and other intangible assets 25,857 501 25,356 98%

Payments for financial assets 3,198 3,198 - 0%

Expenditure variance is due to under-spending on goods and services, transfers and subsidies for Devolution of Property 
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Rates Fund; payments for capital assets, expenditure relating to Infrastructure, and machinery and equipment. Good 
and services under-spending relates to Office Accommodation and additional funds received during adjustment 
estimates for the implementation of the Turnaround programme. All programmes have had under-spending on goods 
and services. Transfers and subsidies under-spending relate to funds allocated for Devolution of Property Rates Fund 
Grant to Provinces declared as saving by the Kwazulu-Natal Provincial Department of Public Works. Infrastructure under-
spending is due to non-performance of contractors and vacant positions for the project managers in some of the regions. 
Machinery and equipment under-spending is due to invoices received late for processing for services rendered prior to 
the end of the financial year.

4.3 Per conditional grant Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure Variance

Variance as 
a % of Final 
Appropria-

tion

R’000 R’000 R’000

Devolution of Property Rates Fund Grant to 
Provinces 1,918,659 1,798,170 120,489 6%

EPWP Integrated Grant to Municipalities 662,135 661,535 600 0%

EPWP Integrated Grant to Provinces 292,761 292,843 (82) 0%

EPWP Incentive Grant to Provinces: Social Sector 217,401 217,401 - 0%

Expenditure variance on conditional grants is due to an amount of R120 million declared as saving under the Devolution 
of Property Rates Fund Grant to Provinces by the Kwazulu-Natal Provincial Department of Public Works.
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

PERFROMANCE

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 7,891,248 7,829,744
Departmental revenue 2 53,795 75,195

TOTAL REVENUE 7,945,043 7,904,939

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 3 1,374,552 1,269,578
Goods and services 4 977,014 1,032,906
Interest and rent on land 5 21 1,567
Total current expenditure 2,351,587 2,304,051

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 7 4,092,353 3,656,222
Total transfers and subsidies 4,092,353 3,656,222

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible capital assets 8 756,286 1,092,570
Software and other intangible assets 8 501 6,569
Total expenditure for capital assets 756,787 1,099,139

Payments for financial assets 6 3,198 2,025

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,203,925 7,061,437

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 741,118 843,502

Reconciliation of Net Surplus for the year
Voted funds 687,323 768,307
Annual appropriation 687,323 768,307
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 14 53,795 75,195
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 741,118 843,502
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

POSITION

ASSETS

Current assets 986,396 1,093,024
Unauthorised expenditure 9 249,453 83,082
Cash and cash equivalents 10 439,804 825,603
Prepayments and advances 11 38,244 38,600
Receivables 12 258,895 145,739

TOTAL ASSETS 986,396 1,093,024

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 929,154 1,087,966
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 13 853,713 792,914
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund

14 9,450 7,560

Payables 15 65,991 287,492

TOTAL LIABILITIES 929,154 1,087,966

NET ASSETS 57,242 5,058

Represented by:
Recoverable revenue 57,242 5,058

TOTAL 57,242 5,058
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

NET ASSETS

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 5,058 3,561
Transfers: 52,184 1,497

Irrecoverable amounts written off - -
Debts revised - -
Debts recovered (included in Departmental receipts) - -
Debts raised 52,184 1,497

Closing balance 57,242 5,058

TOTAL 57,242 5,058
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

CASH FLOW

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 7,945,043 7,901,785

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 7,891,248 7,829,744
Departmental revenue received 2 53,795 72,041

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (500,672) 223,567
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (844,800) (823,455)
Current payments (2,185,216) (2,279,464)
Payments for financial assets (3,198) (2,025)
Transfers and subsidies paid (4,092,353) (3,656,222)
Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 318,804 1,364,186

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 8 (756,787) (1,099,139)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.4 - 3,154
Net cash flows from investing activities (756,787) (1,095,985)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets 52,184 1,497
Net cash flows from financing activities 52,184 1,497

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (385,799) 269,698

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 825,603 555,905

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 439,804 825,603
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The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, that have been applied 
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional 
information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply with the statutory 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury 
Regulations issued in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 1 of 2010. 

1. Presentation of the Financial Statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting. 

Under this basis, the effects of transactions and other events are recognised in the financial records when the resulting 
cash is received or paid. The “modification” results from the recognition of certain near-cash balances in the financial 
statements, as well as the revaluation of foreign investments and loans and the recognition of resulting revaluation gains 
and losses.

In addition supplementary information is provided in the disclosure notes to the financial statements where it is deemed 
to be useful to the users of the financial statements. 

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) that is also the functional currency of the 
Department.

1.3 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements. Where necessary 
figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the 
information is presented, is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements. 

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major classification of expenditure is included in the 
Appropriation Statement. 

2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of Departmental allocations as well as direct charges against revenue fund (i.e. statutory 
appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments 
made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the financial records on the date the adjustments 
becomes effective.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund. Any amounts owing to the National 
Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.
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Any amount due from the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year is recognised as a receivable in the 
statement of financial position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently 
paid into the National Revenue Fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year is recognised as a payable in the 
statement of financial position. 

No accrual is made for amounts receivable from the last receipt date to the end of the reporting period. These amounts 
are however disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial statements.

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

3.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are expensed in the statement of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is 
effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Other employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes 
to the financial statements at its face value and are not recognised in the statement of financial performance or position.

3.1.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions to post employment benefit plans in respect of current employees are expensed in the statement 
of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March 
of each year).

No provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of the Department. Any potential liabilities are 
disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not in the financial statements of the employer 
department.

Employer contributions made by the Department for certain of its ex-employees (such as medical benefits) are classified 
as transfers to households in the statement of financial performance.

3.2 Goods and services

Payments made during the year for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). 

The expense is classified as capital if the goods and/or services were acquired for a capital project or if the total purchase 
price exceeds the capitalisation threshold (currently R5, 000). All other expenditures are classified as current.

Rental paid for the use of buildings or other fixed structures is classified as goods and services and not as rent on land.
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3.3 Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the final 
authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). This item excludes rental 
for the use of buildings or other fixed structures. If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the use of land 
and the fixed structures on it, the whole amount should be recorded under goods and services.

3.4 Payments for financial assets

Debts are written-off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off are limited to the amount of savings and/or 
under-spending of appropriated funds. The write-off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No provision is 
made for irrecoverable amounts but an estimate is included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements. 

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the recognition thereof.

3.5 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system 
(by no later than 31 March of each year).

3.6 Unauthorised expenditure

When confirmed, unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position until such 
time as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or written 
off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of financial position when the 
unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received. 

Where the amount is approved without funding, it is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance 
on the date stipulated in the Act.

3.7 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance according to 
the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement. If the expenditure is recoverable, 
it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written-off as irrecoverable in the statement 
of financial performance.

3.8 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. If the expenditure is not 
condoned by the relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written-off as irrecoverable. 

4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. 

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position.
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For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other 
short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial position when the payments are made and 
are derecognised as and when the goods/services are received or the funds are utilised.

Prepayments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are carried in the statement of financial position at cost.

4.3 Receivables

Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise from cash payments made that are recoverable from 
another party (including Departmental employees) and are derecognised upon recovery or write-off.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus any accrued interest. 
Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.4 Inventory

Inventories that qualify for recognition must be initially reflected at cost. Where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for 
nominal consideration, their cost shall be their fair value at the date of acquisition.

All inventory items at year-end are reflected using the weighted average cost or FIFO cost formula.

4.5 Capital assets

4.5.1 Movable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded in the asset register on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost 
of acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital asset is stated at fair value. Where 
fair value cannot be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 are included in the register at R1.

Subsequent recognition

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure for 
capital assets” and is capitalised in the asset register of the Department on completion of the project. 

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of financial performance.

4.5.2 Immovable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where 
the cost cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital asset is stated at R1 unless the fair value for the asset 
has been reliably estimated.
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Subsequent recognition

Work-in-progress of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure for capital 
assets”. On completion, the total cost of the project is included in the asset register of the department that is accountable 
for the asset.

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of financial performance.

4.5.3 Intangible assets

Initial recognition

An intangible asset is recorded in the asset register on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an intangible asset is defined as 
the total cost of acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the intangible asset is stated at fair value. 
Where fair value cannot be determined, the intangible asset is included in the asset register at R1.

All intangible assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 can be included in the asset register at R1.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure for 
capital asset” and is capitalised in the asset register of the Department.

Maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of financial performance.

5. Liabilities

5.1 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental entities, clearing accounts and amounts 
received in advance. These payables are carried at cost in the statement of financial position.

5.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements when it is possible that economic 
benefits will flow from the Department, or when an outflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable but 
cannot be measured reliably.

5.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements when it is probable that an inflow of 
economic benefits will flow to the entity.

5.4 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement 
of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5 Accruals

Accruals are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of 
financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.
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5.6 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure 
notes to the financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial performance or the 
statement of financial position.

5.7 Lease commitments

Finance lease

Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position. Finance lease payments 
are recognised as a capital expense in the statement of financial performance and are not apportioned between the 
capital and the interest portions. The total finance lease commitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the 
financial statements.

Operating lease

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance. The operating lease 
commitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statement.

5.8 Impairment

The Department tests for impairment where there is an indication that a receivable, loan or investment may be impaired. 
An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. An estimate is 
made for doubtful loans and receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Impairments on 
investments are calculated as being the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the expected 
future cash flows/service potential flowing from the instrument.

5.9 Provisions

Provisions are disclosed when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of 
events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

6. Receivables for departmental revenue

Receivables for Departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial statements. These 
receivables are written-off when identified as irrecoverable and are disclosed separately.

7. Net Assets

7.1 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable 
from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National Revenue Fund when recovered 
or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

8. Related party transactions

Specific information with regards to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.
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9. Key management personnel

Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members where relevant, is included in the 
disclosure notes.

10. Public private partnerships

A description of the PPP arrangement, the contract fees and current and capital expenditure relating to the PPP 
arrangement is included in the disclosure notes.
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1. Annual Appropriation 

1.1 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National 
Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2012/13 2011/12

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Received

Funds not 
requested/ 

not received

Appropriation 
received 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 1,004,964 1,004,964 - 777,521
Immovable asset management 5,052,937 5,052,937 - 5,410,545
Expanded Public Works Programme 1,729,072 1,729,072 - 1,575,198
Property and construction industry pol-
icy regulations

37,436 37,436 - 34,900

Auxiliary and associated services 66,839 66,839 - 31,580
7,891,248 7,891,248 - 7,829,744

2. Departmental revenue 

Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 32,017 36,388
Fines, penalties and forfeits 2.2 3 12
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.3 7,835 103
Sales of capital assets 2.4 - 3,154
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.5 13,940 35,538
Departmental revenue collected 53,795 75,195

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

2
Sales of goods and services produced by the Department 32,013 36,353

Sales by market establishment 445 411
Administrative fees 215 2
Other sales 31,353 35,940

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 4 35
Total 32,017 36,388

2.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits

2
Fines 3 12
Total 3 12

2.3 Interest, dividends and rent on land 

2
Interest 7,835 103
Total 7,835 103
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2.4 Sale of capital assets

2
Tangible assets - 3,154
Buildings and other fixed structures 34 - 3,154
Total - 3,154

2.5 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Receivables 2 315 372
Stale cheques written back 2 -
Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 13,623 35,166
Total 13,940 35,538

3. Compensation of employees

3.1 Salaries and Wages

Basic salary 942,960 866,062
Performance award 15,886 15,912
Service Based 1,800 2,228
Compensative/circumstantial 13,963 16,414
Periodic payments 4,606 5,854
Other non-pensionable allowances 208,283 191,498
Total 1,187,498 1,097,968

3.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions
Pension 116,983 107,304
Medical 69,777 63,948
Bargaining council 294 358
Total 187,054 171,610

Total compensation of employees 1,374,552 1,269,578

Average number of employees 5,494 5,849
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4. Goods and services 

Administrative fees 453 439
Advertising 8,637 20,218
Assets less than R5,000 4.1 2,698 11,848
Bursaries (employees) - 24
Catering 2,662 3,122
Communication 31,628 29,236
Computer services 4.2 36,677 48,466
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 4.3 268,710 285,953
Entertainment 795 1,084
Audit cost – external 4.4 48,374 40,916
Fleet services 21,430 19,970
Inventory 4.5 40,721 35,788
Operating leases 139,175 189,504
Property payments 4.6 257,587 199,511
Rental and hiring 2,883 -
Travel and subsistence 4.7 86,346 110,077
Venues and facilities 7,761 9,937
Training and staff development 9,653 13,492
Other operating expenditure 4.8 10,824 13,321
Total 977,014 1,032,906

4.1 Assets less than R5,000

4
Tangible assets 2,698 11,843

Machinery and equipment 2,698 11,843
Intangible assets - 5
Total 2,698 11,848

4.2 Computer services

SITA computer services 4 22,172 19,965
External computer service providers 14,505 28,501
Total 36,677 48,466

4.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services

4
Business and advisory services 78,125 38,036
Infrastructure and planning 11,059 10,343
Legal costs 13,822 6,063
Contractors 49,657 154,763
Agency and support/outsourced services 116,047 76,748
Total 268,710 285,953
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4.4 Audit cost – External 

Regularity audits 4 48,374 40,916
Total 48,374 40,916

4.5 Inventory

4
Learning and teaching support material - 44
Food and food supplies - 8
Fuel, oil and gas 9,105 7,621
Other consumables 14,943 12,774
Materials and supplies 1,111 1,323
Stationery and printing 15,557 14,018
Medical supplies 5 -
Total 40,721 35,788

4.6 Property payments

4
Municipal services 251,267 190,264
Property management fees 2,601 8,241
Other 3,719 1,006
Total 257,587 199,511

4.7 Travel and subsistence

4
Local 85,458 105,521
Foreign 888 4,556
Total 86,346 110,077

4.8 Other operating expenditure

4
Learnerships 4,720 5,680
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 1,701 1,373
Resettlement costs 770 3,630
Other 3,633 2,638
Total 10,824 13,321

5. Interest and rent on land 

Interest paid 21 1,567
Total 21 1,567
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6. Payments for financial assets

Other material losses written-off 6.1 3,198 2,025
Total 3,198 2,025

6.1 Other material losses written-off

Nature of losses 6
Claims recoverable 281 -
Recoverable expenditure 2,890 2,000
Prepayments 27 25
Total 3,198 2,025

7. Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities
36, Annex 
1A, Annex 

1B
2,969,955 2,592,965

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1C 751,640 732,486
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1E 15,436 12,956
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1D 50,800 150,000
Non-profit institutions Annex 1F 292,627 163,801
Households Annex 1G 11,875 4,012
Gifts, donations and sponsorships made Annex 1I 20 2
Total 4,092,353 3,656,222

Unspent funds transferred to the above beneficiaries 283,509 37,913

Comparative figure
Additional information was included in the transfer and subsidies note relating to unspent funds transferred to 
beneficiaries. The comparative figure has been updated indicating that R37,913 million of funds were unspent by 
beneficiaries in the prior year. 

8. Expenditure for capital assets 

Tangible assets 756,286 1,092,570
Buildings and other fixed structures 34 713,003 1,011,407
Machinery and equipment 32 43,283 81,163

Software and other intangible assets 501 6,569
Computer software 33 501 6,569

Total 756,787 1,099,139

The following amounts have been included as project costs in Expendi-
ture for capital assets

Goods and services 609 4,550
Total 609 4,550
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Comparative figure
Additional information was included in the expenditure for capital assets note relating to project cost included as 
part of capital expenditure. The amounts included as project costs under goods and services relates to management 
fees of 3.5% payable to the IDT on projects under their control. The comparative figure has been updated accordingly 
indicating project costs of R4,550 million included in the capital expenditure.

8.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2012/13

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 756,286 - 756,286
Buildings and other fixed structures 713,003 - 713,003
Machinery and equipment 43,283 - 43,283

Software and other intangible assets 501 - 501
Computer software 501 - 501

Total 756,787 - 756,787

8.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2011/12

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 1,092,570 - 1,092,570
Buildings and other fixed structures 1,011,407 - 1,011,407
Machinery and equipment 81,163 - 81,163

Software and other intangible assets 6,569 - 6,569
Computer software 6,569 - 6,569

Total 1,099,139 - 1,099,139

9. Unauthorised expenditure

9.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance 83,082 58,495
Unauthorised expenditure – discovered in current year 13 166,371 24,587
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation /written-off 249,453 83,082

9.2 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per economic classification

Current 76,508 76,508
Capital 166,453 82
Transfers and subsidies 6,492 6,492

Total 249,453 83,082
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9.3 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type

Unauthorised expenditure relating to over-spending of the vote or a 
main division within a vote 83,082 83,082

Unauthorised expenditure incurred not in accordance with the purpose 
of the vote or a main division 166,371 -

Total 249,453 83,082

9.4 Details of unauthorised expenditure – current year

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/
criminal proceedings

2012/13
R’000

Unauthorised expenditure is as a result of capital 
expenditure incurred by IDT to build schools which is 
a provincial competency

162,386

Movable assets procured by IDT 3,985
Total 166,371

9.5 Details of unauthorised expenditure – prior years

Incident
Disciplinary steps 

taken/criminal 
proceedings

2011/12
R’000

Over-spending on compensation of employees 67,135
Over-spending on goods and services 13,620
Over-spending on capital assets 82
Over-spending on transfers and subsidies 2,245
Total 83,082

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 431,281 825,426
Cash receipts 8,338
Disbursements 6 (2)
Cash on hand 179 179
Total 439,804 825,603

11. Prepayments and advances

Staff advances 1 1
Travel and subsistence 140 433
Prepayments 10,455 4,174
Advances paid to other entities 11.1 27,648 33,992
Total 38,244 38,600

11.1 Advances paid

11
Public entities Annex 7A 27,648 33,992
Total 27,648 33,992
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12. Receivables

2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Note

Less than 
one year

One to 
three years

Older than 
three years Total Total

Claims recoverable 12.1
Annex 3 131,707 7,153 2,281 188,668 82,450

Recoverable expenditure 12.2 1,548 1,848 45,784 49,180 50,277
Staff debt 12.3 440 1,487 2,618 4,537 3,746
Other debtors 12.4 52,367 1,864 9,798 16,510 9,266
Total 186,062 12,352 60,481 258,895 145,739

Comparative figure
The prior year staff debt balance has been reclassified between staff debt and other debtors. This resulted in a decrease 
of staff debt and an increase of other debtors amounting to R9,266 million (as disclosed in note 12.3 and 12.4). 

12.1 Claims recoverable

National departments 12 63,124 76,352
Provincial departments 125,544 6,098
Total 188,668 82,450

12.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts)

Disallowance 12 48,021 48,179
Private telephone 45 28
Salary accounts 1,114 2,070
Total 49,180 50,277

12.3 Staff debt

Personnel debt 12 4,537 3,746
Total 4,537 3,746

12.4 Other debtors

Other debtors 12 16,510 9,266
Total 16,510 9,266

13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance 792,914 749,722
Transfer from statement of financial performance 687,323 768,307
Add: Unauthorised expenditure for current year 9 166,371 24,587
Paid during the year (792,895) (749,702)
Closing balance 853,713 792,914
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14. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance 7,560 6,118
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 53,795 75,195
Paid during the year (51,905) (73,753)
Closing balance 9,450 7,560

15. Payables – current

Advances received 15.1 57,480 275,960
Clearing accounts 15.2 491 1,397
Other payables 15.3 8,020 10,135
Total 65,991 287,492

15.1 Advances received

15

National departments Annex 
7B 46,806 52,147

Provincial departments Annex 
7B 10,000 222,979

Public entities Annex 
7B 674 834

Total 57,480 275,960

15.2 Clearing accounts

Salary clearing accounts 15 491 1,397
Total 491 1,397

15.3 Other payables

Claims and other payables 15 7,743 9,760
Tender deposit 269 295
Rental deposit 8 80
Total 8,020 10,135

16. Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance 741,118 843,502
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities (422,314) 520,684
(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current (113,156) 6,670
Decrease in prepayments and advances 356 137,455
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current (221,501) 104,029
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - (3,154)
Expenditure on capital assets 756,787 1,099,139
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (844,800) (823,455)
Net cash flow generated by operating activities 318,804 1,364,186
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17. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account 431,281 825,426
Cash Receipts 8,338
Disbursements 6 (2)
Cash on hand 179 179
Total 439,804 825,603
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

These amounts are not recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and are disclosed to enhance the usefulness of 
the Annual Financial Statements.

18. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

18.1 Contingent liabilities

Liable to			   Nature
Motor vehicle guarantees	Employees Annex 2A - 582
Housing loan guarantees	 Employees Annex 2A 521 2,154
Other guarantees Annex 2A 1,766 2,355
Claims against the Department Annex 2B 12,634 11,908
Other departments (inter-departmental unconfirmed balances) Annex 4 6,531 38,700
Total 21,452 55,699

Comparative figure
The prior year balance has been restated resulting in an increase of R293k. There is a reduction of R20k relating to a 
restatement of claims against the Department and an increase of R313k as a result of a foreign exchange revaluation of 
a foreign currency denominated guarantee issued by the Department. 

18.2 Contingent assets

Nature of contingent asset
None - -
Total - -

Comparative figure
The prior year balance has been restated to zero resulting in a decrease of R91k. 
An amount of R66k is restated due to the fact that the amount was previously recognised as a receivable.
An amount of R25k was derecognised as a contingent asset as it was written off in 2011. 

19. Commitments

Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 237,050 87,377
Approved but not yet contracted 2,855 41

239,905 87,418
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted 1,196,431 1,849,352
Approved but not yet contracted 4,695 5

1,201,126 1,849,357
Total Commitments 1,441,031 1,936,775

Included in the amount of commitments are projects running under PMTE on behalf of the Department. Most of 
these projects are multi-year projects.

Comparative figure
The Department has restated the CPAP amount included as part of capital expenditure. As a result, the commitment 
balance was reduced with R97, 4million. 
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

20. Accruals

Listed by economic classification
30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 64,681 1,590 66,271 160,857
Interest and rent on land 714 - 714 -
Transfers and subsidies 76 93 169 4
Capital assets 49,565 3,314 52,879 111,162
Other 36 2 38 49
Total 115,072 4,999 120,071 272,072

Listed by programme level
Programme 1 18,579 232,232
Programme 2 84,094 16,411
Programme 3 16,291 23,350
Programme 4 - 30
Programme 5 1,107 49
Total 120,071 272,072

Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 4 6,840 2,214
Confirmed balances with other government entities Annex 4 82,914 148,945
Total 89,754 151,159

21 Employee benefits

Leave entitlement 56,342 48,694
Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 36,888 35,081
Performance awards 18,734 16,859
Capped leave commitments 69,910 69,384
Other 4,217 1,140
Total 186,091 171,159

Credit balances
Excluded from the R56 million (2011/12: R49 million) leave entitlement are credit balances amounting to R2,6 million 
in the current financial year (2011/12: R2 million). The leave credits are caused by leave advances taken by employees. 

Comparative figure
The comparative figure has changed due to the reclassification of provisions relating to performance awards to 
employee benefits. This resulted in employee benefits for the 2011/12 financial year being increased with R16,859 
million.
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22. Lease commitments

22.1 Operating leases expenditure

2012/13

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Not later than 1 year - - 43,427 - 43,427
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 33,292 - 33,292
Later than five years - - 827 - 827
Total lease commitments - - 77,546 - 77,546

2011/12

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Not later than 1 year - - 119,408 - 119,408
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 76,148 - 76,148
Later than five years - - 1,398 - 1,398
Total lease commitments - - 196,954 - 196,954

Comparative figure
The Department has restated operating lease commitments which were incorrectly disclosed. The restatement in-
cludes leases that the Department is funding on behalf of other government departments and certain Chapter 9 in-
stitutions as well as leases that were not verified as at 31 March 2012. This resulted in the comparative figure being 
decreased with R141,761 million.

22.2 Finance leases expenditure**

2012/13

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Not later than 1 year - - - 8,925 8,925
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 5,700 5,700
Later than five years - - - - -
Total lease commitments - - - 14,625 14,625
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2011/12

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Not later than 1 year - - - 6,497 6,497
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 1,778 1,778
Total lease commitments - - - 8,275 8,275
LESS: finance costs - - - 447 447
Total present value of lease liabilities - - - 7,828 7,828

**This note excludes leases relating to public-private partnership as they are separately disclosed in note number 28.

22.3 Operating lease revenue

2012/13

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Not later than 1 year - - 16,849 - 16,849
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 35,662 - 35,662
Later than five years - - 23,125 - 23,125
Total operating lease revenue receivable - - 75,636 - 75,636

2011/12

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment

 

Total
Not later than 1 year - - 25,135 - 25,135
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 42,193 - 42,193
Later than five years - - 31,875 - 31,875
Total operating lease revenue receivable - - 99,202 - 99,202

Comparative figure
The Department has restated operating lease revenue commitments which were incorrectly disclosed. The restate-
ment includes leases which were not verified as at 31 March 2012. This resulted in the comparative figure being in-
creased with R15, 3million.

23. Receivables for departmental revenue

Interest, dividends and rent on land 2,373 3,687
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 15,228 14,958
Total 17,601 18,645

Comparative figure
The Department has restated receivables for departmental revenue which were incorrectly disclosed. This resulted in 
the comparative figure being increased with R1, 922 million.
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

23.1 Analysis of receivables for departmental revenue

Opening balance 17,507 12,586
Less: amounts received 31,453 29,519
Add: amounts recognised 31,547 35,640
Less: amounts written-off/reversed as irrecoverable - 62
Closing balance 17,601 18,645

24. Irregular expenditure

24.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance 171,643 26,266
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year 442,792 56,225
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 431,722 111,932
Less: Amounts condoned (947) (22,780)
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation 1,045,210 171,643

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 431,129 107,610
Prior years 614,081 64,033
Total 1,045,210 171,643

An amount of R10,133 million was removed from the prior year balance after revision of the balance based on updated 
National Treasury irregular expenditure guidance.

The Department revisited its entire population of payments processed and bids awarded from financial year 2009/10 to 
2012/13 in order to identify all irregular expenditure. This was one of the matters that the Department was disclaimed 
on in the previous two financial years. An amount of R443 million relates to expenditure incurred in previous financial 
years and was discovered in the current financial year, during the exercise of revisiting the entire population. 

An amount of R432 million relates to expenditure incurred and discovered in the current financial year.

24.2 Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings

2012/13
R’000

Appropriate approval not obtained by a delegated official or 
committee

The irregular expenditure is being 
investigated by the Department for 
condonement and to determine 
officials liable.

Currently, no disciplinary steps or 
criminal proceedings have been 
initiated.

153,061

Deviations incorrectly approved 8,214
Incorrect procurement process followed 230,045
Payments in excess of quoted amount 31
Evaluation criteria used to evaluate quotations or bids do not 
match original criteria 10,065

Incorrect evaluation performed in the procurement process 7,770
No original valid tax clearance certificate 3,303
No original/certified copy BEE certificate and preference 
points were incorrectly allocated 536

Overtime not approved 112
Award of contract to a supplier who does not meet the 
relevant requirements (cidb and SITA) 8,575

Transfer payment not approved by Treasury 9,903
Payment not approved by delegated authority 107
Total 431,722
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

24.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Incident Condoned by (condoning authority) 2012/13
R’000

Incorrect procurement process followed CFO 947
Total 947

24.4 Details of irregular expenditures under investigation

Incident 2012/13
R’000

All irregular expenditure incurred has been referred for investigation 1,045,210
Total 1,045,210

25. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

25.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Opening balance 69,269 -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to prior year 50,505 69,172
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 4,313 97
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting resolution 124,087 69,269

Analysis of awaiting resolution per economic classification
Current 9,580 372
Capital 114,507 68,897

Total 124,087 69,269

Included in 2011/12 fruitless expenditure is an amount R68 million in respect of settlement of cancellation of the 
contract and subsequent payments made after cancellation of contract on the Skilpadhek Boarder Post project.

Included in 2012/13 fruitless and wasteful expenditure is an amount of R45 million for a system procured in financial 
2005/06 which the Department has not fully utilised. Furthermore, the Department spent a further R3,5 million on the 
system for license and training of staff and the amount has also been declared fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

Transactions totalling R5,3 million were investigated and concluded by the Special Investigating Unit (SIU) in the year 
under review. Disciplinary actions have been recommended against officials of the Department.
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

25.2 Analysis of fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current year

Incident
Disciplinary steps 
taken/criminal 
proceedings

2012/13
R’000

Additional charges incurred by DPW to print the 
annual report in portrait instead of landscape

The fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure 
is being investigated 
by the Department for 
condonement and to 
determine officials liable.
 
Currently, no disciplinary 
steps or criminal 
proceedings have been 
initiated.

89

Catering for people who did not attend 174
Implementation of SAAS IT system 3,594
Interest paid 65
Goods/services were not rendered according to the 
contract agreement

121

The validity period of the quotes expired and the 
quotes became higher

20

Training not attended 87
Travel costs incurred for people who did not travel 1
VAT was charged by suppliers who are not registered 
VAT vendors

32

Purchases not in line with Ministerial handbook 36
Purchases on lost petrol card 94
Total 4,313

26. Related party transactions

Revenue received

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 42 -
Total 42 -

Payments made

Goods and services 119,364 280,716
Interest and rent on land 2 1
Purchases of capital assets 109 126,879
Transfers - -
Total 119,475 407,596

Year-end balances arising from revenue/payments
Receivables from related parties - 37,820
Payables to related parties 13,210 1,749
Total 13,210 39,569

Other
Commitments 25,305 154,455
Total 25,305 154,455
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Related parties to the Department

The following entities/departments have been identified as related parties of the Department:

a)	 Independent Development Trust (IDT)

Government Development Agency to implement projects commissioned by government.

b)	 Parliamentary Village Management Board

To provide transport from and to the parliamentary villages for residents (Parliamentarians and sessional officials) 
who are in Cape Town.

c)	 Agrément South Africa (ASA)

Promote and support the process of integrated socio-economic development in SA.

d)	 Council for the Built Environment (CBE)

Oversee built environment professional councils.

e)	 Construction Industry Development Board (cidb)

Provide strategic direction for sustainable growth, reform and improvements of the construction sector and its role 
in the economy.

f )	 Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE)

To manage devolved accommodation-related costs and user charge.

g)	 All National Departments and their entities.

Related parties transactions

1.	 Independent Development trust

The management fee (identified as a non-arm’s length transaction) and the contract cost is disclosed above. The 
management fee structure varies per project depending on the duration, complexity and labour required and is 
embedded in the contract cost of the projects undertaken by the IDT for the Department.

2.	 In kind goods and services provided/received

2.1	Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE)

The Property Management Trading Entity *(PMTE) operates within the administration of the Department of Public 
Works (DPW) and as such all contracts are entered into in the name of the DPW. The liabilities and obligations 
arising from these transactions are accounted for by the PMTE if it relates to the PMTE operating activities as these 
liabilities will be settled using the PMTE funds and resources.

Direct cost

Direct cost consists of overhead costs for the day-to-day running of PMTE. These costs can be measured reliably and 
are disclosed above. Direct cost compensation of employees is not a standard line item disclosure under ‘payments 
made’, this amounts to R17,9 million for the 2012/13 financial year and R12,9 million for the 2011/12 financial year.

Indirect cost

Indirect costs include the sharing of corporate services between the Department and PMTE. The nature of the 
transactions resulted in difficulties in reliably determining the value of the indirect costs paid on behalf of the PMTE, 
due to the operational structure and functions between the Department and the PMTE.

•	 Supply chain management
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•	 Internal audit

•	 Human Resources (HRM, HROD)

•	 Gender, people with disabilities, youth and children

•	 Marketing and communication

•	 Information system services

•	 Legal services

•	 Security management

•	 Monitoring and evaluation

•	 Strategic management unit

•	 Labour relations

•	 Senior management (Minister, COO, CFO, DDG and DG)

Maintenance cost and rates and taxes

The PMTE pays maintenance costs (planned and unplanned) and rates and taxes on State-owned buildings and 
private leases occupied by the Department. The total maintenance and rates and taxes costs amounted to R4, 025 
billion for the 2012/13 financial year and R3, 885 billion for the 2011/12 financial year. This is broken down as follows:

•	 Rates and taxes (payments) – R788,6 million

•	 Rates and taxes (accruals) – R6,1 million

•	 Cleaning, gardening and security(payments) –R76,8 million

•	 Cleaning, gardening and security(accruals) – R6,7 million

•	 Property maintenance(accruals) – R140,3 million

•	 Day-to-day maintenance – planned and unplanned maintenance(payments) – R 3,007 billion

2.2	Private leases

The Department leases private buildings to other departments for free. This is based on the devolution of funds 
from National Treasury. The total payments amounted to R76,1 million for the 2012/13 financial year.

2.3	Free accommodation

The Department provides free accommodation and maintenance to the National Museum.

2.4	Department of Defence – capital works paid

 The Department paid for capital works to the Department of Defense on certain property. This is a once off ‘service-
in-kind’ for the 2012/13 financial year and amounts to R16, 2 million.

3.	 Comparative figure

The prior year balances were restated to reflect transactions that were not at arm’s length and could not be reliably 
measured. A significant decrease was noted in the restatement of figures (97% - 100%). This was due to the following: 

•	 Disclosing only non-arm’s length transactions

•	 Qualitative disclosure of the indirect costs

•	 Interim approved PMTE structure to reflect only Finance.
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27. Key management personnel

No. of 
Individuals 2012/13 2011/12

R’000 R’000
Political office bearers 2 3,328 3,027
Officials: - -

Level 15 to 16 24 19,105 12,118
Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 54 42,384 37,841

Family members of key management personnel 1 504 683
Total 65,321 53,669

The Political Office Bearers are the Minister of the Department of Public Works and the Deputy Minister of the 
Department of Public Works.

Two members have been seconded to the Department free of charge, hence their cost is not reflected above.

28. Public Private Partnership

Contract fee paid 42,997 37,349
Fixed component 6,102 10,279
Indexed component 36,895 27,070

Analysis of indexed component 36,895 27,070
Goods and services (excluding lease payments) 21,806 25,999
Operating leases 14,412 679
Suspense 677 392

Capital/ (Liabilities) 6,102 10,279
Tangible rights 6,102 10,279

Other 23,588 7,621
Other obligations 23,588 7,621

Any guarantees issued by the Department are disclosed in Note 18.

Included in other obligations amounting to R23, 6 million are finance lease commitments of R1, 4 million, operating 
lease commitments of R17, 5 million and accruals amounting to R4, 8 million.

29. Impairment

Impairment
Debtors 15,780 10,500
Other 41,699 99,367
Total 57,479 109,867

30. Provisions

Performance bonus - -
Total - -
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Comparative figure

Comparative figure has changed due to the reclassification of provisions relating to performance awards stated under 
employee benefits. This resulted in provisions for the 2011/12 financial year being reduced by R16, 859 million (refer 
to note 21).

31. Non-adjusting events after reporting date

There were no non-adjusting events identified for the current year under review.
Total - -

32. Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Opening 
balance

Curr Year 
Adjustments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

HERITAGE ASSETS 56,210 36,845 4,387 1,579 95,863
Heritage assets 56,210 36,845 4,387 1,579 95,863

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 305,167 33,891 29,138 11,584 356,612
Transport assets 3,563 - 50 1,026 2,587
Computer equipment 70,435 (578) 9,096 3,524 75,429
Furniture and office equipment 197,863 19,114 12,121 6,487 222,611
Other machinery and equipment 33,306 15,355 7,871 547 55,985

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 361,377 70,736 33,525 13,163 452,475



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 227

Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

32.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Cash Non-cash

(Capital Work 
in Progress 

current 
costs and 

finance lease 
payments)

Received 
current, not 

paid
(Paid current 
year, received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

HERITAGE ASSETS - 4,387 - - 4,387
Heritage assets - 4,387 - - 4,387

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 43,199 9,510 (23,717) 146 29,138
Transport assets 0 50 - - 50
Computer equipment 7,071 2,770 - (745) 9,096
Furniture and office equipment 5,444 6,255 - 422 12,121
Other machinery and equipment 30,684 435 (23,717) 469 7,871

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - - - - -
Biological assets - - - - -

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 43,199 13,897 (23,717) 146 33,525

32.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
Sold for cash Transfer out 

or destroyed 
or scrapped

Total disposals Cash Received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

HERITAGE ASSETS - 1,579 1,579 -
Heritage assets - 1,579 1,579 -

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT - 11,584 11,584 -
Transport assets - 1,026 1,026 -
Computer equipment - 3,524 3,524 -
Furniture and office equipment - 6,487 6,487 -
Other machinery and equipment - 547 547 -

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS - 13,163 13,163 -
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32.3 Movement for 2011/12

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Closing 

balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

HERITAGE ASSETS 56,267 - 57 56,210
Heritage assets 56,267 - 57 56,210

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 267,036 74,894 36,763 305,167
Transport assets 3,544 19 - 3,563
Computer equipment 53,020 43,661 26,246 70,435
Furniture and office equipment 179,751 26,783 8,671 197,863
Other machinery and equipment 30,721 4,431 1,846 33,306

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 323,303 74,894 36,820 361,377

32.4 Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2013
Specialised 

military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 81 1,175 162,321 - 163,577
Current year adjustments to 
prior year balances - (73) 2,513 (4,591) - (2,151)

Additions - - 239 4,101 - 4,340
Disposals - - 152 17,200 - 17,352
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - 8 3,775 144,631 - 148,414

Specialised 
military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets Total

Number of R1 minor assets - 1 112 10,661 - 10,774
Number of minor assets at 
cost - 12 3,291 88,695 - 91,998

TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR 
ASSETS - 13 3,403 99,356 - 102,772
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Note 2012/13 2011/12
R’000 R’000

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible 

assets
Heritage 

assets
Machinery 

and 
equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 76 1,191 159,775 - 161,042
Additions - 5 - 11,704 - 11,709
Disposals - - 16 9,158 - 9,174
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - 81 1,175 162,321 - 163,577

Specialised 
military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets Total

Number of R1 minor assets - 3 86 7,211 - 7,300
Number of minor assets at 
cost - 12 1,018 317,446 - 318,476

TOTAL NUMBER OF 
MINOR ASSETS - 15 1,104 324,657 - 325,776

33. Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Opening 
balance

Current 
Year Adjust-

ments to 
prior year 
balances

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Computer software 50,852 (174) 420 14 51,084
Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, 
trademarks

- 25 - - 25

Services and operating rights 512 - - - 512
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 51,364 (149) 420 14 51,621

33.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Cash Non-Cash

(Develop-
ment work 
in progress 

– current 
costs)

Received 
current year, 

not paid
(Paid 

current year, 
received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Computer software 501 - - (81) 420
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 501 - - (81) 420
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33.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Sold for cash
Transfer out or 

destroyed or 
scrapped

Total disposals Cash Received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Computer software - 14 14 -
TOTAL DISPOSALS OF INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS - 14 14 -

33.3 Movement for 2011/12

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Closing 

balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Computer software 44,214 6,659 21 50,852
Services and operating rights 500 12 - 512
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 44,714 6,671 21 51,364

34. Immovable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETSAS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Opening 
balance

Curr Year 
Adjustments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 4,057,611 (587,345) 49,168 - 3,519,434
Dwellings 502,909 (147,490) - - 355,419
Non-residential buildings 3,554,141 (439,294) 49,168 - 3,164,015
Other fixed structures 561 (561) - - -

HERITAGE ASSETS 4,547 (4,547) - - -
Heritage assets 4,547 (4,547) - - -

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS 51,486 (2,498) - - 48,988
Land 51,486 (2,498) - - 48,988

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL AS-
SETS 4,113,644 (594,390) 49,168 - 3,568,422

The amount of R3,67 billion includes acquired properties and construction projects completed from 2002 to date, 
however, the amount excludes expenditure related to renovation and refurbishment of properties.
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34.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2013

Cash Non-cash

(Capital 
Work in 

Progress 
current 

costs and 
finance lease 

payments)

Received 
current, not 

paid
(Paid 

current year, 
received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDING AND OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES 713,003 - (663,835) - 49,168

Non-residential buildings 713,003 - (663,835) - 49,168

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 713,003 - (663,835) - 49,168

Included in the amount of R713 million, is R664 million relating to renovations and refurbishment of existing buildings. 

34.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2013

Sold for cash
Transfer out or 

destroyed or 
scrapped

Total disposals Cash Received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES - - - -
Non-residential buildings - - - -

TOTAL DISPOSALS OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS - - - -
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34.3 Movement for 2011/12

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS AS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2012

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Closing 

balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 3,439,962 617,649 - 4,057,611
Dwellings 502,909 - - 502,909
Non-residential buildings 2,936,492 617,649 - 3,554,141
Other fixed structures 561 - - 561

HERITAGE ASSETS 4,547 - - 4,547
Heritage assets 4,547 - - 4,547

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS 54,238 402 3,154 51,486
Land 54,238 402 3,154 51,486

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE ASSETS 3,498,747 618,051 3,154 4,113,644

34.4 Immovable assets valued at R1

IMMOVABLE ASSETS VALUED AT R1 IN THE ASSET REGISTER AS AT 31 MARCH 2013
Buildings and 

other fixed 
structures

Heritage 
assets

Land and 
subsoil assets Total

R R R R

DPW R1 immovable assets 73,463 124 34, 731 108,318
Unregistered land deemed National - 3,127 3,127
Deemed Provincial unvested - 13,703 13,703
Deemed Provincial surveyed not registered - 4,125 4,125
TOTAL 73,463 124 55,686 129,273
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STATE DOMESTIC FACILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

The State Domestic Facilities on unregistered land or under permission to occupy agreements, amount to 18 687 as at 
31 March 2013.
The National state functions of these facilities include;
BORDER POST  364 
COMMUNICATION STRUCTURE  43 
HARBOUR  380 
LABORATORY  19 
MAGISTRATES OFFICE  938 
MILITARY BASE  6,090 
MONUMENT  4 
MORTUARY  30 
MUSEUM  58 
OFFICE BUILDING  2,121 
POLICE STATION  6,098 
PRESTIGE  50 
PRISON  1,766 
PURIFICATION WORKS  78 
RESEARCH  37 
RESERVOIR  28 
SUPREME COURT  10 
TRAINING FACILITY  96 
WATER WORKS  274 
WORKSHOP  203 
Grand Total  18,687 

IMMOVABLE ASSETS VALUED AT R1 IN THE ASSET REGISTER AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
Buildings and 

other fixed 
structures

Heritage 
assets

Land and 
subsoil assets Total

R R R R

R1 Immovable assets 73,397 - 35,640 109,037
TOTAL 73,397 - 35,640 109,037

During 2012/13 the immovable asset register was completed for registered land and substantially completed for 
unregistered land. These confirmed land parcels are disclosed at R1 each. 
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Index
The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements:

Index	 Page

Report of the Auditor-General	 277

Statement of Financial Position	 283

Statement of Financial Performance	 284

Statement of Changes in Net Assets	 285

Cash Flow Statement	 286

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts	 287

Accounting Policies	 288 - 299

Notes to the Financial Statements	 300 - 328

The financial statements set out on pages 283 to 328, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by on 
31 May 2013:

Mr. Mziwonke Dlabantu

Director-General
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Property 
Management Trading Entity

Report on the financial statements 
Introduction 

1.	 I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Property Management Trading Entity set out on pages 
283 to 328, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in net assets, the cash flow statement and the statement of comparison 
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the 
accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 

3.	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 
audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice 
issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Because of the matters described in the Basis 
for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

Irregular expenditure

4.	 Section 38(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA requires the entity to implement and maintain an appropriate procurement and 
provisioning system that is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective. Furthermore, section 40(3)
(b)(i) of the PFMA requires the entity to include particulars of all irregular expenditure that had occurred during 
the financial year in its financial statements.

5.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for irregular expenditure as the entity did not have 
an adequate system for identifying and recognising all irregular expenditure. I was unable to confirm the irregular 
expenditure amount by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment 
relating to irregular expenditure stated at R2 609 711 000 (2012: R1 410  817  000) in note 22 to the financial 
statements was necessary.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

6.	 Section 40(3)(b)(i) of the PFMA requires the entity to include particulars of all fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
that had occurred during the financial year in its financial statements.

7.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for fruitless and wasteful expenditure as the entity did 
not have an adequate system for identifying and recognising all fruitless and wasteful expenditure. I was unable 
to confirm the fruitless and wasteful expenditure amount by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure stated at R254 514 000 (2012: 
R239 311 000) in note 21 to the financial statements was necessary.
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Property 
Management Trading Entity (continued)

Receivables and revenue from exchange transactions

8.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly charged and accounted 
for receivables and revenue for accommodation charges: leasehold due to the status of the accounting records. 
Some of the lease agreements were not available for audit purposes. Furthermore, the amounts disclosed are 
based on data from the Property Management Information System (PMIS), which did not agree with information 
per actual signed lease agreements.

9.	 In addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding construction revenue because 
the entity was unable to provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence in support of the amount recorded.

10.	 I was unable to confirm the amounts by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustment to the following items in the financial statements was necessary:

•	 Accommodation charges: leasehold receivable stated at R473 509 000 (2012: R450 400 000) in note 3.

•	 Prepaid expenses stated at R339 082 000 (2012: R88 490 000) in note 3.

•	 Construction contracts receivables stated at R292 497 000 (2012: R396 378 000) in note 5.

•	 Accommodation charges: leasehold revenue stated at R3 113 217 000 (2012: R2 968 905 000) in note 14.

•	 Construction revenue stated at R2 351 326 000 (2012: R3 017 957 000) in note 14.

Operating lease assets and associated liabilities

11.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly accounted for 
operating lease assets and associated liabilities as well as operating lease commitments due to the status of 
the accounting records. Some of the lease agreements were not available for audit purposes. Furthermore, the 
amounts disclosed are based on data from the Property Management Information System (PMIS), which did not 
agree with information per actual signed lease agreements. 

12.	 I was unable to confirm the amounts by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustment to the following items in the financial statements was necessary:

·	 Operating lease assets and liabilities stated at R892 499 000 (2012: R859 393 000) in note 6.

·	 Operating lease commitments stated at R7 154 054 000 (2012: R8 642 128 000) in note 6.

·	 Accruals stated at R 1 112 729 000 (2012: R905 187 561 000) in note 9.

·	 Operating leases expenditure stated at R3 341 967 000 (2012: R3 315 087 000) in note 16.

Retention liability

13.	 The entity did not correctly recognise all outstanding amounts meeting the definition of a liability in accordance 
with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements. Consequently, 
retention liability is misstated by an estimated amount of R156 142 482 (2012: R282 778 068). There is also a 
consequential impact on construction expenditure and the accumulated surplus.

Disclaimer of opinion

14.	 Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, I have not 
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do 
not express an opinion on the financial statements. 
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Property 
Management Trading Entity (continued)

Emphasis of matter 

15.	 I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Going concern 

16.	 Note 1.6 to the financial statements indicates that as of 31 March 2013, the PMTE is in a net liability position. This 
condition, along with other matters as set forth in note 1.6, indicates the existence of a material uncertainty that 
may cast significant doubt on the trading entity’s ability to operate as a going concern. 

Restatement of corresponding figures

17.	 As disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2012 have been 
restated as a result of errors discovered during 2013 in the financial statements of the Property Management 
Trading Entity at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2012.

Material impairments

18.	 As disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, material impairments to the amount of R82 971 000 were 
provided for as a result of irrecoverable receivables.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

19.	 In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant 
to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Compliance with laws and regulations

20.	 I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable laws and regulations 
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-
compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations, as set out in the general notice issued in 
terms of the PAA, are as follows: 

Strategic planning and performance management

21.	 The accounting officer of the Department of Public Works did not finalise and approve the business case for 
running the trading entity and consequently did not formulate a policy and reporting framework for the head of 
the trading entity in accordance with the requirements of Treasury Regulation 19.3.1.

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports

22.	 The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial 
reporting framework and supported by full and proper records, as required by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the 
PFMA. 

Material misstatements of accruals and expenditure identified by the auditors in the submitted financial 
statements were subsequently corrected and the supporting records provided, but the uncorrected material 
misstatements and supporting records that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving 
a disclaimer of audit opinion.
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Procurement and contract management

23.	 Goods and services with a transaction value of below R500 000 were in certain instances procured without 
obtaining the required number of price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

24.	 Goods and services of a transaction value of above R500 000 were in certain instances procured without inviting 
competitive bids, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.1. A number of deviations were approved even 
though it was not impractical to invite competitive bids, in contravention of Treasury Regulation 16A6.4.

25.	 Construction projects were not always registered with the Construction Industry Development Board (cidb), as 
required by section 22 of the cidb Act and cidb regulation 18.

26.	 Persons in service of the trading entity who had a private or business interest in contracts awarded by the trading 
entity failed to disclose such interest, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A8.4 and Public Service Regulation 3C.

27.	 Persons in service of the trading entity who had a private or business interest in contracts awarded by the trading 
entity participated in the process relating to that contract, in contravention of Treasury Regulation 16A8.4.

28.	 Allegations of fraud, corruption, improper conduct and failure to comply with the supply chain management 
system made against officials and role players in the supply chain management system were not in all instances 
investigated as required by Treasury Regulation 16A9.1(b).

29.	 Appropriate action was not in all instances taken against officials and role players in the supply chain management 
system where investigations proved fraud and corruption, improper conduct and failure to comply with the 
supply chain management system, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A9.1(b)(i).

30.	 Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all contracts and quotations were awarded in 
accordance with the legislative requirements as the entity did not implement proper record keeping in a timely 
manner to ensure that complete, relevant and accurate information was accessible and available to evaluate 
compliance.

Expenditure management

31.	 The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as 
required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

32.	 Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who made or permitted irregular 
expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.3.

Revenue management

33.	 The accounting officer did not develop and implement appropriate processes that provide for the identification, 
collection, recording, reconciliation and safeguarding of information about revenue to ensure that all money 
due to the trading entity was collected as per the requirements of section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury 
Regulation 7.2.1.

34.	 The accounting officer did not take effective and appropriate steps to collect all money due, as required by section 
38(1)(c)(i) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 11.2.1, 15.10.1.2(a) and 15.10.1.2(e).

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Property 
Management Trading Entity (continued)



Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13 281

Financial misconduct

35.	 Investigations were not conducted into all allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials, as required 
by Treasury Regulation 4.1.1.

36.	 Investigations into allegations of financial misconduct against officials were not instituted within 30 days of 
discovery thereof, as required by Treasury Regulation 4.1.2.

37.	 Disciplinary hearings were not held for financial misconduct committed by officials, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 4.1.1.

Banking and cash management

38.	 The entity’s main bank account was overdrawn throughout the reporting period, in contravention of Treasury 
Regulation 19.2.3.

Internal control 

39.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and compliance with laws and 
regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant 
deficiencies that resulted in the basis for disclaimer of opinion and the findings on compliance with laws and 
regulations included in this report. 

Leadership

40.	 Certain critical appointments were only made in the last quarter of the financial year, thus instability in key 
leadership positions for the first part of the financial year had a negative impact in providing effective leadership 
in the department.

41.	 Leadership did not exercise effective oversight of financial and performance reporting and compliance and 
related internal controls.

42.	 Leadership did not apply effective consequence management for transgressions with regard to non-performance 
and non-compliance throughout the financial year.

43.	 Leadership did not in all instances establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable and support the 
understanding and execution of internal objectives, processes and responsibilities.

Financial and performance management

44.	 Proper record keeping was not always implemented in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and 
accurate information was accessible and available to support financial and performance reporting.

45.	 Implemented controls over daily and monthly processing and reconciling of transactions were not effective in all 
instances.

46.	 Regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports supported and evidenced by reliable 
information were not prepared throughout the year.

47.	 The review and monitoring of compliance with applicable laws and regulations were ineffective.

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Property 
Management Trading Entity (continued)
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Governance

48.	 Risk management activities, including the consideration of IT risks and fraud prevention, were not effectively 
conducted. A risk strategy to address identified risks was not developed and monitored throughout the financial 
year.

49.	 The internal audit unit was not adequately resourced to ensure that it could effectively assist in identifying internal 
control deficiencies and developing recommendations in respect of corrective action to be taken to address the 
internal control deficiencies identified. This has also resulted in the continued backlog in internal investigations.

OTHER REPORTS 

Investigations

50.	 Numerous internal allegations, mainly relating to transgressions with respect to supply chain management, 
potential fraud and financial misconduct, are investigated on an ongoing basis. 

51.	 An ongoing investigation is being conducted to probe the alleged abuse of urgent and emergency procurement 
as well the utilisation of sole suppliers. The investigation aims to establish whether there was collusion between 
officials and service providers and to determine any reckless spending of funds. The investigation is being 
conducted in phases, with nine reports having been finalised to date, while the majority were still ongoing at 
the reporting date. The department is in the process of instituting disciplinary action in respect of the finalised 
reports.

Pretoria

16 / 9 / 2013

  

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Property 
Management Trading Entity (continued)
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Note 2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2013

Assets
Current Assets
Receivables from exchange transactions 3 2 062 804 1 527 646
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 1 730 1 445
Construction contracts receivables 5 292 497 396 378
Operating lease assets 6 892 499 859 393
Cash and cash equivalents 8 829 1 399

3 250 359 2 786 261

Non-Current Assets
Finance lease receivables 7 33 548 30 803
Total Assets 3 283 907 2 817 064

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liabilities 6 892 499 859 393
Payables from exchange transactions 9 1 548 024 1 422 356
Bank overdraft 8 1 402 323 1 254 988
Retention liabilities 10 75 798 68 240
Employee benefit obligations 11 1 730 1 445

3 920 374 3 606 422

Non-Current Liabilities
Retention liabilities 10 264 759 268 063
Provisions 12 34 029 34 029
Finance lease obligations 13 33 548 30 803

332 336 332 895
Total Liabilities 4 252 710 3 939 317
Total Net Liabilities (968 803) (1 122 253)

Net Assets
Reserves
Accumulated deficit (968 803) (1 122 253)
Net Assets (968 803) (1 122 253)
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Note 2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions 14 9 072 859 9 417 889
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 15 673 233 649 357
Total revenue 9 746 092 10 067 246

Expenses
Operating expenses 16 9 570 713 10 788 275
Finance costs 17 4 060 3 988
Employee costs 18 17 869 12 893
Total expenses 9 592 642 10 805 156
Surplus / (deficit) for the year 153 450 (737 910)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Note
Accumulated 

deficit
Total net  

assets
R’000 R’000

Opening balance as previously reported 128 134 128 134
Prior year adjustments 29 (512 473) (512 473)
Balance at 01 April 2011 as restated (384 339) (384 339)
Changes in net assets
Prior period error 29 (1 015 423) (1 015 423) 
Surplus for the year as previously stated 277 513 277 513
Total changes: Surplus for the year as restated (737 910) (737 910)
Balance as at 1 April 2012 previously reported 405 647 405 647
Adjustments
Prior period error 29 (1 527 900) (1 527 900)
Balance as at 1 April 2012 restated (1 122 253) (1 122 253)
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 153 450 153 450
Balance at 31 March 2013 (968 803) (968 803)
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Note 2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Accommodation charges - freehold 3 424 556 3 301 804
Accommodation charges - lease hold 2 718 328 2 565 199
Augmentation 646 849 630 189
Contractor fines 7 125 5 077
Recoveries 18 650 12 362
Municipal services management fee 157 622 140 074
Interest received 21 055 16 659

6 994 185 6 671 364

Payments
Finance costs (308) (541)
Bank charges (122) (67)
Bursaries and advisory services (4 291) (4 560)
Cleaning and gardening (158 380) (165 436)
Municipal services (242) (58)
Operating leases (3 109 723) (2 896 859)
Planned maintenance (capital) (550 284) (557 281)
Planned maintenance (current) (166 075) (149 718)
Property rates (788 675) (513 222)
Rent on land (12 221) (10 848)
Security (38 439) (40 807)
Tender advertisements (41) (72)
Thefts and losses (22 554) (26 692)
Unplanned maintenance (2 290 735) (2 221 677)

(7 142 090) (6 587 838)

Net cash flows from operating activities 19 (147 905) 83 526

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments (1 007) (938)
Finance lease receipts 1 007 938
Net cash flows from financing activities - -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (147 905) 83 526
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1 253 589) (1 337 115)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 (1 401 494) (1 253 589)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Approved 
budget Adjustments Final Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between 

final budget 
and actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Management fees on municipal services 
recovery 124 155 22 705 146 860 157 622 10 762

Fines - 7 125  7 125  7 125 - 
Accommodation charges - freehold 
properties 3 429 892 - 3 429 892 3 424 556  (5 336)

Accommodation charges - leasehold 
properties 3 171 275 (48 071) 3 123 204 2 718 328 (404 876) 

Augmentation  646 849 - 646 849 646 849 -
Recoveries -  18 650  18 650 18 650 -
Interest received 5 000  (3 978)  1 022 21 055 20 033
Total revenue 7 377 171 (3 569) 7 373 602 6 994 185 (379 417)

Expenditure
Advisory services 7 000 (5 000) 2 000 1 929 (71) 
Bank charges 70 55 125 122 (3) 
Bursaries 7 000 - 7 000 2 362 (4 638) 
Cleaning and gardening 223 771 (46 793) 176 978 158 380 (18 598) 
Computer services - 99 510 99 510 - (99 510) 
Interest paid 3 000 (2 680) 320 308 (12) 
Municipal services 3 000 (2 750) 250 242 (8) 
Operating leases 3 155 170 (44 833) 3 110 337 3 109 723 (614) 
Planned maintenance (capital) 887 712 (85 159) 802 553 550 284 (252 269) 
Planned maintenance (current) 1 552 777 65 952 1 618 729 166 075 (1 452 654) 
Property rates 716 876 72 054 788 930 788 675 (255) 
Rent on land 16 105 (3 405) 12 700 12 221 (479) 
Security 49 505 (9 505) 40 000 38 439 (1 561) 
Tender advertisements 85 (42) 43 41 (2) 
Thefts and losses - 23 000 23 000 22 554 (446) 
Unplanned maintenance 755 100 (63 973) 691 127 2 290 735 1 599 608
Total expenditure (7 377 171) 3 569 (7 373 602) (7 142 090) 231 512
Cash deficit - - - (147 905) (147 905)

Refer to note 30 for reconciliations and explanations for budget differences.
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1. Presentation of Financial Statements
1.1 Statement of Compliance

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (“GRAP”) including any interpretations and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board 
(“ASB”).

1.2 Adoption of GRAP

The Property Management Trading Entity (“PMTE”) adopted GRAP for the first time in the current financial year in 
accordance with Directive 9, issued November 2011 by the ASB. The adoption of GRAP resulted in the reclassification 
and remeasurement of certain items. The PMTE applied Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(“SA GAAP”) previously. Refer to notes 28 and 29.

The Standards of GRAP included in Annexure G of Directive 5 were applied in developing appropriate accounting 
policies for PMTE in so far as the Standards are applicable to the transactions of the PMTE.

In addition to the Standards that have to be applied, the PMTE early adopted the amendments to the Standards made 
as a result of the improvements projects of the ASB in so far as it is applicable to the transactions of the PMTE. The 
applicable Standards, effective from 1 April 2013 are listed below:

GRAP 1	 Presentation of Financial Statements

GRAP 3	 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

GRAP 7	 Investments in Associates

GRAP 9	 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

GRAP 12	 Inventories

GRAP 13	 Leases

GRAP 17	 Property, Plant and Equipment

1.3.Standards of GRAP issued but not yet effective

The following Standards of GRAP that have been issued by the ASB, but where the Minister of Finance has 
not determined an effective date, have not been adopted by the PMTE:

1.3.1 Standard utilised in developing accounting policies

The PMTE utilised GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits in developing its accounting policies.

As a result, there will be no impact on the measurement of employee benefits when the Standard becomes effective.

1.3.2 Standards utilised in developing disclosures

The PMTE has utilised GRAP 20 - Related Party Disclosure.

As a result, there will be no impact on the disclosure of related parties when the Standard becomes effective.
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1.3.3 Standards not yet applicable

Accounting policies have not been developed for the following Standards as the transactions and events within the 
scope of these Standards were not yet applicable:

GRAP 18 - Segment reporting.

GRAP 105 - Transfer of functions between entities under common control.

GRAP 18:

Segments are identified by the way in which information is reported to management, both for purpose of assessing 
performance and making decisions about how future resources will be allocated to the various activities undertaken 
by the PMTE. The major classifications of activities identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the segments 
for which the PMTE reports information to management.

Segment information is either presented based on service or geographical segments. Service segments relate to a 
distinguishable component of the PMTE that provides specific outputs or achieves particular operating objectives that 
are in line with the PMTE’s overall mission. Geographical segments relate to specific outputs generated or particular 
objectives achieved, by the PMTE within a particular region.

The adoption of this Standard is not expected to have an impact on the results of the PMTE, but may result in 
more disclosure than is currently provided in the financial statements.

Directive 2, containing the transitional provisions applicable to the PMTE, does not require comparative segment 
information on initial adoption of this Standard.

This Standard has been approved by the ASB but its effective date has not been determined by the Minister of Finance. 
The effective date indicated is a provisional date and could change depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.

GRAP 105:

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of 
functions between entities under common control.

It requires an acquirer and a transferor that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of 
accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or event that meets the definition of transfer of functions.

It furthermore covers definitions, identifying the acquirer and transferor, determining the transfer date, assets acquired 
or transferred and liabilities assumed or relinquished, accounting by the acquirer and transferor, disclosure, transitional 
provisions as well as the effective date of the Standard.

The PMTE is expecting, as a result of the planned transfer of functions from the Department of Public Works (“DPW”) to 
the PMTE, to recognise the associated assets and liabilities, income and expenses from these functions in its 31 March 
2014 financial statements. The expected impact is not yet determinable.

It is unlikely that the following Standards and/or amendments to Standards, that has been issued but are not 
yet effective, will have a material impact on the financial statements of the PMTE once they become effective:
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GRAP 106	 Transfer of functions of entities not under common control

GRAP 107	 Mergers

IGRAP 11	 Consolidation - Special purpose entities

IGRAP 12	 Jointly controlled entities - Non monetary contributions by ventures

GRAP 6 (as revised 2010)	 Consolidation and separate financial statements

GRAP 7 (as revised 2010)	 Investments in associates

GRAP 8 (as revised 2010)	 Interest in joint ventures

GRAP 31 (as revised 2012)	 Intangible assets (replaces GRAP 102) 

GRAP 27 (as revised 2012)	 Agriculture (replaces GRAP 101) 

IGRAP 16	 Intangible assets website costs

Based on an analysis of the transactions of the PMTE, these Standards will not have an impact the PMTE.

1.4 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis using historical cost as a measurement basis, unless another 
measurement basis is required by the Standard of GRAP. The significant accounting policies applied are set out below.

1.5 Functional Currency

The financial statements are prepared in South African Rand (“R”) which is also the functional currency of the PMTE. 
Where values are rounded, they are rounded to the nearest thousand (“R’000”) and indicated as such.

1.6 Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. Although the PMTE is in a net liability position 
and has a bank overdraft of R1 402 000 for the period ended 31 March 2013, management maintains their assessment 
that the PMTE is able to continue on a going concern basis into the foreseeable future. The PMTE operates under the 
control and support of the National Department of Public Works (“NDPW”) and National Treasury is aware of the PMTE’s 
overdraft position. Management has implemented a strategy to ensure the turnaround of the entity.

1.7 Offsetting

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted 
by a Standard of GRAP.

1.8 Comparative figures

Comparative figures have been adjusted to correct errors identified in the current year but relating to prior years and 
to conform to changes in presentations as a result of the adoption of GRAP. The effect of the restatements is disclosed 
in note 29.
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1.9 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

1.9.1 Initial measurement of financial assets

Short-term financial assets have been measured initially at the transaction price unless there was an indication that 
the transaction was provided at terms that were longer than 30 days for all receivables. Interest was charged on debt 
outstanding exceeding the normal credit terms at the rate applicable to debt owed to the State, except for debt owed 
by Government institutions. The PMTE is unable to determine the interest free period granted to these Government 
institutions for initial measurement purposes and as a result the transaction price is assumed to be the fair value. The 
effect of payment outside of the 30 day period is considered during the impairment assessment (refer to note 
1.9.2 below).

The applicable discount rate for 2013 is 8.5% (2012: 8.5%).

1.9.2 Impairment of financial assets

An impairment is recognised for estimated losses firstly on individually significant receivables and secondly on a 
group of receivables with the same credit risk that are assessed to be impaired based on objective evidence as a 
result of one or more events that occurred during the reporting period. For debtors which have defaulted management 
made judgements based on history. Should the financial condition of the customer change actual write-offs could 
differ significantly from the impairment losses recognised. The current year’s provision for impairment is based on 
management’s best estimate of the expected cashflows for amounts that are outstanding for longer than the normal 
payment terms discounted at the current rate of debt out to the state. A full provision was made for receivables where 
we expect payment but cannot determine the exact future payment date.

1.9.3 Commitments

Commitments based on orders relating to capital projects where the goods/services have not been delivered, and 
are subsequently recovered from client departments, have not been disclosed in the financial records of the 
entity. The reason for this is that the underlying immoveable assets are recognised in the accounting records of client 
departments which includes the DPW.

1.9.4 Contingent assets, contingent liabilities and provisions

Contingent assets, contingent liabilities and provisions have been based on the best estimate available. Contingent 
liabilities relating to litigation has been based on the assessment of the estimated claim against the PMTE as 
at 31 March 2013.

1.9.5 Maintenance costs, construction revenue and construction receivables

The PMTE incurs expenditure relating to the maintenance and upgrading of buildings under the custodianship of 
the DPW. Where capital projects are funded by the different client departments and the DPW through their respective 
capital budgets, the PMTE classifies this revenue as revenue from exchange transactions (construction revenue). 
Where capital projects are funded partly from the augmentation grant and partly from the accommodation charge 
on State-owned property, these are expensed and disclosed as a related party transaction to the DPW. Expenditure on 
maintenance is funded from the accommodation charge on State-owned property and is expensed and disclosed as a 
related party transaction to the DPW.
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1.9.6 Classification of accommodation charges as lease revenue

The PMTE provides property management services to DPW and in return receives the right to charge users an 
accommodation fee (lease revenue). As the intention of the PMTE is to provide accommodation at values that are 
directly equal to the value of the service being delivered, the PMTE categorises all accommodation charges 
as revenue from exchange transactions notwithstanding the fact that this revenue may or may not equal the value 
of the service delivered. Furthermore, accommodation charges on State-owned leases are classified as lease revenue 
notwithstanding the fact that the PMTE has no custodianship of the underlying asset. The intention is that the PMTE 
will obtain custodianship once the functions relating to asset management is transferred to the PMTE (see note 14).

1.9.7 Classification of leases

The PMTE classifies lease agreements in accordance with risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Where the lessor 
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards to the lessee, the lease is classified as a finance lease. All other leases 
are classified as operating leases. Determining whether the risks and rewards of ownership has been transferred 
to a lessee is a matter of professional judgement. In exercising this judgement, the PMTE considered the following 
indicators:

•	 Ownership is transferred to the lessee at the end of lease term;

•	 Lease term is for major part of economic life of asset;

•	 At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments amount to, at least, substantially 
all the fair value of the leased asset;

•	 The leased asset is of a specialised nature that only the lessee can use it without major modifications;

•	 The leased asset is not easily replaceable by another asset;

•	 If the lessee can cancel the lease, the lessee will carry any loss that will be incurred by the lessor as a result 
of modification; and

•	 At the end of the initial lease, the lessee has an option to extend the lease at a rent that is substantially lower 
than the market rent.

Where the PMTE has assessed itself to be a lessee to a finance lease arrangement, it recognises a finance lease liability 
and a related leasehold asset, which would be disclosed as part of property plant and equipment and depreciated over 
its useful life. The PMTE enters into these finance leasehold agreements on behalf of its client departments and 
therefore the assumption is made that all finance lease costs incurred are fully recoverable. The PMTE will in its role as 
finance lease lessor, derecognise this previously recognised leasehold asset (property, plant and equipment) and 
recognise a finance lease asset (see note 2.4).

1.9.8 Related party disclosures

The Standard of GRAP provides exemption from detailed disclosures where those transactions are on:

•	 Normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than 
those which it is reasonable to expect the PMTE to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person 
in the same circumstances; and

•	 Terms and conditions within the normal operating parameters established by our mandate.

Due to the fact that the PMTE has not adopted a final business case, and in the absence of a pricing strategy for 
leases, certain assumptions were made to avoid disclosures of transactions that would not have been disclosed if the 
business case has been finalised. In addition, many services have been rendered in-kind to the PMTE stemming from 
its relationship with the DPW. Due to the nature of these transactions, where amounts could not be measured reliably, 
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only a narrative disclosure was made. This is in line with the principle of not recognising certain services-in-kind as 
it is difficult to measure the value of these services and they are usually consumed within the period contained in 
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (GRAP 23). Where amounts could 
be reliably measured, these have been recognised.

2.	Significant accounting policies
2.1 Revenue

When the PMTE receives value in the form of an asset and directly provides approximate equal value in exchange, the 
PMTE classifies revenue received or receivable as revenue from exchange transactions. All other revenue is classified 
as revenue from non-exchange transactions. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates and recognised when it became due to the PMTE.

2.1.1 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

The PMTE recognises the inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction as revenue, except in cases when a liability 
is recognised in respect of that inflow. These liabilities are classified as payables from non-exchange transactions until 
the conditions relating to the liability has been satisfied.

Where services are received in-kind and a reliable estimate can be made, the PMTE recognises the related revenue. 
In all other cases, the PMTE only discloses the event.

2.1.2 Revenue from exchange transactions

Accommodation charges are recognised either based on the cost of leasing in (in the case of privately owned building) 
or in the case of state accommodation on the budget devolution as agreed upon with the client departments. The latter 
is increased annually based on the budget assumptions in a given year. Revenue earned from accommodation charges 
is classified as lease revenue.

Revenue from construction contracts is classified for disclosure purposes as revenue from exchange transactions (refer 
to 2.5.) recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract when the outcome of a construction contract 
can be estimated reliably. When the outcome of the construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, construction 
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable in the period in 
which they are incurred. An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in the surplus or deficit in the period 
in which it was incurred.

The PMTE pays municipal services on behalf of the client departments and earns 5% commission on the value of the 
invoice. A receivable is recognised for the amounts due from the client departments.

The commission earned is recognised as revenue from exchange transactions in the surplus or deficit and any amounts 
owed or overpaid on the commission is recognised either as a receivable or payable as appropriate from exchange 
transactions.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Other revenue from exchange transactions is recognised in the surplus or deficit when the revenue becomes due to 
the PMTE.
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2.1.3 Revenue earned for the recovery of expenses on behalf of third parties

The PMTE pays municipal services on behalf of the client departments and earns 5% commission on the value of the 
invoice. A receivable is recognised for the amounts due from the client departments.

The commission earned is recognised as revenue from exchange transactions in the surplus or deficit and the amount 
owed/paid on the commission is recognised in receivables/payables from exchange transactions.

2.2 Expenditure

Expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expenditure.

The PMTE recognises expenditure in the Statement of Financial Position when a decrease in future economic benefits 
or service potential relates to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability, other than those relating to distributions 
to owners, has risen, that can be measured reliably.

The PMTE recognises expenses immediately in the surplus or deficit when expenses produce no future economic 
benefits or service potential or when and to the extent that, future economic benefits or service potential do not qualify 
or cease to qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position as an asset.

The PMTE also recognises expenses in the surplus or deficit in those cases when a liability is incurred without the 
recognition of an asset, for example, when a liability under a court ruling arises.

Finance cost is recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit in the period in which it is incurred, using the effective 
interest method.

2.3 Employee benefits

2.3.1 Short-term employee benefits

The PMTE recognises an undiscounted amount of short-term benefits due to employees in exchange for the rendering 
of services by employees as follows:

•	 As a liability in cases where the amounts have not yet been paid. Where the amount paid exceeds undiscounted 
amount of the benefits due, the PMTE recognises the excess as an asset to the extent that the overpayment 
will lead to a reduction of future payments or a cash refund.

•	 As an expense, unless the PMTE uses the services of employees in the construction of an asset and the 
benefits received meet the recognition criteria of an asset, at which stage it is included as part of the cost 
of the related property, plant and equipment or intangible asset item.

•	 A related receivable is recognised as the PMTE recovers the expenditure from the DPW.

2.3.2 Leave benefits

The PMTE recognises the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences 
(paid leave) when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences.

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is measured as the additional amount that the PMTE 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
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2.3.3 Performance and service bonuses

The PMTE recognises the expected cost of performance or service bonus payments where there is a present legal 
or constructive obligation to make these payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. A liability for service bonus is accrued on a proportionate bases as services are rendered and a liability for 
performance bonus is raised on the estimated amount payable in terms of the incentive schemes which is based on 
the employee’s performance in the applicable year.The PMTE considers the present obligation to exist when it has no 
realistic alternative but to make the payments related to performance bonuses.

2.3.4 Retirement and medical benefits

Payments to the defined contribution plan are charged to the surplus or deficit in the year to which they relate. Once 
the contributions are paid, the PMTE has no further payment obligations. The contribution paid is charged to employee 
expenses in the same year as the related service is provided.

2.4 Leases

2.4.1 PMTE as a lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term where the lease term 
exceeds one month. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. Income for leases is disclosed as revenue from exchange transactions in the surplus or deficit.

The PMTE recognises finance lease receivables resulting from finance leases as assets on the Statement of Financial 
Position. Such assets are presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance 
revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the PMTE’s net investment in 
the finance lease.

The asset and the liability in the Statement of Financial Position are initially recognised at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased property or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.

2.4.2 PMTE as a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term where the 
lease term has been determined. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual 
payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

The PMTE recognises finance lease liabilities resulting from finance lease as a liability on the Statement of Financial 
Position. Minimum lease payments shall be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. Such liabilities are presented as a payable at an amount equal to the net obligation of the lease. 
Finance costs are recognised based on the effective interest implicit in the finance lease.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line 
basis.

2.5 Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised 
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date, as measured by completion of a 
physical proportion of the contract work. The stage of completion is based on the cost to date and is assessed based 
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on surveys of work performed. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent 
that they have been agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of the construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the 
extent that contract costs incurred are recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected deficit is recognised as an 
expense immediately.

2.6 Financial instruments

2.6.1 Initial recognition and classification

The PMTE classifies financial instruments or their component parts, on initial recognition as financial asset, financial 
liability or a residual interest in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the PMTE becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments and the PMTE funds are committed or the PMTE receives the related benefits.

The PMTE does not offset a financial asset and a financial liability unless a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts currently exist, the PMTE intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component of a financial instrument is recognised as revenue or expense 
in the surplus or deficit.

2.6.2 Initial measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value.

2.6.3 Transaction costs

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value are recognised in the surplus or deficit. Transaction costs on 
other financial instruments are included in the cost of the instrument.

2.6.4 Subsequent measurement

All non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, 
excluding instruments that has been designated at fair value or are held for trading, are measured at amortised cost. 
Instruments that does not meet the definition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are 
measured at fair value.

Amortised cost is calculated based on the effective interest method.

Net gains or losses on the financial instruments includes transaction costs, interest and foreign exchange gains or 
losses. A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair 
value is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

2.6.5 Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the PMTE assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through the surplus or deficit, 
to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.
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The inability to redeem amounts due based on the current stream of payments, and default of payments are considered 
to be indicators of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial 
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Impairment losses 
are recognised in the surplus or deficit as expenses.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the 
financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
recognised had the impairment not been recognised.

2.6.6 Derecognition

Financial assets

The PMTE derecognises financial asset using trade date accounting. The PMTE derecognises a financial asset only 
when:

•	 The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

•	 The PMTE transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 
or

•	 The PMTE, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset 
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing 
to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the PMTE:

-- Derecognise the asset; and

-- Recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights and obligations retained and those 
transferred on the basis of their relative fair value at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured 
at that date. Any differences between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is 
recognised in the surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

Financial liabilities

The PMTE removes a financial liability (or a part of the financial liability) from its Statement of Financial Position when it 
is extinguished - i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expire or waived.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished 
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in the surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by the PMTE by 
way of a non- exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-
exchange Transactions (taxes and transfers).
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2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash 
and cash equivalents are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost.

2.8 Receivables from exchange transactions

Receivables from exchange transactions measured at amortised cost arise from transactions with service providers 
and trade debtors. Prepayments and advances consist of amounts paid to contractors and employees for which future 
goods and services are expected to be received. Prepayments and advances are not classified as financial instruments.

2.9 Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Receivables from non-exchange transactions are recognised when the PMTE has a right to receive the monies due 
to it, which are allocated in terms of the legislation or are due in accordance with an agreement in which the PMTE is 
receiving non-exchange revenue. Receivables from non-exchange transactions are initially measured at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost or cost.

2.10 Payables from exchange transactions

The PMTE recognises payables from exchange transactions where liabilities result in counter performance by respective 
parties.

Payables from exchange transactions are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost.

The PMTE recognises in payables an amount for accruals where an estimate is made of the amounts due for goods or 
services that have been received or supplied, but the invoice is outstanding or a formal agreement with the supplier 
has not been concluded.

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are liabilities, excluding accruals that are recognised where the PMTE has a present, legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions 
are measured at the best estimate of the amount to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, discounting to 
present value where time value of money is expected to be material.

2.12 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 20.

2.13 Reserves

The PMTE’s reserves are made up of accumulated reserves.

Accumulated reserves are mainly built up to ensure adequate rehabilitation and maintenance of State-owned 
infrastructure and future infrastructure development.
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2.14 Budget information

The budget is prepared on a cash basis. The PMTE budgets for revenue including the transfer payment received through 
the DPW. Expenditure incurred exceeding the transfer payment and other revenue is defrayed from accumulated 
reserves. The PMTE budget is part of the overall DPW vote.

2.15 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party, exercise significant 
influence over the other party or jointly controls the other party. Specific information with regard to related party 
transactions is included in note 23.2.

2.16 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and material losses through criminal conduct

Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and material losses through criminal conduct is recognised as expenditure 
in the surplus or deficit according to the nature of the payment and disclosed separately in notes 21 to 22. When the 
amount is subsequently recoverable, it is recognised as revenue in the surplus or deficit. Any receivable recognised as 
a result of irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure or material losses through criminal conduct, are subject to an 
annual impairment assessment.
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3.	 Receivables from exchange transactions

Financial assets
Accommodation debtors - leasehold 1 178 777 1 106 541
Provision for impairment (705 268) (656 141)
Net accommodation debtors - leasehold 473 509 450 400
Accommodation debtors - freehold 18 189 24 746
Provision for impairment (17 972) (22 734)
Net accommodation debtors - freehold 217 2 012
Construction receivable 571 770 354 191
Provision for impairment (177 818) (225 924)
Net construction receivables 393 952 128 267
Debt account 115 743 60 999
Provision for impairment (60 923) (393)
Net debt account 54 820 60 606
Revenue accrual 250 005 295 743
Municipal deposits 8 824 6 811
Other debtors 20 20

1 181 347 943 859
Non-financial assets
Municipal services 824 969 751 709
Provision for impairment (282 594) (256 412)
Net municipal services 542 375 495 297
Prepaid expenses 339 082 88 490

881 457 583 787
2 062 804 1 527 646

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
There were no debtors past due that were not impaired.

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2013, trade and other receivables of R2 062 804 (2012: R1 527 646) were considered for impairment. The 
total amount of the provision was R1 244 575 as of 31 March 2013 (2012: R1 161 604).

Included in the accommodation debtors-leasehold balance of R1 178 777 (2012: R1 106 541) are invoices, relating 
to the period from April 2006 to March 2011, amounting to R561 490 (2012: R605 477) that cannot be traced to and 
substantiated with lease agreements, thus the specific invoices were included in the impairment provision.
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3. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment
Opening balance 1 161 604 749 150

Provision for impairment 82 971 412 454
1 244 575 1 161 604

Impairment provision consists of the following:
Accommodation debtors - leasehold 705 268 656 141
Accommodation debtors - freehold 17 972 22 734
Construction receivable 177 818 225 924
Debt account 60 923 393
Municipal charges 282 594 256 412

1 244 575 1 161 604

4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Department of Public Works (services in-kind) 1 730 1 445

The receivable above relates to the outstanding employee benefits paid by the Department on behalf of the PMTE 
(refer to note 11).

5. Construction contracts receivables

Construction work-in-progress 292 497 396 378

The amount of construction work-in-progress represents the gross amount due from customers for contract work.

6. Operating lease asset/liability

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 1 666 996 1 920 067
- in second to fifth year inclusive 4 206 213 4 673 551
- later than five years 1 280 845 2 048 510

7 154 054 8 642 128

Operating lease liability 892 499 859 393

The total future minimum sublease payment expected to be received under non- 
cancellable sublease 7 154 054 8 642 128
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6.	 Operating lease asset/liability (continued) 

Operating leases - as lessor (income)
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 1 666 996 1 920 067
- in second to fifth year inclusive 4 206 213 4 673 551
- later than five years 1 280 845 2 048 510

7 154 054 8 642 128
Operating lease asset 892 499 859 393

The above operating leases are sub-lease agreements with various client departments and are on the same terms 
as those applicable to the lease agreements entered into with the landlords on leasehold property.

7. Finance lease receivables

Gross investment in the lease due
- within one year 1 071 996
- in second to fifth year inclusive 5 194 4 811
- later than five years 9 028 624 9 030 069

9 034 889 9 035 876
Less: unearned finance revenue (9 001 341) (9 005 073)

33 548 30 803

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year (3 003) (2 746)
- in second to fifth year inclusive (15 113) (13 815)
- later than five years 51 664 47 364

33 548 30 803

The above finance leases are sub-lease agreements with various client departments and are on the same terms 
as those applicable to the lease agreements entered into with the landlords on leasehold property (refer to note 13).

8.	 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances 829 1 399

Bank overdraft (1 402 323) (1 254 988)
(1 401 494) (1 253 589)

Current assets 829 1 399
Current liabilities (1 402 323) (1 254 988)

(1 401 494) (1 253 589)

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash held with banks. The average 
effective interest rate on short term bank deposit is 3.7% (2012: 4.0%).
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9. Payables from exchange transactions

Financial liabilities
Accrued expenses 1 112 729 905 187
Other payables 33 400 518
Tender deposits 3 341 3 341

Non-financial liabilities
Unallocated deposits 358 400 425 609
Debtors with credit balances 40 154 87 701

1 548 024 1 422 356

10. Retention liability

Construction retention liabilities 169 217 167 352

Other retention liabilities 171 340 168 951
340 557 336 303

Non-current liabilities 264 759 268 063
Current liabilities 75 798 68 240

340 557 336 303

Retention liabilities that are recognised on capital projects from client departments are referred to as construction 
retention liability. Retention liabilities recovered on capital projects are not recovered from client departments and are 
disclosed as other retention liabilities.

11. Employee benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows: 

Provision for performance bonus
Carrying amount 108 204
Current service cost 230 137
Benefits utilised (120) (234)

218 107

Provision for leave
Carrying amount 973 649
Current service cost 1 906 1 437
Benefits utilised (1 743) (1 113)

1 136 973
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Provision for service bonus
Carrying amount 365 219
Current service cost 828 697
Benefits utilised (817) (551)

376 365

Total employee benefit obligation 1 730 1 445

12. Provisions

Legal proceedings 34 029 34 029

Provisions consist of claims and litigations or payables where services have been delivered without an indication of 
the timing of settlement or the amount of settlement. The provision for claims and litigation is based on the amounts 
confirmed by the legal advisors of the PMTE.

There is a restatement of an amount of R1 298 000 for legal provisions raised by the PMTE which did not 
meet the requirements for the recognition of provisions in the prior year.

There were no additional provisions raised in the current year and the restated prior year provision amount outstanding 
at year end remains.

13. Finance lease obligations

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 1 071 996
- in second to fifth year inclusive 5 194 4 811
- later than five years 9 028 624 9 030 069

9 034 889 9 035 876
Less: future finance charges (9 001 341) (9 005 073)
Present value of minimum lease payments 33 548 30 803

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year (3 003) (2 746)
- in second to fifth year inclusive (15 113) (13 815)
- later than five years 51 664 47 364

33 548 30 803

The total future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under non- 
cancellable sub-lease 9 034 890 9 035 875

Finance leases consist of those leases that have an overall lease period exceeding 50 years. Due to the long term 
nature of the finance leases (i.e. most are 99 years), and specifically for those leases that have escalation rates, the 
interest of the balance exceeds the payment to be made for a large portion of the lease term.

The present value of the lease obligations were calculated based on the applicable rate for State-owned debt at the 
inception date. The rates vary between 6% and 17% on various contracts from 1958 to 2012.
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14. Revenue from exchange transactions

Accommodation charges - leasehold 3 113 217 2 968 905
Accommodation charges - freehold 3 417 999 3 268 441
Management fees on municipal services 146 860 130 118
Construction revenue 2 351 326 3 017 957
Finance income* 24 807 20 106
Recovery of over payments 18 650 12 362

9 072 859 9 417 889

*Finance income includes the following:
Interest received from debtors 20 487 16 630
Interest received from finance leases 3 752 3 447
Interest from bank balances 568 29

24 807 20 106

15. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Augmentation 646 849 630 189
Contractor fines 7 153 5 050
Services in-kind 19 231 14 118

673 233 649 357

16. Operating surplus/(deficit)

Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating leases 3 341 967 3 315 087
Property maintenance 3 084 430 3 133 269
Construction cost 2 351 326 3 017 957
Rates and taxes 483 798 696 277
Cleaning and gardening 170 181 141 038
Impairment on receivables 82 971 412 454
Security 42 675 40 434
Thefts and losses 8 492 28 835
Bursaries 3 346 1 127
Admin/other indirect costs 1 364 1 225
Bank charges 122 67
Advertising 41 19
Loss on construction - 486

9 570 713 10 788 275
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17. Finance costs

Interest on finance leases 3 752 3 447

Interest paid 308 541
4 060 3 988

18. Employee related costs

Basic salary and non-pensionable salary 13 382 9 435

Performance bonus 231 137
Medical aid contributions 710 486
Leave payout 163 331
Pension fund contributions 1 520 1 149
Overtime 441 386
Service bonus 828 697
Housing allowances 591 270
Bargaining council 3 2

17 869 12 893

The following contributions have been incurred and expensed:

Government Employees Pension Fund (“GEPF”) 1 520 1 149

Medical aid contributions 710 486
Total defined contributions 2 230 1 635

19. Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Surplus/(deficit) 153 450 (737 910)
Adjustments for:
Interest income 3 752 3 447
Finance costs (3 752) (3 447)
Debtors impairment loss 82 971 412 454
Movements in retirement benefit obligation 285 373
Operating lease asset (29 354) 643 411
Operating lease liability 29 354 (643 411)
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions (618 131) (24 695)
Receivables from non-exchange transactions (285) (373)
Construction contracts receivables 103 881 (125 845)
Payables from exchange transactions 125 670 372 747
Retention liabilities 4 254 186 775

(147 905) 83 526
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20. Contingencies

20.1 Contingent liabilities

Municipal rates and taxes 202 119 207 287

Numerous invoices for rates and taxes which were received from municipalities across all regions are currently being 
disputed by the PMTE. The PMTE are disputing the accuracy of these invoices. These invoices are all dated prior to 1 
April 2008. No assessment has been performed to date to conclude on the accuracy of these invoices and whether the 
PMTE indeed have an obligation to settle these amounts.

R174.5 million of the 2012 outstanding balance was paid during April 2012 to March 2013 and has been raised as an 
Accrual in the 2012 financial statements.

R5.2 million of the 2013 outstanding balance was paid during April 2013 and May 2013 and has been raised as an 
Accrual in the 2013 financial statements.

Claims relating to municipal property rates prior to 1 April 2008 were received from municipalities across all regions 
in which the PMTE operates. The invoices supporting these claims require extensive investigations to ensure that 
the PMTE only settles valid claims. The values disclosed above, represent an estimation relating to the outstanding 
invoices which still require assessment by the PMTE to conclude on their validity and whether the PMTE does have an 
obligation to settle.

Claims against the PMTE 13 475 20 479

The claims against the PMTE arising from capital projects with different third party service providers. The entity’s legal 
advisors are handling the claims on behalf of the PMTE. They have assessed the probability of each claim in determining 
the total amount of the legal contingent liability. The outflow of the economic benefits is possible as at reporting date.

There is a restatement for an amount of R20 000 for a legal claim against the PMTE which was erroneously not 
disclosed in the 2012 financial year.

Total contingent liabilities 215 594 227 766



2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

308 Department of Public Works | Annual Report 2012/13

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

20. Contingencies (continued)

20.2 Contingent assets

Claims by the PMTE 77 178 74 746

The claims by the PMTE arise from various activities with service providers and are being handled by the entity’s legal 
advisors. They have assessed the probability of each claim in determining the total amount of the legal contingent 
asset. The inflow of the economic benefits is possible as at reporting date. 

There is a restatement for an amount of R2.4 million for a legal claim by the entity which was erroneously disclosed 
within the PMTE instead of the DPW as at 31 March 2012.

Total contingent assets 77 178 74 746

21. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

21.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 239 311 6 772

Less: Amounts condoned (14) (5 582)
Incurred during the year 15 217 238 121

254 514 239 311

21.2 Analysis of current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Occurrence
Interest/penalties 3 064
Inappropriate mark-up on goods and services 1 189
VAT incorrectly charged 14
Expenses incurred without proper needs analysis 9 302
Overpayment from the initial contract amount 630
Payment for unoccupied building 1 018

15 217

No disciplinary steps have been taken as a consequence of the above expenditure.

22. Irregular expenditure

22.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance 1 410 817 658 704
Less: Amounts condoned - (555 428)
Incurred during current year 1 165 424 1 057 111
Incurred in prior years detected in current year 33 470 250 430

2 609 711 1 410 817
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22. Irregular expenditure (continued)

22.2 Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Incorrect procurement process followed 797 275
Appropriate approval not obtained by the properly delegated official or committee 37 474
Deviations were incorrectly approved 2 073
No original tax clearance certificate 15 216
Award of a contract to a supplier who does not meet the relevant requirements 51 728
Evaluation criteria used to evaluate quotation or bids does not match original 
criteria 5 939

Failure to disclose interest on contract 270
Incorrect evaluation performed in the procurement process 108 937
Awards made to suppliers NOT registered on the applicable databases 6 542
Payments in excess of quoted amount 20
Payments made in excess of quoted amount without proper approval 5 816
Incorrect procurement process followed for leases 134 134

1 165 424

22.3 Details of irregular expenditure – prior years detected in current year

Incorrect procurement process followed 11 123
Incorrect evaluation performed in the procurement process 993
Incorrect procurement process followed for leases 20 284
Payment in excess of quoted amount 1 070

33 470

23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances

Related party relationships and outstanding balances

The PMTE is controlled through the NDPW at National Government level. As a result of the constitutional independence 
of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only parties within the national sphere of government, and entities 
reporting to National Departments because they are subject to common control, will be considered to be 
related parties. The PMTE performs property maintenance services for the State-owned and leasehold immoveable 
assets occupied by National Departments, and recognises and recovers accommodation charges from all National 
Departments.

The PMTE operates within the administration of the NDPW and as such all contracts are entered into in the name of the 
NDPW. The liabilities and obligations arising from these transactions are accounted for by the PMTE if it relates to the 
PMTE operating activities as these liabilities will be settled using the PMTE funds and resources.
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23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances (continued)

23.1 National Department of Public Works

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Freehold accommodation 36 086 31 379

Revenue from non-exchange transactions: Services in-kind
Overhead services in-kind 17 868 12 893
Augmentation 646 849 630 189

664 717 643 082

Expenditure
Municipal property rates 788 675 513 223
Property maintenance 3 007 094 2 928 676
Cleaning, gardening and security 76 878 84 762
Bursary payments 3 346 7 638

3 875 993 3 534 299

Receivables relating to the above
Prepayments on municipal property rates 139 212 20 356
Services in-kind 1 730 1 445

140 942 21 801

Payables relating to the above
Municipal property rates accruals 6 191 205 649
Property maintenance accruals 140 349 149 177
Cleaning, gardening and security 6 714 3 609
Bursary accruals 984 7 627

154 238 366 062

Commitments relating to the above
Property maintenance commitments 3 517 168 3 700 586
Cleaning, gardening and security 16 745 6 482

3 533 913 3 707 068

The PMTE provides the following free services to the DPW:

As a trading entity of the DPW, the PMTE incurs expenditure relating to the immoveable assets of the DPW. These expenses 
include payments for municipal property rates, maintenance, cleaning, gardening and security services. The PMTE also 
pays certain of these costs relating to the leasehold properties that is occupied by the Departments employees. The 
PMTE does not recover these costs from the Department.

The PMTE has made payments relating to external and internal bursary recipients on behalf of the Department.
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23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances (continued)

The PMTE receives free services from the DPW. The Department paid the following overhead costs for the day-to-day 
running of the PMTE:

•	 Employee costs

•	 Goods and services

•	 Interest and rent on land

•	 Transfers and subsidies

•	 Office and computer equipment.

These overhead costs can be measured reliably and have been included in revenue from non-exchange transactions. 
These costs are not recovered by the Department from the PMTE. The office and computer equipment has not been 
recognised as property, plant and equipment in the PMTE’s financial records due to the immateriality of the amount.

Other overhead costs include the sharing of corporate services between the DPW and the PMTE. Due to the nature of 
these transactions and the operational structures between the PMTE and the Department the value of these shared 
costs cannot be reliably measured. These costs, paid by the Department on behalf of the PMTE and not recovered, 
include the following corporate shared services:

•	 Supply Chain Management (“SCM”);

•	 Internal Audit;

•	 Human Resources (HRM, HROD;)

•	 Gender, people with disabilities, youth and children;

•	 Marketing and Communication;

•	 Information Services;

•	 Legal Services;

•	 Security Management;

•	 Monitoring and Evaluation;

•	 Strategic Management Unit (SMU); and

•	 Labour Relations.

In addition, the Department and the PMTE share the service cost of certain special interventions entered into in support 
of the turn around strategy. These cannot be reliably measured.

The PMTE receives an augmentation of funds from National Treasury via the Department to fund its operations.

23.2 Other related parties

The PMTE incurs property maintenance costs relating to cleaning, gardening and security services for leasehold 
properties occupied by client departments. These costs are not recovered from client departments, and therefore 
considered a free service.

The PMTE recognises accommodation revenue on State-owned building based on the amount budgeted by client 
departments. The level of service delivery relating to this accommodation charge is not linked to the value received, it 
is likely that some clients may benefit to the disadvantage of others. It is not possible to identify the extent of benefit or 
disadvantage received. The full amount of the transaction is disclosed.
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23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances (continued)

Revenue from exchange transactions: State-owned accommodation
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing 56 770 49 365
Arts and Culture 23 101 20 088
Communications 575 500
Correctional Services 828 579 720 504
Defence and Military Veterans 939 957 1 104 261
Higher Education 481 419
Environmental Affairs 11 598 10 086
Government Communications 19 16
Health 8 968 7 798
Health (Civitas) 56 002 58 132
Home Affairs 27 675 24 065
Human Settlement 294 255
Independent Complaints Directorate 308 268
Justice and Constitutional Development 296 343 257 690
Labour 32 518 28 276
Rural Development and Land Reform 15 857 13 789
Minerals 1 797 1 563
National Treasury 3 366 2 927
National Treasury - SARS 19 061 16 575
Public Service and Administration 171 148
SA Police Services 980 352 852 480
Social Development 313 273
Sports and Recreation 7 6
Statistics SA 809 704
Trade and Industry 21 18
Water Affairs 76 886 66 858

3 381 828 3 237 064

State-owned accommodation receivable less impairment
Communications - 109
Defence and Military Veterans 215 -
Higher Education - 4
Environmental Affairs - 1 705
Public Service and Administration - 32
Sports and Recreation 1 -
Statistics SA - 162
Trade and Industry - (4)

216 2 008
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23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances (continued)

Impairment relating to receivable
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing 393 393
Communications - 16
Defence and Military Veterans 21 -
Environmental Affairs 1 230 1 230
International Relations and Cooperation 7 258 7 258
Health - 245
Home Affairs - 4 503
Justice and Constitutional Development 9 070 9 070
Rural Development and Land Reform 1 1
Public Service and Administration - 5
Statistics SA - 14

17 973 22 735

Gardening, cleaning and security expense paid
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing 852 2 268
Correctional services 168 74
Defence and Military Veterans 2 557 2 679
Home Affairs 475 1 119
Human Settlement - 119
Justice and Constitutional Development 110 696 109 912
Labour 450 330
SA Police Services 4 671 4 948
Statistics SA - 31
Water Affairs 71 -

119 940 121 480

Gardening, cleaning and security accruals
Arts and Culture 74 97
Correctional Services 15 3
Defence and Military Veterans 223 114
Home Affairs 42 48
Human Settlement - 5
Justice and Constitutional Development 9 668 4 680
Labour 39 14
SA Police Service 408 211
Statistics SA - 1
Water Affairs 6 -

10 475 5 173
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23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances (continued)

Gardening, cleaning and security commitments
Arts and Culture 186 173
Correctional Services 37 6
Defence and Military Veterans 557 205
Home Affairs 104 86
Human Settlement - 6
Justice and Constitutional Development 24 111 8 405
Labour 98 25
SA Police Services 1 017 378
Statistics SA - 2
Water Affairs 15 -

26 125 9 286

The PMTE provides the following services to all National Departments on a cost recovery basis:

•	 The PMTE project manages major capital projects on behalf of the DPW, the custodian of state immoveable 
assets. The actual construction is performed by a third party and is paid by the PMTE. The PMTE recovers this 
cost from client departments who receive the budget to fund these projects. Construction revenue raised 
relating to this service amounts to R2 351 326 480 for the period (2012: R3 017 957 012).

•	 Where the accommodation needs of client departments cannot suitably be met through the State-owned 
properties available, leasehold contracts are entered into to meet these needs. The PMTE pays the leasehold 
costs and recovers these costs incurred from the various client departments. Leasehold revenue raised amounted 
to R3 113 216 622 for the current period (2012: R2 968 905 627). Certain leasehold facilities are leased from other 
government institutions and entities at no or below market value for certain client departments. These services 
in- kind have not been recognised as they cannot be reliably measured.

•	 The PMTE also pays municipal service charges (water and electricity) incurred by client departments 
occupying both state and other facilities leased on their behalf. These costs are recovered from the client 
departments. This is a direct cost recovery and is not recognised as revenue. A 5% management fee is charged 
by the PMTE to client departments for this service. Revenue raised relating to this service amounts to  
R146 859 676 for the period (2012: R130 118 207).

Management remuneration

Management of the PMTE is defined as being individuals with the responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the activities of the entity. Individuals on Chief Director level of the PMTE, as well as members of the Executive Committee 
and MINTOP of the DPW main account are considered management.
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23. Related party transactions and outstanding balances (continued)

Designation	 Name

*Department of Public Works Minister	 Hon. Thulas Nxesi

*Department of Public Works Deputy Minister	 Hon. Jeremy Cronin

*Director-General	 Mziwonke Dlabantu

*Acting Deputy Director-General: CS (Seconded from DPSA)	 Kenny Govender

*Acting Deputy Director-General: AIM	 Peter Chiapasco

*Deputy Director-General: Regional Coordination	 Butcher Matutle

*Deputy Director-General : ICR	 Sasa Subban

*Deputy Director-General: EPWP	 Stanley Henderson

*Deputy Director-General: Projects (Seconded from CBE)	 Mfezeko Gwazube

*Deputy Director-General: KAM	 Mandla Mabuza

*Deputy Director-General: Policy	 Lydia Bici

*Chief Financial Officer	 Cox Mokgoro

*Chief Director: Security Services	 Zwiitani Rambau

*Chief Director: IGR	 Adam Mthombeni

*Chief Director: FM and PM	 Pinkie Modisane

*Chief Director: Internal Audit and Investigations	 Tebby Tukisi

*Acting Chief Director: M and E	 Lwazi Mahlangu

*Chief Director: Communications	 Lucky Mochalibane

*Chief Director: Director General’s Office	 Manthekeleng Monama

*Chief Director: SMU	 Mandisa Fatyela

*Team Leader: Turn Around Strategy	 Mahalingum Govender

*Minister’s Advisor	 Jon Lewis

*Minister’s Advisor	 Phillip Masilo

*Chief of Staff	 George Mudumela

*Administrator: Limpopo (Seconded from National Treasury)	 Mbuyi Dondashe

*Director: DM’s Office	 Deon Viljoen

*Ministry	 Sabelo Mali 

Chief Director : Office of the Chief Financial Officer	 Kenosi Selane 

Chief Director : Financial Planning and Reporting	 Juanita Prinsloo

* These management members are either members of EXCO or MINTOP or both. These officials are paid either by the 
DPW or by other government institutions that they are seconded from (i.e. Independent Development Trust). The 
Chief Directors mentioned below constitute management falling within the PMTE itself.
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24. Management emoluments

Executive

2013

Basic salary 

Non- 
pensionable 

salary
Performance 

bonus
Other 

benefits Total
R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000

Chief Director: Office of the Chief Financial 
Officer 244 106 - - 350

Chief Director: Financial Planning and 
Reporting 513 219 44 91 867

757 325 44 91 1 217

2012

Basic salary 

Non- 
pensionable 

salary
Performance 

bonus
Other 

benefits Total
R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000

Chief Director: Financial Planning and 
Reporting 508 208 42 88 846

2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

25. Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost
Finance lease receivable 33 548 30 803
Receivables from exchange transactions 2 062 804 1 527 646
Cash and cash equivalents 829 1 399

2 097 181 1 559 848

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Finance lease obligation 33 548 30 803
Bank overdraft 1 402 323 1 254 988
Payables from exchange transactions 1 548 024 1 422 356
Retention liability 340 557 336 303

3 324 452 3 044 450
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26. Risk management

Financial risk management financial risk factors

The PMTE’s activities exposes it to variety of financial risks, which include market risk (including interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.

The Director-General is responsible for strategic risk management within the PMTE and tasks the Audit Committee 
with ensuring effective risk management within the PMTE. The PMTE has a risk management strategy that has been 
developed in terms of the Treasury Regulation 28.1. The purpose of the PMTE risk management strategy is to identify 
the risks and ensure that the overall risk profile remains at acceptable levels. The risk management strategy provides 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that risks are being adequately managed.

The PMTE risk policy sets out the minimum standards of risk management to be adopted and adhered to by all the units 
within the PMTE. The risk policy is established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the PMTE, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the PMTE activities. The risk management strategy contains 
processes for identifying both the impact and likelihood of such a risk occurring. Risks that have been identified as 
having a potentially severe impact on the PMTE are regarded as unacceptable and where possible will be avoided.

Responsibility for adherence to the PMTE risk management strategy rests with the Risk Management Unit together 
with the Internal Audit and Compliance Unit who engage with the Audit Committee and members of the Executive 
Committee (“EXCO”) regularly.

Liquidity risk

The PMTE manages liquidity risk through ongoing review and assessment of client department’s commitment to 
settle their accounts.

All payments are due within 30 days except tender deposits and retentions which are due when the related contracts 
expire. These tender deposits are considered immaterial in managing the cash flows of the PMTE and have been 
excluded from the maturity analysis below:

2013 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Total
Retentions 916 3 772 71 110 264 759 340 557
Other payables 33 400 - - - 33 400
Accrued expenses 919 214 - - - 919 214

953 530 3 772 71 110 264 759 1 293 171

2012 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Total
Retentions 2 190 4 948 61 102 268 063 336 303
Other payables 518 - - - 518
Accrued expenses 878 493 - - - 878 493

881 201 4 948 61 102 268 063 1 215 314
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The PMTE is exposed to limited interest rate risk as it sweeps transactions through commercial 
accounts to the Reserve Bank account.

The PMTE has no significant interest bearing assets, thus the entity’s income and operating cash flows are largely 
independent of changes in the market interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the PMTE if a client department or counterparty defaults on its contractual 
obligations to the PMTE. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial 
asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

The PMTE may have financial assets arising out of transactions with suppliers due to overpayments and non-delivery. 

The PMTE manages this risk by requiring retentions and or guarantees before contract work commences.

The credit risk of financial assets arising out of lease contracts as it relates to transactions with other government 
departments and institutions is actively managed where there are disagreements about inter governmental debt.

The PMTE first engages with the respective client to resolve the issue and if required involves National Treasury to 
mediate the situation. These various government institutions have no independent credit ratings.

Outstanding debt is assessed for impairment and amounts are not written off unless the authorised process is followed. 
However as a result of client department’s inability to accumulate savings to settle debt, a considerable amount of time 
may expire before the amount is collected.

The PMTE makes provision for this in the impairment calculation by discounting the expected future cash flows 
taking into account the expected period of payment.

The PMTE does not enter into additional leases with any client departments without first assessing the current 
outstanding debt of the client department.

Amounts that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be recoverable as it relates to the current invoices 
not outstanding later than 30 days.

The nature of the PMTE’s exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for managing credit have not 
changed significantly from the prior period.

2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

Exposure to credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents 829 1 399
Receivables 1 181 347 943 859
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The carrying values of the above financial assets are net of any impairments and approximate their fair value.

None of the amounts disclosed above have been pledged as security or collateral for liabilities or contingent liabilities 
nor have any amounts been renegotiated or have been defaulted on.

Foreign exchange risk

The foreign currency risk of the PMTE is limited to the amount included in payables in foreign currency. The PMTE 
does not enter into any hedging transactions and does not trade in foreign currencies. The PMTE is currently unable 
to provide a reliable estimate of the foreign exchange losses included in the surplus / deficit for the year. Neither can it 
make a reliable estimate of the outstanding balances relating to payables in foreign currency. The loss is considered to 
be insignificant.

27. Subsequent events

Although National Treasury approved the establishment of the trading entity in 2006, the Department did not meet 
all the establishment requirements of Treasury and as such the business case for the formation of the PMTE was never 
formally approved. On the 28 March 2013 an interim business case was approved by the accounting officer to effectively 
transfer the property management functions and immoveable asset register of the DPW to the trading entity as at 1 
April 2013. The recognition of the associated assets, liabilities, income and expenditures from this transfer of functions 
will be disclosed in the PMTE’s 31 March 2014 annual financial statements for the first time. The expected impact of this 
transfer is not yet determinable.

28. Changes in accounting policy

28.1 Employee benefits

2013
Restated

2012
R’000 R’000

The adoption of GRAP 23 had the following impact:

Increase in assets 1 730 1 445
Decrease in liabilities (1 730) (1 445)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets/(reserves) - -

Increase in revenue from non-exchange transactions 19 231 14 118
Increase in employee costs (17 868) (12 893) 
Increase in operating expenses (1 363)  (1 225)
Effect on surplus/(deficit) - -

Effect on opening accumulated reserves - -

In the current financial year the PMTE has decided to early adopt GRAP 23 and the financial statements were prepared 
in such a way to meet the disclosures of GRAP 23. This has resulted in the GRAP 23 being applied retrospectively from 
the year ended 31 March 2012.
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28.2 Reclassification of prior year amounts

In order to comply with the presentation requirements of GRAP 1, certain items have been reclassified. These 
reclassifications did not impact reserves.

Decrease in trade and other receivables (1 473 717) (3 876 685)
Decrease in prepayments (339 082) (310 658)
Decrease in trade payables 1 507 870 2 492 781
Increase in receivables from exchange-transactions 1 812 799 4 187 343
Increase in payables from exchange transactions (1 507 870) (2 492 781)
Decrease in revenue 6 678 076 6 450 852
Decrease in other income 25 803 17 439
Decrease in finance income 24 807 16 659
Decrease in government grants 646 849 630 189
Increase in revenue from exchange transactions (6 721 533) (6 479 874)
Increase in revenue from non-exchange transactions (654 002) (635 265)
Effect on reserves - -

29. Prior period errors

Material errors relating to prior years were adjusted and the prior year financial statements have been restated to 
this effect. The impact of these errors are summarised below and the details are shown below:

Decrease in assets (1 373 123)
Increase in liabilities (154 777)
Decrease in net assets (1 527 900)

Represented by:
Increase in accumulated surplus:
Increase in revenue 2 651 749
Increase in expenses (3 667 172)
Effect on deficit (1 015 423)
Effect on opening reserves (512 477)

 (1 527 900)

29.1 Legal provisions incorrectly recognised

Legal provisions were incorrectly recognised in the prior year due to some provisions not meeting the requirements 
for the recognition of a provision.

Decrease in provisions 1 297

Decrease in operating expenditure 37
Increase in opening accumulated reserves 1 260

1 297
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29. Prior period errors (continued)

29.2	 Disallowances incorrectly disclosed as an asset

Disallowances were incorrectly disclosed as receivables which were reclassified to expenditure.

Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions (222 151)

Increase in operating expenditure (1 855)
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves (220 296)

(222 151)

29.3 Recognition of loss on construction cost

An amount previously disclosed as a debtor is not recoverable, due to the inability to continue the building resulting 
from an incorrect assessment of the soil type, on a construction contract as we appointed the subcontractors. PMTE 
became liable for the loss.

Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions (60 086)

Increase in operating expenditure (486)
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves (59 600)

(60 086)

29.4 Retention payables not recognised previously

The PMTE did not recognise retention amounts due as a payable in prior year financial statements

Increase in payables from exchange transactions (336 303)

Increase in operating expenditure (336 303)

29.5 Impairment corrections to apply to GRAP

The private lease debtors were restructured and the policy for impairment was updated to ensure compliance with 
GRAP.

Increase in provision for impairment on financial assets (730 469)

Increase in operating expenditure (201 615) 
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves (528 854)

(730 469)
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29. Prior period errors (continued)

29.6 Operating lease asset and liability incorrectly recognised

The entity has corrected its financial statements to comply with the requirement of GRAP 13. Leases were recalculated 
for both the operating lease (straight-lining) and finance lease.

	
Decrease in operating lease asset (874 311)

Decrease in revenue (143 590)
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves (730 721)

(874 311)

Decrease in operating lease liability 874 311

Decrease in operating expenditure 143 590
Increase in opening accumulated reserves 730 721

874 311

29.7 Finance lease receivable not in accordance with GRAP

The entity has corrected its financial statements to comply with the requirement of GRAP 13 – Leases regarding the 
accounting of certain leases as finance leases based on the substance of the underlying lease agreements (leases 
over 50 years). This has resulted in a prior period error due to non-compliance with the standard. The impact and details 
of these errors are summarised below:

Increase in finance lease receivable 30 803

Increase in revenue from exchange transactions 3 447
Increase in accumulated reserves 27 356
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves 30 803

Increase in finance lease obligation (30 803)

Increase in operating expenditure  (3 447) 
Decrease in accumulated reserves (27 356)
Increase in opening accumulated reserves (30 803)
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29. Prior period errors (continued)

29.8 All outstanding invoices not yet paid not considered for accruals

Invoices were identified that were recognised in the incorrect period.

Increase in payables from exchange transactions (613 271) 
Increase in receivables from exchange transactions 131 759
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves (481 512)

Increase in operating expenditure (546 042) 
Decrease in revenue from non-exchange transactions (27) 
Increase in opening accumulated reserves 64 557
Decrease in opening accumulated reserves (481 512)

29.9 Prepayment on leases determined based on an estimate

The lease prepayment balance was determined based on an estimate that was performed. The full operating lease 
balance was divided by 12 assuming that the March payment for all leases were made for the April charge. Adequate 
support did not exist for this estimate.

Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions (246 372)

Decrease in operating expenditure (246 372)

29.10 Construction projects not accounted for in accordance with GRAP

A WIP construction debtor was not recognised for the amounts that were accrued for (i.e. invoiced but not yet paid) 
and therefore also not yet billed. According to the Standard of GRAP on Construction Contracts (GRAP 11), construction 
revenue should be recognised to the extent that costs can be recovered. As the expense is recognised for the accrual 
the corresponding revenue should be recognised against the WIP construction debtor.

Increase in construction work-in-progress 400 225

Increase in revenue from exchange transactions 3 017 957
Increase in operating expenditure (2 607 322)

410 635

29.11 Write-off of municipal services to tie into ageing

There was an unaccounted amount which had no supporting documentation on the municipal services recoverable 
account. The write-off amount was done to tie to the ageing analysis.

Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions (4 710)

Increase in operating expenditure (4 710)
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29. Prior period errors (continued)

29.12 Prepayments on municipal rates and taxes not recognised

Payments made in advance were not considered for municipal rates and taxes. Investigation revealed that these 
payments are made annually in advance for the period July - June. A prepayment was recognised for the three months 
(April - June) following year end.

Increase in receivables from exchange transactions 20 356

Decrease in operating expenditure 20 356

29.13 Incorrect off-setting

There was an incorrect off-setting of capital construction costs to state-owned accommodation.

Increase in revenue from exchange transactions 684 483

Increase in operating expenditure (684 483)

29.14 Fruitless expenditure included as a payable in error

The fruitless expenditure was incorrectly accounted for as a debt receivable income (credit balance) in prior year. Was 
cleared

Decrease in payables from exchange transactions 76

Increase in opening accumulated reserves 76

29.15 Restatement of prior year private leases receivable balance due to reconstruction

There was a restatement of the prior year private leases receivable balance due to the reconstruction of the balance 
that was

Increase in receivables from exchange transactions 246 470
Increase in payables form exchange transactions (87 701)

158 769

Decrease in revenue from exchange transactions (948 138)
Decrease in operating expenditure 811 890
Increase in opening accumulated reserves 295 017

158 769
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29. Prior period errors (continued)

29.16 Revenue recognised in the incorrect period

Revenue was incorrectly recognised in the prior year as amounts received related to revenue for the 2012/13 financial 
year.

Increase in payables from exchange transactions (37 617)

Decrease in revenue from exchange transactions (37 617)

29.17 Restatement of prior year construction receivable balance due to reconstruction

There was a restatement of the prior year PACE and CA receivable balances due to the reconstruction of the 
balances that was performed.

Increase in receivables from exchange transactions 64 637

Increase in opening accumulated reserves 64 637

2013
R’000

30. Budget information

Reconciliation of budget to actual

Net cash flows from operating activities (147 905)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement (147 905)

Cash surplus/(deficit) per statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts (147 905)
(147 905)

Cash surplus/(deficit) per statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts (147 905)
Surplus per statement of financial performance 153 450
Difference 5 545

The difference between the cash surplus per the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts and the 
Statement of Financial Performance relates to non-cash movement (see note 19).

Explanations of the variances between the actual amount and final budgeted amount:

Accommodation charges leasehold

The revenue projection is based on the invoices issued, while the actual represents the amount received in the bank 
account. The balance of the amount not received will be recognised as debtors.
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Municipal services management fees

This amount is estimated based on the invoices issued on the use of municipal services. The amount will change based 
on the actual consumption by the client departments.

Bursaries

An amount of R7 million was made available to DPW in accordance to the agreement with the Department, but only 
R2.4 million was claimed by the Department.

Cleaning and gardening

The expenditure is based on payments made to suppliers contracted to deliver these services. Of the amount 
outstanding at year-end, R12 million represent accruals where the service was delivered, but not yet paid for.

Computer services

The entity received permission to acquire its own billing and accounting system. It has been decided to look at more 
than just the basic system, but also to include functionality in terms of the immovable asset register, lease register 
and other related property management functions. The acquisition was delayed due to the change in requirements.

Planned maintenance (capital)

The budget is based on the cash flow projection of hundreds of projects. These cash flows changes constantly due to 
SCM processes, conditions on site, etc. Although the fluctuations are managed as much as possible during the year, 
through interventions where necessary, the situation might change during the last week of the financial year. It also has 
to be noted that the business system on which these projects are managed (WCS) closed for payments on 27 March 
2013 to allow for the changes that had to be implemented in terms of the new SCOA structure.

Details on changes from the approved budget to the final budget

Accommodation charges leasehold

The capital portion of the revenue and expenditure was off-set in prior years and the ENE figures therefore excludes 
the capital. The amount is R694 million. The private lease budget is based on what the PMTE expects to pay and 
receive (equal in and out) for private leases based on the information at any given time. The PMTE allow for renewal 
of leases, but this estimate cannot be accurate before the actual renewal is done. This budget moves during the year 
as new leases are entered into and others expire. At the beginning of the year (3 months after ENE is finalised) it was 
known that the leases would be less and adjusted the figures accordingly. This is not an appropriated amount and can 
fluctuate. The difference between the budget in the ENE and the beginning of the year is R53 million.

Fines

This cannot be accurately predicted as it is based on the actual penalties against contractors. Only a nominal 
amount is budgeted for.

Interest received

This cannot be accurately predicted as it is based on the interest earned on the bank account on deposits and 
receivables made into the commercial account. A nominal amount is budgeted for.
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Municipal services management fees

The management fee is based on 5% of the accounts handled. As accounts are based on actual consumption by 
users, the amount will adjust during the year.

Recoveries

These are amounts recovered in subsequent years (overpayments to contractors, etc.) and cannot be predicted unless 
the amount is known.

Advisory services

An amount was budgeted for intervention on the financial statements for PMTE. This project grew to include DPW 
and SCM and is being funded by DPW through their turnaround budget.

Bank charges

Nominal amount that cannot be predicted in advance.

Cleaning and gardening

The budget is based on contracts in place and new contracts. Not all contracts were renewed as some facilities were 
taken over by EPWP.

Computer services

Budgeted amount for an Accounting and Billing system for the PMTE. Recent discussions have indicated that a system 
should be looked at that can include all the PMTE functions.

Interest paid

Nominal amount that cannot be predicted in advance.

Municipal services

Nominal amount that cannot be predicted in advance.

Operating leases

See accommodation charges leasehold and note the relationship between revenue and expenditure on this item.

Planned maintenance (current and capital)

The budget is based on a project list (implementation plan). Due to the nature of these projects and the different 
variables in terms of SCM etc. the budget is re-aligned on a quarterly basis to ensure optimum expenditure at the end 
of the year.

Property rates

The increase in this budget was due to arrear rates accounts reconciled and paid by the Regions. The PMTE is still 
responsible for provincial accounts that might be in arrears from the period prior to the devolution of this budget.
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Rent on land

See accommodation charges lease hold as rent on land forms part of private leases.

Security

This item relates to security at vacant properties and can change during the year depending on the number 
of vacant properties and the period of vacancy.

Tender adverts

Nominal amount that cannot be predicted in advance.

Thefts and losses

This item is not budgeted for at the beginning of the year, but funds are made available as savings are realised during 
the year.

Unplanned maintenance

The nature of this item makes it difficult to forecast as expenditure is based on actual breakdown calls. The budget is 
assessed during the year and funds are moved to other items if and when necessary.
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Appendix A 
List of Acts

Short Title of the Act Purpose of the Act

Before Union (prior to 1910)

Cape Outspans Act 17 of 1902 Resumption of unused Outspans, and cancellation and delimitation of Outspan 
Servitudes.

Pretoria and Military Supply 
Ordinance,1905

To render certain Crown Land to the Municipality of Pretoria upon certain 
conditions.

During Union (1910 – 1961)

Rhodes Will (Groote Schuur 
Devolution) Act 09 of 1910

To provide for the surrender of the Groote Schuur Estate to the government 
of the Union of South Africa in accordance with the Will of the late Cecil John 
Rhodes and for the release of the Trustees.

Agricultural Holding (Transvaal) 
Registration Act 22 of 1919

To approve the division and registration of land in formed Transvaal as an 
agricultural holding and to cancel such certificates at request for owner.

Bethelsdorp Settlement Act 34 of 
1921

To provide for the settlement of certain matters in dispute at Bethelsdorp 
between the London Missionary Society and its successors, the Congregational 
Union Church Aid and Missionary Society of South Africa and the Bethelsdorp 
Board of Supervisors.

Mooi River Township Lands Act 05 
of 1926

To provide for the granting of certain land to the Local Board of Township of 
Mooi River and matters incidental therefore.

Carnarvon Outer Commonage 
Sub-division Act 17 of 1926

To provide for the cancellation of the title issued under section 14 of Act No 19 
of 1913 to the Committee of Management of the Carnarvon Outer Commonage, 
the sale of certain sowing lands on the said Commonage, the subdivision and 
allocation of the remaining extent of the said Commonage among the owners of 
‘opstallen’ and persons having grazing and sowing rights thereon and the issue 
of individual titled to such owners and persons, the disposal of certain other 
lands owned by the said Committee, and matters incidental thereto.

Payment of Quitrent (Cape) Act 14 
of 1927

To regulate the payment of quitrent by part-owner of land, subject to payment 
of quitrent and situated in the province of the Cape of Good Hope.

Marburg Immigration Settlement 
(Social Board of Management) Act 
43 of 1927

To provide for the constitution of a local Board of Management for the Marburg 
Immigration Settlement, County of Alfred, in the Province of Natal and certain 
incidental matters.

Cape Outspans Act 17 of 1937 To provide for the issue of deeds of grant to divisional and municipal councils 
in respect of Outspans consisting of Crown Land situated in the Cape of Good 
Hope.

Municipal Lands (Muizenberg) Act 
09 of 1941

To make better provision for attaining the object of certain lands adjoining False 
Bay that are vested in the Council of the City of Cape Town.

Cape Town Foreshore Act 26 of 
1950

To provide for the management, control and development of the Cape Town 
foreshore and to that end, to establish a board in respect of the said foreshore 
and to define its functions and to provide for through the incidental matters.

Republic (1961 – 1994)

State Land Disposal Act 48 of 1961 To provide for the disposal of certain State Land and for matters incidental 
thereto, and to prohibit the acquisition of State Land by prescription.

Paarl Mountain Act 83 of 1970 To provide for the transfer of the ownership of certain land to the Paarl 
Municipality for certain purposes and the expropriation of certain rights in such 
land; to empower the said Municipality to donate a portion or portions of the 
said land to the State for the purpose of a Language Monument, and to provide 
for other incidental matters.

Marburg Immigration Settlement 
Regulation Act 50 of 1971

To provide for the subdivision of commonages within the Marburg Immigration 
Settlement situated in the County of Alfred, province of Natal and the allocation 
of the relevant portions to, and the dividing of the other assets of the Marburg 
Immigration Settlement Board, among registered owners of lots within the said 
Settlement, for matters incidental thereto.
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Short Title of the Act Purpose of the Act

Church Square, Pretoria, 
Development Act 53 of 1972

To provide for the management and upkeep of Church Square in Tshwane.

General Law Amendment Act 102 
of 1972

Section 34. Certain conditions of title applying in respect of immovable property 
owned by the State to lapse in certain circumstances.

The Lake Areas Development Act 
39 of 1975

To provide for the establishment of lake areas under the control of a Lake Areas 
Development Board, and for matters incidental thereto.

Expropriation Act 63 of 1975 To provide for the expropriation of land and other property for public and 
certain other purpose and for matters incidental thereto.

Rating of State Property Act 79 of 
1984

To repeal certain Acts granting exemption in respect of certain State property 
from rates levied on immovable property by local authorities; provided that 
such rates may, notwithstanding certain other exemptions, be levied on other 
State property, make provision for rebates in respect of such rates levied on 
State property, and provide for matters such rates levied on State property, and 
provide for matters incidental thereto.

Transfer of Powers and Duties of 
the State President Act 97 of 1986

To amend certain laws so as to vest certain functions presently assigned to the 
State President, in the respective Ministers of State who are charged with the 
administration of those laws; and to provide for incidental matters.

Land Affairs Act 101 of 1987 To provide for the determination of amounts of compensation, purchase prices 
or rents in respect of immovable property expropriated, purchased or leased by 
DPW and Land Affairs for public purposes and providing advice with regard to 
the value of land and purchase prices or rent in respect of certain immovable 
property; for that purpose to make provision for the establishment of a Land 
Affairs Board; and to provide for incidental matters.

Commonwealth War Graves Act 08 
of 1992

To prohibit the desecration, damage or destruction of Commonwealth War 
Graves, to regulate the disinterment, removal, reinterment or cremation of 
Commonwealth war burial and the removal, alteration, repair or maintenance 
of Commonwealth War Graves and to provide for matters connected therewith.

South Africa (1994 to date)

Parliamentary Village Management 
Board Act 96 of 1998

To provide for the establishment of a Parliamentary Villages Management Board 
and matters incidental thereto.

Construction Industry 
Development Board Act 38 of 2000

To provide for the establishment of the Construction Industry Development 
Board, and matters incidental thereto.

Council for the Built Environment 
Act 43 of 2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Built Environment and 
matters incidental thereto.

Architectural Profession Act 44 of 
2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Architectural Profession 
and matters incidental thereto.

Landscape Architectural 
Professional Act 45 of 2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Landscape Architectural 
Profession and matters incidental thereto.

Engineering Profession of South 
Africa Act 46 of 2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Engineering Profession 
and matters incidental thereto.

Property Valuers Profession Act 47 
of 2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Property Valuers 
Profession and matters incidental thereto.

Project and Construction 
Management Profession Act 48 of 
2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Project and Construction 
Management Profession and matters incidental thereto.

Quantity Surveying Profession Act 
49 of 2000

To provide for the establishment of the Council for the Quantity Surveying 
Profession and matters incidental thereto.

Government Immovable Asset 
Management Act 19 of 2007

The purpose of the Act is to provide for a uniform framework for the management 
of an immovable asset that is held or used by a national or provincial department 
to ensure the coordination of the use of an immovable asset with the service 
delivery objectives of a national or provincial department; to provide for 
issuing of guidelines and minimum standards in respect of immovable asset 
management by a national or provincial department.
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